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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

Dear Shareholder,

At UnitedHealth Group, our mission is to help people live healthier lives.
To achieve that goal, we are continuing to build a modern, adaptable, innovative
and inclusive system of health care services. Our nation is currently engaged in a
significant and critical debate over how to provide every citizen with better
health care. Our company has long been a strong supporter of health care
coverage for all Americans. Through our words, our philanthropic actions and
the achievements of our business, we have consistently advanced our commit-
ment to universal access to health care. We believe this to be an essential expres-
ston of our company’s mission and an urgent priority for our society.

Our potential to help improve health makes us one of the most visible
stewards of America’s vast health care system, entrusted with both important
resources and responsibilities. Every day we are involved in decision-making that
often has positive, life-<changing consequences for millions of Americans. Qur
role as stewards creates a unique position of trust and accountability for bringing
greater quality, affordability, access and simplicity to the health care system. We
are actively working to ensure that the people we are privileged to serve are not
only receiving access to quality care but have the information, guidance and
tools to make good decisions about their health and well-being, as well as their
care. These responsibilities inform and motivate everything we do.

We believe UnitedHealth Group has the largest network of physicians,
hospitals, health facilities and caregivers in the nation. We facilitate the connec-
tions that matter in serving people: between a sick patient and the right doctor;
between physicians and the correct patient data; between consumers and the
right health information; between patients and the medicines they need. Our
broad national footprint translates to unparalleled access to health care on the
local level, coast to coast.




LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

We are among the leaders in applying technology to help the health
care system function better. We execute complex health-related transactions on
a huge scale, serving as a core component within health care's central nervous
system, a “national exchange” of vital information and funds.

We are entrusted with one of the largest collections of clinical data in
the world and — more importantly — with facilitating the analysis of this data to
convert it into useful, actionable information. Clinicians and researchers use
this data to carefully determine what treatments deliver the most positive
outcomes for patients; which physicians and hospitals consistently deliver the
highest quality care; what pharmaceutical products and medical innovations
are safe and effective; and what benefit designs and advocacy approaches work
best to successfully bring more Americans who currently do not have adequate
coverage into the health care system.

Our diversified business approach and strong operational performance
continued to deliver solid financial results in 2007:

* Revenues surpassed $75 billion, as revenues for every reporting

segment increased.

* Earnings from operations reached a record $7.8 billion,

up 12 percent.

¢ Diluted net earnings per common share increased 15 percent to

$3.42 per common share.

¢ Cash flows from operations approaching $6 billion represented 126

percent of net earnings.
Throughout 2007, we began to bring innovation to the core of our company
once more, intensifying our focus on innovation in benefit designs, in services
for consumers, employers and care providers, and in the application of clinical
data and science-based best practices.
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

Looking ahead, we see consumers continuing to assert themselves

more knowledgeably - taking more responsibility for their health and well-being.

This trend is clearly evident across America. Consumers are increasingly making
choices based on service, quality, economics and convenience. New consumer
products are bringing previously uninsured individuals into the coverage system,
and this trend will accelerate, both naturally and by way of social policy.
Consumers will adopt more health-based behaviors, motivated by incentives

in benefit designs that actively involve them in their own health care.

Government-sponsored programs are continuing to expand on both
the state and federal levels to benefit retirees, children and the uninsured.
Government-sponsored programs may ultimately follow commercial markets
in their consumer orientation, behavior and modernization.

Eventually, the broad adoption of a flexible, widely accessible and
modernized electronic transaction infrastructure for the entire health care
industry will make it easier and simpler for everyone touched by health care
to engage the health system. Health care services and financial services will
integrate to make the health care experience fast, convenient, transparent and
efficient. That benefit will be passed on to consumers in greater affordability
and ease of use.

UnitedHealth Group is leading in the consumer movement through
choice, personalization and incentives for better health. We are empowering
consumers to become informed advocates for improving their own health and
well-being by providing them with the opportunity to make intelligent uses of
the health care system.
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

We are expanding our collaboration with federal and state governments
to help provide structured coverage for vulnerable populations. We will
continue to pursue and grow new and innovative public/private partnerships.

We are also expanding our participation in health care financial services
and evolving consumer-centric approaches to specialty benefits and services,
disease management, pharmacy management and other consumer services,
while leveraging advances in software, informatics and analytics.

We are pursuing an agenda to make positive changes in health care
affordability, quality, access and convenience. We are continuing to invest in
transformative technology, enabling consumers to take more responsibility for
their own health care, advocating for more accountability, transparency, higher
quality and lower costs, and championing a clinical approach that emphasizes
evidence-based medicine - helping consumers get the right treatment, at the
right time, in the right place.

During 2008, we believe you will continue to see a renaissance in our
service to the people who entrust us with their health care, a rebirth of the
innovative spirit in all of our businesses and a greater commitment to local
dynamics in health care. Tighter integration across the enterprise will benefit
consumers, physicians and other care providers — everyone we touch - by
making UnitedHealth Group a simpler, less complex and more approachable
company. We expect to see substantial resolution of the matters which posed
distractions over the last few years and, with those issues behind us, to leverage
even more effectively our unique position in the industry to advance our
business and social mission.




LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

We embrace the opportunity to build UnitedHealth Group as an open,
inclusive and engaged health system — one designed to adapt to ever-changing
market conditions and shifting demands in the health care landscape.
Together, in 2008, we will continue to be engaged with and accountable to all
our stakeholders, to find new ways to extend benefits to the uninsured, as well
as to innovate and improve service to our customers, the delivery of health
care, and, ultimately, the value we offer to the American public and to you...our
shareholders. In short, UnitedHealth Group is ready to more deeply engage
the health care challenges our nation faces in 2008 and in the decade ahead,
and we are committed to being good and modern stewards of America’s
growing and evolving health care system.

Sincerely,

SN LAML.\

Stephen J. Hemsley
PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER







WENDY MARIE with HER MOTHER HELEN, an Evercare patient

10




MEETING

TODAY S HEALTH CARE

NEEDS

GREATER CHOICE ®» PERSONALIZED CARE *
PREVENTING ILLNESS ® SIMPLIFYING THE HEALTH CARE SYSTEM

When it comes to dealing with complex medical cases, America’s

I

\

|

t health care system is the envy of the world. But when it comes to the

E simple act of getting the right care to the right people at the right time,
" our system too often falls short. At UnitedHealth Group, stewardship

\ means helping people live healthier lives by enabling them to find and
receive the best quality health care available, working to ensure the care
they need is affordable, and providing the information, guidance and
tools they need to help them make good decisions about their health

care. We accomplish this goal in a number of ways.




MEETING TODAY'S HEALTH CARE NEEDS

GREATER CHOICE

Our many plans and programs are based on a simple premise — empowering
people to find the health care solutions that work most effectively for them.

Our Total Choice plans are moving health care in a new and innovative
direction. Individuals and families can personalize their plans to address their unique
health care needs and then select their preferred level of deductible, co-insurance
and medical and prescription drug co-pays.

With our Prescription Solutions business, we are able to provide the
prescription drugs people need, both conveniently and more affordably. Prescription
Solutions is one of the largest pharmacy benefit managers in the United States. The
company offers broad access and meaningful economic discounts for individuals and
families, and has been recognized nationally for its innovative clinical programs built
around efficacy and drug cost-effectiveness that promote quality and patient safety.

In recent years, consumer demands for generic products and mail service distribution
have steadily increased. That’s why Prescription Solutions created the Preferred Mail
Service Pharmacy, so that patients can receive their prescribed pharmaceutical products
when they need them. Sometimes that means going the extra mile . . . literally.

Finding a preseription drug delivery solution that meets the unique circumstances of
Linda was not easy. Linda lives on a remote island in Alaska and has limited access to the
prescription drugs that she takes on a regular basis. But, with Prescription Solutions Preferred
Mail Service Pharmacy, Linda’s problems were solved. When her prescription runs low, she simply
calls our Mail Service, orders her 90-day supply and knows that within a week the mail plane
that supplies her tiny island will bring her the prescription drugs she needs on its next flight.

Prescription Solutions is also working to more tightly integrate our
pharmaceutical distribution services with clinical and care management programs,
while providing consumers with important education information about the drugs
they are using as well.

PERSONALIZED CARE

Qur Evercare plans assist older Americans who suffer from chronic illnesses
and illustrate our focus on personalized care. According to a 2005 New England Journal
of Medicine article, people with five or more chronic conditions comprise mare than 20
percent of Medicare beneficiaries but account for two-thirds of Medicare's costs. Our
Evercare plans ensure that Medicare-eligible individuals with the most complex health
needs and chronic conditions receive coordinated health coverage tailored directly to
those needs.
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MEETING TODAY'S HEALTH CARE NEEDS

Evercare takes a unique approach to helping elderly Americans and those
with chronic illnesses or disabilities. Approximately 700 nurse practidoners and 1,000 care
managers coordinate multiple services, facilitate better communication among patients,
their families and health care professionals, and ensure more effective integration of
treatments, The Evercare approach considers and treats the whole person, not just
specific conditions.

In addition, working with the American Academy of Family Physicians, the
American Academy of Pediatrics and the American College of Physicians, we've helped
create the Medical Home Pilot Program, a transformational initiative that provides
personalized and holistic care,

Under this program, each patient has the option to select a personal physician,
or “medical home,” who will know the patient’s medical and family history and coordinate
their medical care. The physician will be responsible not only for wreating a specific ailment
or condition, but also for working with the patient to better manage his or her health care
needs and arranging care as appropriate with other professionals, This approach places
special emphasis on preventing disease and improving care for chrenic conditions. Moreover,
it emphasizes behavioral health support, patient education, and the diagnosis and treatment

of acute illnesses.
PREVENTING ILLNESS

The essence of good stewardship in health care is good prevention, and we
continue to develop new and innovative tools for helping consumers stay healthy, and our
of the doctor’s office.

Personal Health Records and Health Risk Appraisals not only help people
identify areas of potential concern, but also offer suggestions and ideas on ways to address
them. With Personal Health Records, whatever health care plan people have (and even if
they move to a different plan), the goal is the same: getting the right care and right
information into their hands.

With so many Americans unsure where 1o turn when they have health questions,
we are helping them to get the answers they need. We created the Health Coaches program,
staffed by clinical professionals, so that individuals and their families have 24/7 access to
knowledgeable professionals who can help them act on immediate health symptoms and
manage chronic medical conditions. The Health Coaches also work with people to develop
lifestyle programs for addressing over time smoking, blood pressure and weight control.
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MEETING TODAY'S HEALTH CARE NEEDS

WENDY MARIE (& HELEN

EVERCARE PLANS facilitate

PERSONALIZED,

COORDINATED CARE

For many people, Evercare’s individualized care makes a
world of difference. Four years ago, Wendy Marie did not know
how to best provide medical care for her mother, Helen. Though
Helen had beaten breast cancer and recovered from quadruple
bypass surgery, she was beginning to show signs of dementia.
Luckily, Wendy Marie and her mother soon met Lowie, an Evercare
nurse practitioner, at Helen’s new nursing home.

Since then, Lowie has played an “irreplaceable” role in Wendy
Marie and Helen’s lives. Lowie understands the conditions affecting
Wendy Marie’s mom, assesses problems quickly and always gives
them honest answers.

But, best of all, she gives Wendy Marie peace of mind.
Before she met Lowie, Wendy’s role had changed — she had become
the “mother” in the relationship. But with Evercare’s help, Wendy
Marie can be “just a daughter” again and truly enjoy the time she
spends with her mom.




MEETING TODAY'S HEALTH CARE NEEDS




MEETING TODAY'S HEALTH CARE NEEDS

PAULA

The HEALTH COACHES PROGRAM gives

24/7 ACCESS

fo KNOWLEDGEABLE PROFESSIONALS
WHO DEVELOP LIFESTYLE PROGRAMS

In January 2007, Paula decided it was time to get serious about
losing weight. After some initial success, she began participating in
one of our Health Coaches programs to set new goals for herself. Her
Health Coach helped her to make food and portion changes and
increase exercise such as biking, swimming and walking. When she
reported that she was eating out of boredom, her coach offered
helpful suggestions.

Paula’s coach talked to her about adding strength training to
her exercise regimen. With her coach’s encouragement, she gave it a
try and loved it. She started with 2-pound weights and then moved
up to 5-pound weights. She’s now up to 10-pound weights and has
incorporated resistance band training. Immediately, she saw more
dramatic weight loss and more definition in her muscles. According to
Paula, “This has been a lifestyle change for me and my husband. We've
entirely changed the way we prepare meals, food selections, exercise
patterns, everything. The program has helped to change our lives.”
In the end, Paula succeeded in reducing her weight by 19 percent.
And she says she couldn’t have done it without her coach!



MEETING TODAY'S HEALTH CARE NEEDS

As individuals approach their 50th birthday,
UnitedHealthcare sends out a special message
reminding them of a series of preventive tests
recommended by evidence-based guidelines
for their age group.

The results speak for themselves:
among that select group, those who read

the message were MORE LIKELY to...

GET A CERVICAL CANCER SCREENING

82%

GET A CHOLESTEROL SCREENING

3I%

HAVE AN OFFICE VISIT IN WHICH THEIR
BLOOD PRESSURE WAS CHECKED

71%
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MEETING TODAY'S HEALTH CARE NEEDS

PREVENTING I1LLNESS {cont.)

UNITEDHEALTHCARE'S PROGRAMS REWARD THOSE CONSUMERS

WHOQ TAKE BETTER CARE OF THEMSELVES.

UnitedHealthcare has a number of innovative and affordable products and
services that offer financial incentives for the kind of healthy behaviors — exercise and
smoking cessation, as well as cholesterol and blood pressure management programs —
that save lives. In fact, nearly one in five of our consumer-directed health plan sponsors
offers incentives for good health, including cash, premium contributions, co-payment
reductions or rewards.

In addition, we reach out to patients to help them stay on top of their care,
customizing our outreach to each individual’s specific conditions and lifestyle. In
2007, we provided 8 million people with Activation Messages containing information
about prescription refills, physicals, other preventive appointments and cost-saving tips ;
about medications. For example, women who read their Activation Messages were
68 percent more likely to visit their doctor for a mammogram.
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MEETING TODAY'S HEALTH CARE NEEDS

SIMPLIFYING THE HEALTH CARE SYSTEM

For millions of Americans, the health care system is simply overwhelming.
Often people tell us they are not sure where to get the right information.

During the past year, we've listened to our customers, both literally and
figuratively, We've worked to improve turnaround times, call quality and claims payments.
We're betier integrating pharmaceutical, medical and administrative data, so that patients
and doctors can get “once and done” resolutions.

At UnitedHealth Group, we have long been ahead of the curve in using tech-
nology to improve health care outcomes, More than 77 percent of UnitedHealth Group's
transactions are resolved electronically, improving accuracy, expediting service, lowering
costs and reducing the impact on the environment. Today, approximately 455,000 physicians
use UnitedHealthcare Online to process approximately 500 million transactions
electronically per year.

For many people, the most direct interaction with UnitedHealth Group comes
when they pick up the telephone to have their questions answered. Consumers surveyed
immediately after their interaction with our agents are indicating strong improvements
in overall satisfaction. But individual stories, like the following two, give an even richer
sense of why customer service is so important.

More than 77 PERCENT OF UNITEDHEALTH GROUP’S
transactions are resolved electronically,

IMPROVING ACCURACY, EXPEDITING SERVICE,
LOWERING COSTS AND REDUCING IMPACT ON THE ENVIRONMENT
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MEETING TODAY'S HEALTH CARE NEEDS

COMMITMENT TO CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

One woman added her husband to her
UnitedHealthcare policy only weeks before he
suffered a suroke. She quickly found herself over-
whelmed by both the emotional drain of a sick
loved one and the physical drain of having 10
navigate a new health care plan. She was referred
to Robert Garcia, one of our account managers.
“Since then, " she tells us, “ [ have been able to sleep
easier knowing Robert has been giving me the assistance
I nieed. He has really taken the time to work with me.
He has been very cordial, efficient and understanding
{o my needs. Some people do their job, and others do
their job well. Robert does his job very well.”

Another patient was having an almost impossible
time resolving a “complete nightmare” of a claim
situation with her doctor's office — that is until

she got Mia Joyce on the phone. Mia organized

a conference call with the physician to work through
the situation. “They were a little confused at first, but
{Mia] stayed very calm, very centered, very kind and they
Sinally understood the situation.” So overwhelmed by
Mia’s personalized care, she wrote a letter telling

us, “If I had the money, [ would put her hids through
college . . . that's how phenomenal [ think she is.”
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OptumHealth Participant
CHARLOTTE wilh BEST FRIEND DALE & HER TWO SHIH TZUS
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ENSURING ACCESSIBILITY WHILE

MANAGING

RISING HEALTH CARE

COSTS

CHOOSING THE RIGHT DOCTOR ®* CHOOSING THE RIGHT TREATMENT *
MARING HEALTH CARE MORE AFFORDABLE

The upward spiral of health care costs poses an immense
challenge to the American people and the health care system as a whole.
Ever-increasing health care costs are limiting access and care for millions
of people. At UnitedHealth Group, we believe that proper stewardship
of America’s vast medical resources means maintaining a laser-like
focus on improving access to care while also keeping it as affordable
as possible.

As one of the largest health care companies in America, our
customers benefit from UnitedHealth Group’s economies of scale and
understanding of the key drivers of health care costs. For instance, after
one Uniprise customer, Ryder System, Inc., changed its benefit design
for cardiac care so that it encouraged employees to use facilities with
higher demonstrated treatment effectiveness, it also saw an average
savings of $5,671 for each employee using a UnitedHealth Premium
designated cardiac facility.

Millions of Americans — and millions of employers — are looking
for their own individual ways to reduce health care costs: our programs,

services and solutions help them do just that.
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ENSURING ACCESSIBILITY WHILE MANAGING RISING HEALTH CARE COSTS

CHOOSING TtHeE RIGHT pocror

The centerpiece of our efforts to increase efficiency and reduce costs in the
health care system is UnitedHealthcare's Premium Designation capability. This rating
system provides consumers with the tools they need to make informed choices about
quality and cost when selecting a physician or care facility and in understanding
treatment and follow-up decisions.

Qur goal is to improve health care quality and efficiency and reduce variation
in health care outcomes through the practice of evidence-based medicine — and the
Premium Designation rating system gives physicians the data they need to benchmark
their performance against national standards and similar specialists in their market. But,
more importantly, it gives consumers the tools to make the right decisions — and choose
the right doctors — to meet their health care needs.

Choosing a doctor within the Premium Designation system can lead to real
benefits. With UnitedHealthcare’s Edge program, consumers can realize health care
savings, including lower co-payments for office visits and higher co-insurance coverage,
if they seek care from primary care doctors and specialists who meet the Premium
Designation program criteria for delivering higher-quality care and greater health
care efficiency.

CHOOSING 7TvHE RIGHT TREATMENT

Our Value Coaching program identifies and notifies patients of other care
options that would offer better value and improved health outcomes for what they're
spending (e.g.. switching to a different drug in the same class, splitting pills or using
a mail-order service, pros and cons of surgery options, and related cost information).
Coaches reach out to patients via ¢-mail and phone, or include a message in their
monthly health statement.

We have placed Treatment Quality of Care/Cost Estimators in physicians’
offices across the country. These tools provide individuals and their physicians
with immediate information on reimbursement levels for a particular treatment
option and the costs for which they will be responsible. [t's all part of our effort to
provide people with the information they need to make the most affordable health
care decisions.
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ENSURING ACCESSIBILITY WHILE MANAGING RISING HEALTH CARE COSTS

MAKING HEALTH CARE Mmore AFFORDABLE

Today, as health care costs continue o rise, fewer employers are able to
offer health insurance coverage. As a result, low-wage and part-time workers are often
among those who have the most difficult time finding affordable health benefits. At
UnitedHealth Group, we offer solutions that specifically address their needs.

Our UnitedHealth Basics plans make it possible for employers to provide
basic coverage for preventive, routine and mid-range services with affordable
premiums and no upfront deductibles. This gives people immediate access to
medical care without a large inital investment. The program also includes access to
UnitedHealth Allies, a discount buying plan that provides significant discounts
on many additional expenses, including dental, vision and wellness services. Basics
makes it possible for small businesses — that otherwise would not be able to afford
to offer coverage — 16 provide part-time, hourly and uninsured full-time workers
access to affordable medical coverage.

In addition, our UnitedHealthcare One plan helps those who often fall
through the cracks in the health care system. This short-term plan provides individuals
up to $1 million in coverage for periods of one month to six months, with a range of
deductibles and payment options, as well as flexibility in continuing coverage.

Millions of consumers — and millions of employers —
are looking for their own individual ways to reduce
health care costs; our programs, services and solutions
help them do just that.
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CHARLOTTE

we HELP PATIENTS MAkE
INFORMED DECISIONS

ABOUT THEIR HEALTH CARE

At OptumHealth, we help patients with some of the most
difficult and traumatic medical challenges through our cancer
support outreach, which empowers those with cancer to more
effectively make informed decisions about their own health care.
Our Nurse Coaches deliver a more personalized, compassionate
and value-driven engagement that directly meets the needs of
patients. Here’s what Charlotte of Savannah, Georgia, had to say
about her experience with OptumHealth:

“I was diagnosed with breast cancer a year ago. Your support of
me during this difficult time was beyond any care I have ever received.
The Nurse Coach guided me through the darkest days of my life. She
always had time for my questions. She even called my adult children,
explained everything to them and continued to reassure all of us. I know
this is her job, but she did it with such charm and knowledge — I could
not believe it. The support and kindness I recerved from your organization
will always be remembered by my family and me.”




A YOUNG PATIENT visifs the

SOUTH BRONX HEALTH CENTER foTCHlLDR}ZN AND FAMILIES

[Photo taken as part of a documeniary book project on community heaith centers
sponsared by the United Health Foundation. )
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PROVIDING

PHYSICIANS & HOSPITALS WITH THE

TOOLSTHEY NEED

TAKING THE GUESSWORK OUT OF HEALTH CARE *
CLINICAL SUPPORT *® LESSENING THE PAPERWORK

Finding the right doctor at the right time is often the key to getting
the right treatment. At UnitedHealth Group, we help people find the doctor
they need by maintaining the largest national network of health care providers
in America, one that meets access standards for 98 percent of the United States
population. Qur network includes direct relationships with more than 560,000
physicians and caregivers, approximately 5,000 hospitals and care facilities,
approximately 85,000 dentists and 64,000 pharmacies. In fact, more U.S,
physicians accept UnitedHealthcare than any other insurance plan.

To support that network, each of our physicians is supplied with access
to the best medical information available. As its name suggests, “evidence-
based care” is founded on scientific evidence that helps health care providers
assess the risks and benefits of treatment options. Each year the United Health
Foundation, a not-for-profit, private foundation, distributes the British Medical
Journal's Clinical Evidence Handbook to more than 500,000 physicians and
caregivers in the United States, including those in our network, helping them
to stay current on the latest clinical guidelines. The United Health Foundaton
also supports conducting clinical performance benchmarking to show

physicians how they perform against their peers.
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PROVIDING PHYSICIANS & HOSPITALS WITH THE TOOLS THEY NEED

TAKING THE cUuEsswoRK ouT oF HEALTH CARE

Sharing medical knowledge lies at the heart of everything we do at
UnitedHealth Group. We constantly analyze and organize our findings and pass along
information to medical professionals and individuals. [t sounds simple, but in a field as
complicated as medicine, sorting through the data is not easy.

We store and analyze a remendous wealth of health care information, which
is used to not only monitor, assess and improve health care decision-making, but also
accelerates and enhances the development and testing of innovative treatments,
technology and medicines.

Our Ingenix business unit aggregates and, more importantly, analyzes the
most expansive clinical databases — 26.7 terabytes of integrated medical, laboratory
and pharmacy data - to identify trends, evaluate successful performance and consider
results and costs so that physicians, care providers, insurers and health care payers can
learn from the experience of large populations and usc this information to improve
health care practices.

With access to a vast library of anonymous data about the heaith care
experiences of approximately 15 million individuals, researchers using Ingenix’s
13 Aperio drug registry can identify the effects of new drugs in a way that cannot
be done in clinical trials. i3 Aperio can help researchers find trends in the
experience of consumers using drugs that are new to the market, such as increases
in hospitalizations or certain side effects.

As amazing as it may seem, one of the leading causes of serious injury in
America comes from the prescription of often life-saving medications. Adverse Drug
Reactions, or ADRs, occur when a patient is prescribed either a pharmaceutical product
that produces a dangerous side effect for them specifically, or causes a dangerous
interaction with other drugs they are taking. More than 2 million serious ADRs occur
every year, sometimes tragically resulting in the loss of life. The cost 10 the health care
system is estimated to be an astounding $135 billion.

That’s why UnitedHealth has developed a new technology that will hopefully
reduce ADRs in hospital settings. This new tool, called MedPoint for Hospitals, allows
physicians and hospital staff 1o instantly access pharmacy benefit databases when a patient
is admitted to the hospital. Within seconds, it catalogs the various drugs that an individual
is taking, identifies past ADRs, and proactively identifies potential adverse reactions.
Using Ingenix's vast reservoir of resources, hospitals can more aggressively ensure the
safety of their patients.

Our network includes direct relationships with approximately:

500 THOUSAND 5 THOUSAND

PHYSICEANS S0 ARLGIVI RS [RTIEN FES RN

5 THOUSAND 0.4 THOUSAND

HOSPTIALS &F CARE BACITREDES PIEARNM TS
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PROVIDING PHYSICIANS & HOSPITALS WITH THE TOOLS THEY NEED

cLIiNIcAL SUPPORT

Beyond data sharing, we offer physicians and other care providers direct clinical
support. We are the nation's largest employer of nurse practitioners, One of our more
innovative and effective clinical support programs is free weight scales, which we provide
for patients with congestive heart failure. The scales are connected electronically to
UnitedHealth Group and allow us 1o watch patients for possible weight gain - an indicator
of unwanted fluid build-up in the lungs - and alert a physician, helping them beuer monitor
patient health status.

LESSENING THE PAPERWORK

Physicians make their greatest contributions when they are able to spend time
with patients, not paperwork. That’s why we are working to simplify the administrative
burden on doctors. Qur efforts to improve office functions are an invaluable tool for
streambining and reducing costs in the health care system. In 2003, Uniprise introduced
electronic medical ID cards that use magnetic swipe technology to make it easy to verify
patient eligibility and benefits in seconds.

The ability to instantly access coverage information is
a breakthrough that also simplifies the health care experience
for consumers. One office manager described the program as
one that “made so much sense.”

“Sometimes our patients don’t know what their insurance covers,
and they expect us to know — but it’s really time-consuming to have to
call thewr insurance company for every single claim when they come into
the office, and then go back and have to go through the whole process to
submit a claim once they leave,” the office manager said. “This gives
us all that information in one step. If a procedure isn’t covered, I can
tell the patient the reason right away. Plus, there’s no paperwork involved

now, so the process is much simpler.”
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AARP MEDICARE PLAN participant
RAY with wife DEBRA




INVESTING IN AMERICA’S

PUBLIC HEALTH

PROGRAMS

HELPING AMERICA'S SENIORS ® WORKING WITH KEY $TAKEHOLDERS ¢
PROVIDING OUR NATION'S VETERANS WITH A HELPING HAND ®
HELPING THOSE WHO NEED THE GREATEST ASSISTANCE

For millions of Americans, government health care programs,
such as Medicare, Medicaid and the Veterans Administration, are their
lifelines to good health. At UnitedHealth Group, we seek to be the best
possible stewards of this vast public health system by collaborating with
both federal and state governments, as well as organizations like AARP,

in helping make these lifelines stronger than ever.
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INVESTING IN AMERICA’S PUBLIC HEALTH PROGRAMS

SERVING AMERICA’S SENTORS

Our commitment to the public market is broadly reflected in our work with the
Medicare program for older Americans. Our Ovations business is solely focused on the
health and well-being of older individuals. One in five Medicare recipients participates in
a UnitedHealth Group Medicare program.

Ovations offers among the most comprehensive and personalized Medicare
programs available. Our programs offer health and wellness solutions tailored to seniors’
individual needs, empowering them as health care consuumers and simplifying their
experience with the health care system.

Through an array of Medicare Advantage plans, 1.3 million seniors enjoy
benefits over and above what they get from Medicare for no extra monthly premium
and at a lower out-of-pocket cost.

WORKING wWiTH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

In April 2007, we announced a new agreement with AARP (o extend and broaden
our existing relationship. Also in 2007, we entered into agreements with AARP related to
Medicare supplement and indemnity insurance, the Part D business and our Medicare
Advantage business. The latter agreement gives us an exclusive right to use the AARP
brand on most of our Medicare Advantage offerings through 2014.

In addition to covering a diversified portfolio of Medicare-related and indemnity
insurance products, the new relationship includes a commitment to develop and offer new
products, services and technologies, with a focus on health and wellness solutions that address
the needs of seniors. Our new agreements with AARP also contain commitments regarding
corporate governance, corporate social responsibility, diversity and measures intended to
improve and simplify the health care experience for consumers.

SERVING OUR NATION'S VETERANS
witH THE HELP THEY NEED

Members of the military and their families, who are putting themselves on the line
for our country, as well as our veterans, deserve a health care system that matches their sacrifice
for our nation. That's why in 2007 we created Military and Veterans Health Services. While still
in its early stages of development, Military and Veterans Health Services, working directly with
the Department of Defense and Veterans Affairs, will leverage our vast, integrated resources and
wide-ranging expertise to help our nation's government provide military personnel and veterans
with the best possible affordable health care.
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INVESTING IN AMERICA’S PURBLIC HEALTH PROGRAMS

HELPING THOSE wHO NEED THE GREATEST ASSISTANCE

For the miilions of Americans who rely on Medicaid and state-sponsored health
care initiatives in our AmeriChoice business, we provide some of the most innovative

approaches in the United States for reaching traditionally underserved populations.

AmeriChoice’s health care standards seek to ensure that people have access o
doctors and facilities in the neighborhoods where they live, with medical professienals who
understand their specific needs. AmerniChoice pioneered 24/7 bilingual Service Helplines.
It has also developed its own software 1o monitor member access 1o services and uses

sophisticated clinical risk tools to ensure that members are receiving optimal care.

However, it is the unique AmeriChoice Personal Care Model that provides one

of the most compelling examples of how hands-on clinical support can help improve

access to the highest quality care and potentially save lives.

.

DEDICATION TO SERVICE

Take the experience of Myrtiss Jones, a case
manager at Great Lakes Health Plan in Michigan.
Myrtiss worked with Mike, an AmeriChoice parti-
cipant who had 11 hospital admissions within a
year, all for high blood sugar levels, ranging from

356-1605 mg/dl (less than 120mg/dl is desirable).

Myrtiss called Mike’s personal care physician to
request home care and diabetes education.

“I informed him he was headed for dialysis and other
complications if we did not get his blood sugar under
control, " said Myrtiss. A former homecare nurse,
Myrtiss questioned Mike about his insulin: “Are
you warming the insulin before injecting? Are you
mixing insulin before drawing it up? Are you making
sure you inject insulin info your body when the needle
penetrates the skin?” “He told me no one had ever
shown him how to do these things!” she said,
incredulously. Mike bad also never been to see
an endocrinologist, a specialist in diabetes care
and treatment, so Myrtiss made an appointment
for him. Not long after, Mike called her to say
his last few blood sugar test results were
162, 170, 148 and 101 mg/dl.

“f don’t know who was happier, him or me.” As
Myrtiss’s experience shows, “Case management
really makes a difference in our lives.”
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INVESTING IN AMERICA'S PUBLIC HEALTH PROGRAMS

RAY & DEBRA

SERVING AMERICA’S SENIORS

UnitedHealth Group is the largest provider of Medicare
Part D prescription drug plans, with approximately 6 million
enrollees, saving seniors approximately $30 billion in out-of-pocket
expenses for prescription drugs in aggregate in 2006 and 2007,

Our AARP plans offered by Ovations enable people with
limited incomes (but not eligible for Medicaid) to afford the drug
coverage they need. For Ray, prescription drugs are a significant
part of his health care costs. But, after joining the AARP MedicareRx
plan in 2006, Ray has seen out-of pocket costs decrease by more than
40 percent. On one particular prescription, he pays only $30 for
a drug that would ordinarily cost $285. According to Ray, “AARP
Medicare Part D has given me peace of mind, knowing that it is there when
I need to fill my prescriptions.”
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UNITEDHEALTH GROUDP offers the most

diversificd capabilitics and serves the broadest range

ol needs in the health care markeplace.

We are dedicated to advancing new procucts, new
services and new delivery methods that serve people more
cllcctively and add value o the markemplace.,

By aligning our business interests with socicety’s needs,
UnntedHealth Group strives o solve the significant, pressing
problems that altect the quality and availability of health

CAre SCrVICes.
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UnitedHealthcare

w A UnitedHealth Group Company
.

By applying broad capabilities in innovative new ways,
UnitedHealthcare strives to improve the health care
system's effectiveness for the 140 million people who
buy their own insurance or purchase it through a small
or mid-sized employer.

Broad access to physicians, hospitals and other health care
professionals

UnitedHealthcare's medical network provides people with
meaningful economic advantages and access to more than
560,000 physicians and care professionals and approximately
5,000 hospitals nationwide.

People affected by particularly complex medical conditions
are supported by specialized nerworks, programs and services
in the areas of organ transplantation, complex cancer care,
cardiovascular disease, mental health and substance abuse,
neonatology, infertility and women'’s health issues, and
advanced neurologic, orthopedic and spinal conditions.
UnitedHealtheare will continue to coltaborate with medical
groups to improve health care quality and efficiency, to
promote a transparent environment that enables people to
make informed health choices, and to reward first-rate care.

Improved health care

The UnitedHealth Preminm® Designation program makes

it easier for consumers o make an informed health care
decision, whether it is tinding the right doctor or evaluating
treatment options,

By gathering and sharing data on which treaiments work
best, UnitedHealthcare's proprietny clinical programs help
improve cardiac care, oncology services, women's health
services, primary care and emergency room services, radiology
services, and neuroscience, orthopedics and spinal care,
among other lines of service.

To help consumers get the most appropriate drugs at the
best price, innovative phanmaceutical programs are based on
the: latest clinical evidence, provide consumer incentives and
costeffective procurement, and offer an extensive retail
pharmacy network and state-of-the-art mail services,

Innovative solutions

Aflordable benefit designs feature low monthly premiums,
provide protection in case of major medical emergencies, and
offer wellness resources that help consumers live healthy lives.
To help meed the specific needs of Asian-American, African-
American and Hispanic/Latino consumers, specially tailored
health benefit programs reach out through special disease
management tools and in-culture service support.

New products like EDGE offer consumers the opportunity to
realize greater cost savings when they seek care from specialty
physicians who have been designated for providing high-quality,
efficient care,

Innovative group retiree solutions help employers offer a full
range of workforce benefits.

Uniprise

w A UnitedHealth Group Company
s

Uniprise benefit plans and service solutions are
designed to help large, muliilocation employers, which
today represent more than 50 million consumers,
deliver affordable, effective health and well-being
benefits to employees and their families.

Benefit services and plan designs that engage consumers
Services ranging from health coaches and buyer’s guides, to
cost and quality information tools and wellness programs, (o
health reimbursement acconnts (HRAs) and health savings
accounts (HSAs), help people use health resources more
effectively.

A proprietary Consumer Activation Index®™ uses data to
analyze whether employees consistently take advantage

of available resources for their personal health care and
wellness needs.

Healih care seivices are available for employees located overseas
to serve the increasing needs of multinational employers.

Health care banking seolutions give consumers financial

control and flexibility

To help individuals receive care when and where they need

it, integrated inedical henefit ID cards facilitate physician access
to personal eligibility information, health records and real-time
service tools.

For consumers who have multiple tax-advantaged health care
accounts, Uniprise offers debit cards with "mualtipurse”
capability, which ean access flexible spending accounts and
health reimbursement accounts,

Lines of credit attached to existing health account debin

cards provide consumers who don’t have funds available in
their health care savings accounts with an alfordable alternative.,

Simplified, personalized support

A uniform, large-scale operating environment improves the
cfficiency and accuracy of health care administration for the
nation’s largest employers.

Dedicated Internet service portals offer real-time information
and services for conswmers, employers, physicians and brokers,
A [ully integrated health and productivity strategy inclusive of
medical, behavioral, disability and absence management under
one total worklorce management system helps generate
meaningful and sustinable savings for employers and a more
holistic and personalized consumer experience.,




OVATIONS

w A UnitedHealth Group Comparty

Ovations is focused on S(:'rving Americans over the

age of 50. It is the largest business dedicated to meeting
the growing health and well-being needs of aging
individuals in the nation, serving one in five Medicare
heneficiaries through a comprehensive and diversified
array of products and services.

Ovations Insurance Solutions

Ovations Insurance Solutiens provides innovative, affordable
health insurance (o meet the diverse needs of older Americans
50 and over and covers nearly 3.8 million members. [ts
partnership with AARP constitutes the largest insurance
program for people age 50 and over, including the largest
Medicare supplement progrim in America.

Evercare

Evercare is one of the nation’s largest care coordination
programs for people who have long-term or advanced illnesses,
are older or have disabilities, Evercare’s Medicare and
Medicaid plans and services enhance health and indepen-
dence by providing a nurse praciitioner or carc manager

as a personal guide through the complexities of health care.

SecureHorizons

SecureHorizons provides a portfotio of Medicare Advantage
services to the rapidly growing population of Medicare-eligible
people. Products include network-based and non-network-based
solutions that span Medicare Advantage, Medicare Advantage
with Prescription Drug, Private Fee For Service, and Medicare
supplement programs. ln prescription drugs, the AARP
MedicareRx Plans and UnitedHealth Rx are the ondy Part D
plans with the AARP name. Whether people are looking for
access to thousands of pharmacies or the most protection in
the coverage gap, the AARF MedicareRx Plans could help
lower prescription drug costs and provide the security they need.
The AARP MedicareRx Plans are available to all eligible
Medicare beneficianes, including members and non-members
of AARP. In addition, our UnitedHealth Rx plans turther
increase consumer choice for seniors and people

with disabilities.

Ameri@oi?oe

w‘ A UnitedHaalth Group Compamy

State Medicaid programs cover approximately 50 million
people. AmeriChoice, through its innovative programs
and services, helps states provide health care services that
are more affordable and sustainable, and improve the
health of citizens participating in these programs.

Innovative services expand access to health care

Approximately 1.7 million beneficiaries of Medicaid, State
Childlren’s Mealth Insurance Programs and refated government-
sponsored health care programs gain access to health care
through AmeriChoice heahth plans.

Program management services, including ¢linical care consulting
yv benefits services, and administrative

and ll]illlilgcl]]tl‘ll. ph;l['l!]:

and technology services, help government agencies improve health
outcomes and lower overall costs for state-sponsored heahth care

programs.

Personalized clinical services promote better health

To help high-risk individuals receive timely, effective care,

unique clinical care services coordinate resources among family
members, physicians, other health care providers and community-
based resources through hands-on clinical and social care
management,

Specialized disease management programs help people with
asthma, diabetes, congestive heart failure, sickle cell disease,
chronic abstructive pulmonary discase, pneumonia, special needs,
lead poisoning and HIV/AIDS — conditions statistically more
common among medically vulnerable individuals — maintain the
hest possible health,

Distincive outreach and education programs developed with the
help of leacling rescarchers and clinicians are used o targes and
intervene in high-risk pregnancies and other conditions prevaten
in the individuals served by AmeriChoice, as well as 1o ensure
preventive care for children and aduls,

Targeted programs addressing physical and other barriers to care
are coordinated routinely (o ensure individuals are not prevented
from accessing needed primary and specialty care due (o functional
disability, language, tanspurtation or service access within a specific
geography.

Sophisticated outreach capabilities help improve quality of care
Rather than waiting for people to seek help, sophisticated data
twols proactively identify individuals who need care management
services, so they can receive earlier and more consisient reaument,
avoid medicat complications and maintain bener overall health.




OptumHealth..

w‘ A UnitedHealth Sroup Company

OptumHealth helps more than 58 million Americans
navigate the health care system, finance their health
care needs and achieve their health and well-being
goals. It does this by working with employers (large
and small}, health plans, payers, the public sector and
directly with individual consumers.

In late 2007, UnitedHealth Group rebranded its
specialty businesses as OptumHealth, reinforcing their
personalized, caring and lifelong relationships with
consumers. The unified OptumHealth consists of four
core businesses: Care Solutions, Behavioral Solutions,
Financial Solutions and Specialty Benefits.

Care Solutions delivers programs in care and disease
management, decision support, physical health, wellness and
complex medical conditions. This business also houses
OptumHealth's innovative consumer solutions services.
Behavioral Solutions provides innovative, evidence-based
programs in the areas of menial health, substance abuse, and
work/life balance.

Financial Services helps individuals finance their health care
needs (such as with health savings accounts) and facilitates
the transfer of money and data between health care providers
and payers.

Specialty Benefits provides one-stop shopping for ancitlury
services such as dental, vision, life, disability and stop loss,

INGENIX.

m' A UnitedHealth Group Companty

Ingenix delivers data, analytics, research and consulting
services for health insurers and payers, large employers,
government organizations, life sciences companies,
physicians, hospitals and providers, consumers and other
participants in the health care system.

Software, data and analytics identify trends, enable factbased
management and streamline administrative processes

To help customers administer and deliver health care more
effectively, Ingenix analyzes their medical and cost trends
using health care utilization reporting and analytics, physician
clinical performance benchmarking, analytic and data tools
for medical cost wrend management, and physician
credentialing and provider data management services.

Vast databases of integrated medical, pharmacy and lab dawa
are anahyzed to uncover meaningful, actionable insights
customers can use Lo improve their performance.

To help consumers make informed health care decisions,
Ingenix’s easy-to-use tools provide accurate information on
the quality of hospitals, physicians and care providers as well
as the effectivencss and cost of weatments.

Expert software, content and consulting services help clients
reduce administrative errors, streamline claims handling and
combat fraud.

By analyzing health care patterns over time, predictive models
help customers specifically detect high-risk medical cases,
respond to health care trends and manage care more effectively.
The Ingenix Health Information Exchange helps physicians,
hospitals, health plans and other industry participants access
and exchange critical financial and clinical data on a real-
time basis.

Pharmaceutical services support the safe introduction

of new drugs

Specialized data and analysis support the development of
effective drugs and biotechnology products.

Clinical research operations in more than 58 countries focus
on broad therapeutic development categaries, including
ancology, the central nervous system, respiratory and infectious
disease, cardiology, endocrinology and metabolic disease.
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w‘ A UnitedHealth Group Cormpany

The total national health expenditure for prescription
drugs is expected to grow from $249 billion in 2006 to
$521 billion in 2014. Key drivers of this market expansion
include the aging and overall growth in the population,
introductions of new drugs and expanded use of
specialty pharmaceuticals.

Prescription Solutions is one of the largest pharmacy
benefit managers in the United States. Prescription
Solutions serves the evolving needs of an expanding and
diversified list of clients that include some of UnitedHealth
Group’s growing health plan businesses as well as external
employer groups, union trusts, and commercial health
plans.

Prescription Solutions helps its clients to achieve a low-cost,
high-quality drug benefit by:

Negotiating discounted prescription services through retail
pharmacy networks;

Using its purchasing scale to negotiate rebates and discounts
on brand and generic drugs;

Encouraging the appropniate use of generic medications;
Providing more affordable and convenient access to drugs
through dispensing maintenance prescriptions and speciatty
pharmaceuticals by mail; and

Administering drug utilization review and clinical programs
designed o encourage appropriate drug use and reduce risk

for complications,

Flexible benefit management approaches help a diverse client
base to achieve the best value in pharmaceutical purchasing
Clinical approaches — Prescription Solutions” clinical programs
help individuals with ehronic discases 1o manage their medica-
tions to improve their overall health and productivity.

Networks - Prescription Solutions offers broad access and
meaningful discounts 1o more than 19 million people nationwide
through 64,000 retail network pharmacics,

Mail service capabilities — Fullservice facilities in California and
Kansas and a third site set to be operational by the end of 2009.

A strong tradition of delivering vital services and products
directly to consumers

Specialty Pharmacy - Prescription Solutions’ in-house
specialty pharmacy purchases, dispenses and manages complex
and high-cost drug therapies.

Consumer Health Products - This Prescription Solutions
business provides convenient distribution directly to members’
homes of diabetic testing supplies and other specialized
medical supplies, over-thecounter items, vitamins, minerals
and supplements,
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United Health Foundation

UnitedHealthcare
Children’s Foundation'

o,

The United Health Foundation and the UnitedHealtheare Children’s Foundation are helping people live healthier lives.
From expanding access to quality health care services for families who live in challenging circumstances to helping health
care professionals achieve better, more cost-¢ffective outcomes, the work of our Foundations is making a real difference

in communities across America.

A Commitment to Caring for the Most Vulnerable Americans
As the number of our nztion’s uninsured has increased to an
alarming 47 million Americans, community health centers are
playing a vital role in serving the health care needs ol millions
of Americans. That's why the United Health Foundation
continues to aggressively support Community Health Centers

of Extetlence with both wechnical assistance and a multi-year

$17 million charitable comnmitment.

The results to date have been dramatic. According 10 a recent
study by George Washington University, the community health
ceniers supported by the United Health Foundation are
providing care for the nation’s most medically underserved on

par with and even above national standards,

In New York City, the South Bronx Health Center for
Children and Families has increased access and enhanced care
while serving nearly 10,000 patients annually. In additien,
comprehensive family medical services, including prevention
and cancer screening, are being made available to the city's
homeless shelters via mobile medical units.

At the Jefferson Reaves Senior Health Center in Miami's
impoverished Overtown neighborhood, diabetes patients
are having their care managed at levels well above national
averages, thanks o a full range of high quality care services,
including nutritional counseling provided in English and
Spanish.

These efforts are helping thousands of adults and children
receive quality comprehensive care that would otherwise be
unavailable, and are creating a new model of care that health
centers throughout the country can replicate in their own
communities.

A Commitment to Health Care Quality Excellence

To achieve the hest possible health outcomes for their
patients, health professionals need access to the latest
medical information. That's why United Health Foundation
partners with heatth rescarch agencies, medical specialty
societies and others, to translate the best science into
practice, making reliable medical evidence available 1w
clinicians across the United States.

One Foundation strategy is its Advancing Clinical Evidence
initiative, or ACE, which recognizes and supports the
valuable contributions that medical specialty societies make
in improving the quality of clinical health care delivery in
America,

As just one example, the American Society of Transplant Surgeons
is the rectpient of 4 $25,000 Foundation grant to plan and develop
new wuys to evaluate transplant surgeons’ performance.

Since 2000, the Foundation has donated $42 million to help
advance clinical excellence,

A Commitment to the Next Generation of Health Leaders

Across the counary, the United Health Foundation Diverse Scholars
program is helping minority students like Sharisa Simon reach their
higher education goals and then develop careers in health care.
Through a grant partnership between the United Health Foundation
and the Congressional Black Caucus Foundinion, Sharisa received a
college scholarship to study nursing at Towson University in Maryland.
Today, she is that much closer 1o achieving her dream of being a
nurse anesthesiologist. By providing 2 hand to excellent students like
Sharisa, the Foundation is helping increase the numnber of qualified
yet underrepresented graduates entering the health workforce while

improving the quality and delivery of culturally competent heahh care.

A Commiunent for Healthy Changes

Now in its 18th year, America’s Health Rankings: A Call to Action

for People & Their Communities is the Foundation’s comprehensive
annual report, offering a unique in«lepth, state-by-state analysis of
overall health. In partnership with the American Public Health
Association and Partnership for Prevention, the latest report raised
awareness about the declining overall health of the nution despite
progress in several key health indicators. These findings are helping
catalyze discussion and spur action across America to stimulate
improvements in the health of comemunitics, states and the nation
as a whole.

UNITEDHEALTHCARE
CHILDREN'’S FOUNDATION

Families struggling 1o pay for child iedical services received much-
needed help lase vear through grants awarded by UnitedHealthcare
Children's Foundarion (UHCCF), a public non-profit charity, The
Foundation’s medical grants helped the lives of 450 children in

2007 by filling the gap between which medical services children need
and what is provided under their parents’ cominercial health henefit
plans. Parents and legal guardians can apply for grants up w $5,000
for child health care services by completing an application available
on the UHCCF web site www.uhcclorg.
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2007 FINANCIAL RESULTS

UNITEDHEALTH GROUP HIGHLIGHTS

* UnitedHealth Group achieved growth across each of its reporting segments and generated earnings from
operations of $7.8 hillion, up 12 percent over 2006,

* Diluted net earnings per common share were $3.42, an increase of 15 percent over 2006.

* Revenue was more than $75.4 billion, a 5 percent increase over 2006.

* Cash flows from operations reached $5.9 billion, representing 126 percent of 2007 net earnings.

THE 2007 FINANCIAL RESULTS ON PAGES 46 THROUGH 49 SHOULD BE READ TOGETHER WITH THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND NOTES IN THE 2007 ANNUAL REPORT OX FORM t0-K. THE 2007 ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10:K IS AN INTEGRAL

PART OF THIS SUMMARY DOCUMENT.

(dollars in millions, except per share data)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2007 2006 200% 2004 2003
CONSOLIDATED OPERATING RESULTS

Revenues $ 75431 § V1542 0§ 46425 § 38217 § 29,696
Earnings from Operations $ 7B & 698 § 508 $ 388 § 2671
Net Earnings $ 4,654 $ 4150 $ 3,08 § 2411 $ 1,665
Return on Shareholders’ Equity 224 % 222% 25.2% 29.0% 346 %
Basic Net Earnings per Common Share $ 35 § 309 § 244 $ 193  § 1.40
Diluted Net Earnings per Common Share $§ 342 § 297 5§ 231 § 18 § 134
Common Stock Dividends per Share 3 030 $ 030 3 015 $ 015 $ .008
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLLOWS FROM {Usen Fur)

Operating Activities $ 5877 $ 652 % 4,083 $ 3,923 $ 29138
Investing Activities $ Q14n 8 (2101) 0§ (3489) $ (1.644) § {745)
Financing Activities $ (3185 § 474 8 836 § 550y $§ (1,036)
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL CONDITION

AS OF DECEMBER 11

Cash and Investments $ 92986 $ 20582 $ 14,982 $ 12,953 § 9477
Total Assets $ 50,899 $ 48,320 $ 41,288 $ 27862 $ 17668
Total Debt g 11,008 § 7456 § 7,095 b1 4,011 £ 1979
Shareholders’ Equity § 20068 § 20810 § 17815 $ 10772 § 523
Debt—to—Toml-Capila] Ratio 354 % 26.4 % 285 % 2711 % 274 %
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REVENUES EARNINGS FROM OPERATIONS OPERATING MARGINS
(in millions) (fn millions)
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2007 FINANCIAL RESULTS

HEALTH CARE SERVICES HIGHLIGHTS
(includes UnitrdHealthcare, Uniprise, Guations, and AmeriChoice)

¢ UnitedHealthcare and Uniprise combined full-year revenues of $40.3 billion increased by $821 million or 2 percent
over 2006 results, driven primarily by yield increases,

+ For UnitedHealthcare and Uniprise, commercial fee-based enrollment increased by 305,000 members or 2 percent over
2006, and consumer-directed health program enrollment showed a strong increase of 425,000 members, or 22 percent,
over 2006.

» Ovations revenues of $26.5 billion increased more than $1.8 billion or 7 percent over 2006 results, with revenue
advances in its AARP Medicare supplement, SecureHorizons Medicare Advantage, Evercare chronic and elderly,
and Part D businesses.

= AmeriChoice 2007 revenues were $4.5 billion, an increase of 20 percent over 2006 results. Year-end membership for
AmeriChoice was 1.7 million, an increase of 17 percent over 2006. AmeriChoice serves 50 different statesponsored programs.

OPTUMHEALTH HIGHLIGHTS

+ OpwumHealth revenues increased $579 million, or 13 percent, to $4.9 billion in 2007 compared with year-earlier results.

« Full-year earnings from operations at OptumHealth grew $86 million, or 11 percent, year<wer-year to $895 million.

+ The OptumHealth operating margin of 18.2 percent in 2007 compares with 18.6 percent in 2006. The year-over-vear
margin change reflects strong growth from public sector clients that are comtributing relatively large per client revenues
at comparatively lower overall margins.

= OptumHealth Financial Services (formerly Exante) moved $19 billion in payments electronically to health system
providers during 2007, representing 80 percent growth in electronic payments year-over-year. The business also reached
$460 million in assets under management.

INGENIX HIGHLIGHTS

* Ingenix revenue topped $1 billion in 2007, with full-year revenue of $1.3 billion. This represents an increase
of $348 million over 2006.

+ Ingenix reported 36 percent growth in revenues and 51 percent growth in operating earnings year-over-year.

* Operating margin increased from 18.4 percent in 2006 to 20.4 percent in 2007,

* Revenue backlog grew o $1.7 billion a December 31, 2007, a 46 percent year-over-year growth,

PRESCRIPTION SOLUTIONS HIGHLIGHTS

* During 2007, Prescription Selutions was established as a reporting segment of UnitedHealth Group and continued
to strengthen its capabilities as it positioned for growth.,

s On January |, 2007, Prescription Solutions began providing prescription drug benefit services to approximately
4 million additional seniors. Driven by this growth, Prescription Solutions revenues increased $9.2 billion or
224 percent for full year 2007, reaching $13.2 billion,

» Because of the reladonship between Cvations, UnitedHealtheare and Prescription Solutions, approximately
$12.4 billion of the full-year 2007 revenue is eliminated in the intercompany elimination process. The fullvear operating
margin year-over-year change reflects in part the comparatively lower margin earned in the high volume Ovations Part I
prescription drug service contract,

+ Fullyear earnings from operations grew $130 million or 94 percent to 3269 million over comparable 2006 results.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Summary Annual Report may contain statements,
estimates, projections, guidance or outlook that constitute
“forward-looking” statements as defined under U.S. federal
securities laws. Generally the words “believe,” “expect,”
“intend,” “estimate,” “anticipate,” “plan,” “project,” *will™
and similar expressions, identify forward-lcoking statements,
which generally are not historical in nature, These
statements may contain information about financial prospects,
economic conditions, trends and uncerwinties, We caution
that actual resulis could differ materially from those that
management expects, depending on the outcome of certain
factors. These forward-looking statements involve risks and
uncertainties that may cause UnitedHealth Group's actual
results to differ materially from the results discussed in the
forwardlooking statemenus, Some factors that could cause
results to differ materially from the forward-looking statements
include: the potential consequences of the findings announced
on October 15, 2006 of the investigation by an Independent
Committee of directors of our historical stock option practices;
the consequences of the restatement of our previous financial
statements, related governmental reviews, including a formal
investigation by the Securities and Exchange Commission, and
review by the Internal Revenue Service, U.S. Congressional
committees, U8, Attorney for the Southern District of New York
and Minnesota Attorney General, a related review by the Special
Litigation Commiuee of the Company, and related shareholder
derivative actions, including whether court approval of the

settlement agreements between the Company and certain named

defendants and the dismissal of the derivitive claiins against all
named defendants is obtained, shareholder demands and
purported securities and Employee Retirement Income Security
Act class actions, the resolution of matiers currently subject 1o
an injunction issued hy the United States District Court for the
District of Minnesota, a purporied notice of acceleration with
respect to certain of the Company’s debt securities based upon
an alleged event of default under the indenture governing such
securities, and recent management and director changes, and
the potential impact of cach of these matters on our business,
credlit ratings and debt; increases in health care costs that are
higher than we anticipated in establishing our premium rates,
including increased consumption of or costs of medical services;

heightened competition as a result of new entrants into our market,
and consolidation of health care companies and suppliers; events
that may negatively affect our contracts with AARP; uncertainties
regarding changes in Medicare, including coordinaton of inform-
ation systems and accuracy of certain assumptions; funding risks
with respect to revenues received from Medicare and Medicaid
programs; lailure to achieve business growth wrgets, including
membership and enroliment; increases in costs and other liabilities
associated with increased litigation, tegislative activity and govern-
ment regulation and review of our industry; our ability to execute
contracts on competitive terms with physicians, hospitals and other
service providers; regulatory and other risks associated with the
pharmacy benefits management industry; failure to maintain
cffective and efficient information sysiems, which could result in the
loss of existing customers, difficulties in attracting new customers,
difficulties in determining medical costs estimates and appropriate
pricing, customer and physician and health care provider disputes,
regulatory violations, increases in operating costs, or other adverse
consequences; possible impairment of the valug of our intangible
assets if future results do not adequately support goodwill and
intangible assets recorded for businesses that we acquire; potential
noncompliance by our business associates with patient privacy data;
misappropriation of our proprietary technology; failure 1o complete
or receive anticipated benefits of acquisitions; change in debt 10
total capital ratio that is lower or higher than we anticipated;
the potential consequences of the New York Attorney General’s
investigation into our provider reimbursement practices; and the
ourcome of the divestiture of our individual SecureHorizons Medicare
Advantage HMO plans in Clark and Nye Counties (Nevada) and
the integration of the operations of the Company and Sierra Health
Services, Inc. after the divestiture.

This list of important factors is not intended 1o be exhaustive.
A further list and description of some of these risks and uncertainties
can be found in our repons filed with the Securilies and Exchange
Commission from time to time, including annual reports on Form
10K, quarierly reports on Form 108-0Q and currem reports on Form
8K Any or all forward-looking statements we make may turn out 10
be wrong. You should not place undue reliance on forward-looking
staternenis, which speak only as of the date they are made. We do not
undertake to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements.




INVESTOR INFORMATION

Market Price of Common Stock

The following 1able shows the range of high and low

sates prices for the company's common stoek as reported on
the New York Stock Exchange. These prices do not include

commissions or fees associated with purchasing or selling this

security,
HIGH LOW

2008

First Quarter THRU FEBRUARY 15, 2008 $57.86 $44.00
2007

First Quarter §57.10 §50.51
Second Quarter $5590 $50.70
Third Quarter $54.10 $45.82
Fourth Quarter $59.46  $46.59
2006

First Quarter $6293  $53.20
Second Quarter $ 56.60 §41.44
Third Quarter $5284  $44.29
Fourth Quarter $5446  $45.12

As of February 15, 2008, the company had 14,414 sharebolders of record.

Shareholder Account Questions
Our transfer agent, Wells Fargo Shareowner Services, can help
you with a variety of sharcholder-related services, including:

- Change of address

- Laost stock cenificales

- Transfer of stock to another person

- Additonal administrative services

You can write to them at
Wells Fargo Shareowner Services
P.O. Box 64854
St. Paul, Minnesoa 551640854

Or you can call our transfer agent toll free ac (800) 4689716
or locally at (651) 4504064,

You can e-mail our transfer agent ac
stocktransier@wellsfargo.com

Investor Relations

You can contact UnitedHealth Group Investor Relations to order,
without charge, financial documents such as the Annual Report on
Form 10-K and the Sumsmary Annual Report. You can write to us at:

Invester Relations, MNO0OS-T930
UnitedHealth Group

P.O. Box 1459

Minneapolis, Minnesota 55440-1459

You can also obtain information about UnitedHealth Group
and its businesses, including financial documents, online at
www.unitedhealthgroup.com.

Annual Meeting

We invite UnitedHealth Group shareholders to attend our annual
meeting, which will be held on Thursday, June 3, 2008, 10:00 a.m.
Central Time at The Children's Theater Company, 2400 Third
Avenue South, Minneapolis, Minnesota. You will need to bring your
admission card with you to the annual meeting in order 1o be
admitted.

Dividend Policy

UnitedHealth Group’s Board of Directors established the company's
dividend policy in August 1990. The policy requires the Board o
review the company’s financial statements following the end of each
fiscal year and decide whether it is advisable to declare a dividend on
the outstanding shares of common stock.

Shareholders of record on April 2, 2007 received an annual dividend
for 2007 of $0.03 per share. On February 19, 2008, the board approved
an annual dividend for 2008 of $0.03 per share. The dividend was paid
on April 16, 2008 to shareholders of record on April 2, 2008.

New York Steck Exchange - Stock Listing & Corporate Governance
The company's common stock is traded on the New York Stock
Exchange (NYSE) under the symbol UNH. As required by the NYSE,
the company submitted an unqualified certification of its chief
executive officer to the NYSE in 2007.

The company has also filed as exhibits to its Annual Report on

Form 10K for the year ended December 31, 2007 the chiel executive
officer and chief financial officer certifications required under the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act.
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF
1934 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

OR

[0 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934

Commission fite number: 1-10864

UNITEDHEALTH GROUP INCORPORATED

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

MINNESOTA 41-1321939
(State or other jurisdiction of (LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)

UNITEDHEALTH GROUP CENTER

9900 BREN ROAD EAST
MINNETONKA, MINNESOTA 55343
{Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (952) 935-1300

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

COMMON STOCK, $.01 PAR YALUE NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE, INC.
(Title of each class)} (Name of each exchange on which registered)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: NONE

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities
Act.  Yes No [

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the
Act. Yes [] No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to
file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes No [J

Indicate by checkmark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation 5-K is not contained herein, and
will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by
reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a
smaller reporting company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer”, “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting
company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer []

Non-accelerated filer [] Smaller reporting company []

(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange

Act). Yes [] No

The aggregate market value of voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant as of June 29, 2007, was $67,267,773,208

(based on the last reported sale price of $51.14 per share on June 29, 2007, on the New York Stock Exchange).*

As of February 15, 2008, there were 1,251,382,699 shares of the registrant’s Common Stock, $.01 par value per share, issued

and outstanding.

Note that in Part III of this report on Form 10-K, we “incorporate by reference” certain information from our Definitive Proxy

Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on Jure 5, 2008. This document will be filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission (SEC) within the time period permitted by the SEC. The SEC allows us to disclose important

information by referring to it in that manner. Please refer to such information.

* QOunly shares of voting stock held beneficialty by directors, executive officers and subsidiaries of the Company have been
excluded in determining this number,
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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

INTRODUCTION

Overview

UnitedHealth Group Incorporated is a diversified health and well-being company, serving approximately
70 million Americans (the terms “we,” “our,” “us” or the “Company” used in this report refer to UnitedHealth
Group Incorporated and our subsidiaries). Our focus is on enhancing the performance of the health system and
improving the overall health and well-being of the people we serve and their communities. We work with
approximately 560,000 physicians and other health care professionals, approximately 4,800 hospitals and other
key partners to expand access to high quality health care. We help people get the care they need at an affordable
cost, support the physician/patient relationship, and empower people with the information, guidance and tools
they need to make personal health choices and decisions.

During 2007, we managed approximately $100 billion in aggregate health care spending on behalf of the
constituents and consumers we served. Qur primary focus is on improving the health care system by simplifying
the administrative components of health care delivery, promoting evidence-based medicine as the standard for
care, and providing relevant, actionable data that physicians, health care professionals, consumers, employers and
other participants in health care can use to make better, more informed decisions.

Through our diversified family of businesses, we leverage core competencies in advanced technology-based
transactional capabilities; health care data, knowledge and information; and health care resource organization and
care facilitation to improve access to health and well-being services, simplify the health care experience, promote
quality and make health care more affordable.

QOur revenues are derived from premium revenues on risk-based products; fees from management, administrative,
technology and consulting services; sales of a wide variety of products and services related to the broad health
and well-being industry; and investment and other income. Until the fourth quarter of 2007, we conducted our
business primarily through operating groups in the following segments:

s Health Care Services, which included our UnitedHealthcare, Ovations and AmeriChoice businesses;

*  Uniprise;

* OptumHealth, which reflects the rebranding of Specialized Care Services during the third quarter of
2007; and

* Ingenix.

During the fourth quarter of 2007, we completed the transition to our new segment reporting structure which
reflects how our chief operating decision maker now manages our business. Our new reporting structure has four
reporting segments:

* Health Care Services, which now includes our Commercial Markets (UnitedHealthcare and Uniprise),
Ovations and AmeriChoice businesses;

¢ OptumHealth;
¢ Ingenix; and
* Prescription Solutions {formerly included in the Ovations business).

For a discussion of our financiai results by segment, see ltem 7 “— Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”




Additional Information

UnitedHealth Group Incorporated was incorporated in Janvary 1977 in Minnesota. Our executive offices are
located at UnitedHealth Group Center, 9900 Bren Road East, Minnetonka, Minnesota 55343; our telephone
number is (952) 936-1300.

You can access our website at www.unitedhealthgroup.com to learn more about our Company. From that site,
you can download and print copies of our annual reports to sharcholders, annual reporis on Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, and current reports on Form 8-K, zlong with amendments to those reports. You can also
download from our website our Articles of Incorporation, bylaws and corporate governance policies, including
our Principles of Governance, Board of Directors Committee Charters, and Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics. We make periodic reports and amendments available, free of charge, as soon as reasonably practicable
after we file or furnish these reports to the SEC. We will also provide a copy of any of our corporate governance
policies published on our website free of charge, upon request. To request a copy of any of these documents,
please submit your request to: UnitedHealth Group Incorporated, 9900 Bren Road East, Minnetonka, MN 55343,
Attn: Corporate Secretary.

Our transfer agent, Wells Fargo Shareowner Services, can help you with a variety of shareholder-related services,
including change of address, lost stock certificates, transfer of stock to another person and other administrative
services. You can write to our transfer agent at: Wells Fargo Shareowner Services, P.O. Box 64854, St. Paul,
Minnesota 55164-0854, email stocktransfer@wellsfargo.com, or telephone (800) 468-9716 or (651) 450-4064.

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS SEGMENTS

HEALTH CARE SERVICES

Cur Health Care Services segment consists of the foltowing businesses: Commercial Markets (UnitedHealthcare
and Uniprise}, Ovations and AmeriChoice. The financial results of Commercial Markets, Ovations and
AmeriChoice have been aggregated in the Health Care Services reporting segment due to their similar economic
characteristics, products and services, types of customers, distribution methods and operational processes, and
regulatory environment. These businesses also share significant common assets, including our contracted
networks of physicians, health care professionals, hospitals and other facilities, information technology
infrastructure and other resources.

Commercial Markets

UnitedHealthcare. UnitedHealthcare offers a comprehensive array of consumer-oriented health benefit plans and
services for public sector and small and mid-sized private sector employers, and individuals nationwide.
UnitedHealthcare facilitated access to health care services on behalf of nearly 15 million Americans as of
December 31, 2007. With its risk-based product offerings, UniledHealthcare assumes the risk of both medical
and administrative costs for its customers in return for a monthly premium, which is typically at a fixed rate for a
one-year period. UnitedHealthcare also provides administrative and other management services to customers that
self-insure the medical costs of their employees and their dependents, for which UnitedHealthcare receives a
fixed service fee per individual served. These customers retain the risk of financing medical benefiis for their
employees and their dependents, while UnitedHealthcare provides coordination and facilitation of medical
services, customer and health care professional services and access to a contracted network of physicians,
hospitals and other health care professionals. Small employer groups are more likely to purchase risk-based
products because they are less willing to bear a greater potential liability for health care expenditures.
UnitedHealthcare also offers a variety of non-employer based insurance options for purchase by individuals,
which are designed to meet the health coverage needs of these consumers and their families.

UnitedHealthcare offers its products through affiliates that are usually licensed as insurance companies or as
health maintenance organizations (HMOs). UnitedHealthcare’s product strategy centers on several principles:
consumer choice, broad access to health professionals, use of data and science to promote better outcomes,
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quality service and affordability. Integrated wellness programs and services help individuals make informed
decisions, maintain a healthy lifestyle and optimize health outcomes by coordinating access to care services and
providing personalized, targeted education and information services.

UnitedHealthcare arranges for discounted access to care through approximately 560,000 physicians and other
health care professionals, and 4,800 hospitals across the United States. The consolidated purchasing capacity
represented by the individuals UnitedHealth Group serves makes it possible for UnitedHealthcare to contract for
cost-effective access to a large number of conveniently located care professionals. Directly or through
UnitedHealth Group’s family of companies, UnitedHealthcare offers:

» A comprehensive range of benefit plans integrating medical, ancillary and alternative care products so
customers can choose benefits that are right for them;

«  Affordability across a broad set of price points and a wide product line, from offerings covering essential
needs to comprehensive benefit plans, all of which offer access to our broad-based proprietary network of
contracted physicians, hospitals and other health care professionals with economic benefits reflective of the
aggregate purchasing capacity of our organization,

» Innovative clinical programs — built around an extensive clinical data set and the principles of evidence-
based medicine;

« Consumer access to information about physician and hospital claims-based performance assessment through
the UnitedHealth Premium program,

+ Physician and facility access to performance feedback information to support continuous quality
improvement;

+ Care facilitation services that use several identification tools, including proprietary predictive technology to
identify individuals with significant gaps in care and unmet needs or risks for potential health problems, and
then facilitate appropriate interventions;

» Disease and condition management programs 1o help individuals address significant, complex discase states;
and

« Convenient self-service tools for health transactions and information.

UnitedHealthcare’s regional and national access to broad, affordable and quality networks of health care
professionals has advanced over the past several years, with significant increases in access to services throughout
the United States. UnitedHealthcare has also organized health care alliances with select regional not-for-profit
health plans to facilitate greater customer access and affordability.

We believe that UnitedHealthcare’s innovation distinguishes its product offerings from its competition. Its
consumer-oriented health benefits and services value individual choice and control in accessing health care.
UnitedHealthcare has programs that provide health education, admission counseling before hospital stays, care
advocacy to help avoid delays in patients’ stays in the hospital, support for individuals at risk of needing
intensive treatment and coordination of care for people with chronic conditions. Data-driven networks and
clinical management are organized around clinical lines of service such as behavioral health; cardiology;
congenital heart disease; kidney disease; oncology; neuroscience; orthopedics; spine; women’s health; primary
care and transplantation to provide consumers with the necessary resources and information to make more
informed choices when managing their health. UnitedHealthcare also offers comprehensive and integrated
pharmaceutical management services that achieve lower costs by using formulary programs that drive better unit
costs for drugs, benefit designs that encourage consumers to use drugs that offer the best value and outcomes,
and physician and consumer programs that support the appropriate use of drugs based on clinical evidence.

UnitedHealthcare’s distribution system consists primarily of brokers and direct and Internet marketing sales in
the individual market; brokers in the small employer group market; and brokers and other consultant-based or
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direct sales for large employer and public sector groups. UnitedHealthcare’s direct distribution efforts are
generally limited to the individual market, portions of the large employer group and public sector markets, and
cross-selling of specialty products to existing customers.

Uniprise. Uniprise delivers health care and well-being services nationwide to large national employers,
individual consumers and other health care organizations through two related business units: Uniprise Strategic
Solutions (USS} and Definity Health. Each business unit works with other UnitedHealth Group businesses to
deliver a complementary and integrated array of services. USS delivers strategic health and well-being solutions
to large national employers. Definity Health provides consumer-driven health plans and services to employers
and their employees. As of December 31, 2007, USS and Definity Health served approximately 11.1 million
individuals,

Uniprise provides innovative and customized benefit solutions — supported by clinically integrated care
coordination services, customized care engagement programs, wellness and preventive care programs, broad and
appropriate access to health care professionals, negotiated cost savings and simplified, efficient administration —
that offer meaningful financial value and promote quality health outcomes. Uniprise has the ability to link
disparate service and affordability solutions across the United States through a single and scalable system
infrastructure, providing a unique competitive advantage in the national employer services business,

USS provides comprehensive and customized administrative, benefits and service solutions for large employers
and other organizations with more than 5,000 full-time employees in multiple locations. USS customers
generally retain the risk of financing the medical benefits of their employees and their dependents and USS
provides coordination and facilitation of medical services; transaction processing; consumer and health care
professional services; and access to contracted networks of physicians, hospitals and other health care
professionals for a fixed service fee per individual served. As of December 31, 2007, USS served 415 employers,
including 175 of the Fortune 500 companies.

Definity Health provides innovative consumer health care solutions that enable consumers to take ownership and
control of their health care benefits. Definity Health’s products include high-deductible consumer-driven benefit
plans coupled with Health Reimbursement Accounts (HRAs) or Health Savings Accounts (HSAs), and are
offered on a self-funded and fully insured basis. Definity Health is a national leader in consumer-driven health
benefit programs and, as of December 31, 2007, its products were provided to approximately 23,000 group health
plans across the UnitedHealth Group enterprise, including approximately 170 employers in the large group USS
self-funded market.

Orations

Ovations provides health and well-being services for individuals age 50 and older, addressing their unique needs
for preventive and acute health care services as well as for services dealing with chronic disease and other
specialized issues for older individuals. Ovations is one of a few enterprises fully dedicated to this market
segment, providing products and services in all 50 states, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, the U.S. Virgin
Islands, Guam, American Samoa, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands. Ovations participates
nationally in the Medicare program, offering a wide-ranging spectrum of Medicare products, including Medigap
products that supplement traditional fee-for-service coverage, more traditional health-plan-type programs under
Medicare Advantage, Medicare Part D prescription drug coverage, and special offerings for beneficiaries who are
chronically ill and/or Medicare and Medicaid dual-eligible.

Ovations has extensive capabilities and experience with distribution, including direct marketing to consumers on
behalf of its key clients — AARP, the nation’s largest membership organization dedicated to the needs of people
age 50 and over, state and U.S. government agencies and employer groups. Ovations also has distinct pricing,
underwriting and clinical program management, and marketing capabilities dedicated to risk-based health
products and services in the senior and geriatric markets.
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We currently have a number of contracts with Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS), which
primarily relate to the Medicare health benefit programs authorized under the 2003 Medicare Modernization Act.
Beginning January i, 2006, we began serving as a plan sponsor offering Medicare Part D prescription drug
insurance coverage. In total, consolidated premium revenues from CMS were approximately 25% of our total
consolidated revenues for the year ended December 31, 2007, most of which were generated by Ovations.

Secure Horizons. Secure Horizons provides health care coverage for seniors and other eligible Medicare
beneficiaries primarily through the Medicare Advantage program administered by CMS. Secure Horizons offers
Medicare Advantage HMO, preferred provider organization (PPQO), Special Needs Plans, Point-of-Service (POS)
plans, and Private-Fee-for-Service plans. Under the Medicare Advantage programs, Secure Horizons provides
health insurance coverage to eligible Medicare beneficiaries in exchange for a fixed monthly premium per
member from CMS that varies based on the geographic areas in which members reside, demographic factors such
as age, gender, and institutionalized status, and the health status of the individual. Most products are offered
under the “AARP Medicare Complete provided through Secure Horizons” brand name. Secure Horizons offers
Medicare Advantage products in all 50 states. As of December 31, 2007, Secure Horizons had approximately
1.3 million enrolled individuals in its Medicare Advantage products.

Ovations Part D. Ovations provides the Medicare prescription drug benefit (Part D) to beneficiaries throughout
the United States and its territories. Among the several Part D plans it offers, Ovations provides Medicare Part D
coverage plans with the AARP brand. Ovations provides Part D drug coverage through its Medicare Advantage
program, Special Needs Plans (covering individuals who live in an institutional long-term care setting, dually
eligible or individuals with severe or disabling chronic conditions) and stand-alone Part D plans. As of
December 31, 2007, Ovations had enrolled approximately 6.0 million members in the Part D program, including
approximately 4.7 million in the stand-alone Part D plans and approximately 1.3 million in Medicare Advantage
plans incorporating Part D coverage.

Insurance Solutions. Insurance Solutions offers a range of health insurance products and services to AARP
members, and has expanded the scope of services and programs offered over the past several years., Ovations
provides standardized Medicare supplement and hospital indemnity insurance from its insurance company affiliates
to approximately 3.8 million AARP members. Additional Ovations services include a nurse healthline service, a
lower cost standardized Medicare supplement offering that provides consumers with a national hospital network,
24-hour access to health care information, and access to discounted health services from a network of physicians.

Evercare. Evercare is one of the nation’s leaders in offering complete, individualized care planning and care
benefits for aging, disabled and chronically ill individuals. Evercare serves approximately 195,000 people
(including 145,000 with Medicare Advantage) across the nation in long-term care settings including nursing
homes, community-based settings and private homes, as well as through hospice and palliative care. Evercare
offers services through innovative care management and clinical programs.

Evercare integrates federal, state and private funding through a continuum of products from Special Needs Plans
and long-term care Medicaid programs to hospice care, and serves people in 38 markets in home, community and
nursing home settings. These services are provided primarily through nurse practitioners, nurses and care
managers. Evercare operated Special Needs Plans in 37 states as of December 31, 2007.

Evercare Solutions for Caregivers is a comprehensive eldercare service program providing service coordination,
consultation, claim management and information resources nationwide. Proprietary, automated medical record
software enables the Evercare clinical care teams to capture and track patient data and clinical encounters, creating a
comprehensive set of coherent care information that bridges across home, hospital and nursing home care settings
for high-risk populations. Evercare also operates hospice and palliative care programs in ten states (14 markets).

AmeriChoice

AmeriChoice provides network-based health and well-being services to beneficiaries of State Medicaid
Children’s Health Insurance Programs (SCHIP), and other government-sponsored health care programs.
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AmeriChoice provides health insurance coverage to eligible Medicaid beneficiaries in exchange for a fixed
monthly premium per member from the applicable state. At December 31, 2007, AmeriChoice provided services
to approximately 1.7 million individuals in 16 states, AmeriChoice also offers government agencies a number of
diverse management service programs — including clinical care, consulting and management, pharmacy benefit
services and administrative and technology services — to help them effectively administer their distinct health
care delivery systems and benefits for individuals in their programs. AmeriChoice also coatracis with CMS for
the provision of Special Needs Plans serving individuals dually eligible for Medicaid and Medicare services.
These programs are primarily organized toward enrolling individuals who dually qualify for Medicaid and
Medicare coverage in states where AmeriChoice operates its Medicaid health plans.

AmeriChoice’s approach is grounded in its belief that health care cannot be provided effectively without
considering all of the factors — social, economic, environmental, and physical — that affect a person’s life.
AmeriChoice coordinates resources among family members, physicians, other health care professionals and
government and community-based agencies and organizations to provide continuous and effective care. For
members, this means that the AmeriChoice Personat Care Model offers them a holistic approach to health care,
emphasizing practical programs to improve their living circumstances as well as quality medical care and
treatment in accessible, culturally sensitive, community-oriented settings. For example, AmeriChoice’s disease
management and outreach programs focus on high-prevalence and debilitating ilinesses such as hypertension and
cardiovascular disease, asthma, sickle cell disease, diabetes, Human Immunodeficiency Virus/Acquired Immune
Deficiency Syndrome (HIV/AIDS), cancer and high-risk pregnancy. Several of these programs have been
developed by AmeriChoice with the help of leading researchers and clinicians at academic medical centers and
medical schools.

For physicians, the AmeriChoice Personal Care Model means assistance with coordination of their patients’ care.
AmeriChoice utilizes sophisticated technology to monitor preventive care interventions and evidence-based
treatment protocols 10 support care management. AmeriChoice operates advanced and unique pharmacy
administrative services -— including benefit design, generic drug programs, drug utilization review and preferred
drug list development — to optimize the use of appropriate quality pharmaceuticals and concurrently manage
pharmacy expenditures to levels appropriate to the specific clinical situations. For state customers, the
AmeriChoice Personal Care Model means increased access to care and improved quality for their beneficiaries,
in a measurable system that reduces their administrative burden and lowers their costs.

AmeriChoice considers a variety of factors in determining in which state programs to participate and on what
basis, including the state’s experience and consistency of support for its Medicaid program in terms of service
innovation and funding, the population base in the state, the willingness of the physician/provider community to
participate with the AmeriChoice Personal Care Model, and the presence of community-based organizations that
can partner with AmeriChoice to meet the needs of its members. Using these criteria, AmeriChoice entered three
new markets in 2006, expanded in one existing market in 2007, and is examining several others, AmeriChoice is
also a subcontractor for the Healthy Indiana Plan, a health care reform plan designed to increase access to health
care benefits for Indiana residents.

OPTUMHEALTH

OptumHealth reaches approximately 58 million individuals with its diversified offering of health, financial and
ancillary benefit services and products that assist consumers in navigating the health care system and accessing
services, support their emotional health, provide ancillary insurance benefits and facilitate the financing of health
care services through account-based programs. OptumHealth seeks to simplify the consumer health care
experience and facilitate the efficient and effective delivery of care. Its capabilities can be deployed individually
or integrated to provide comprehensive, consumer-focused health and financial well-being solutions.

OptumHealth’s simple, modular service designs can be easily integrated to meet varying health plan, employer
and consumer needs at a wide range of price points. OptumHealth offers its products on an administrative fee
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basis where it manages and administers benefit claims for self-insured customers in exchange for a fixed fee per
individual served, and on a risk basis, where OptumHealth assumes responsibility for health care and income
replacement costs in exchange for a fixed monthly premium per individual served. For its financial services
offerings, OptumHealth charges fees and earns investment income on managed funds.

During 2007, OptumHealth began marketing most of its products under a single brand. Its products are
distributed through the three strategic markets that it serves: the employer market for both UnitedHealth Group
customers and unaffiliated parties; the payer market for Health Care Services health plans, independent health
plans, third-party administrators and reinsurers; and the public sector market for Medicare and state Medicaid
offerings through partnerships with Ovations, AmeriChoice and other intermediaries. Approximately 50 percent
of the consumers that OptumHealth serves receive their major medical health benefits from a source other than
UnitedHealth Group.

OptumHealth is organized into four major groups: Care Solutions, Behavioral Solutions, Specialty Benefits and
Financial Services (Exante).

Care Solutions

Care Solutions serves approximately 40 million consumers through tailored programs designed to improve health
and well-being, and improve clinical outcomes, It delivers its services through the use of evidenced-based best
practices, technology and specially trained nurses. Its clinically focused product portfolio includes programs
focused on disease management, care advocacy, complex condition management, such as cancer, solid organ
transplant, infertility and congenital heart disease, and wellness. To support its complex condition management
programs, Care Solutions negotiates competitive rates with centers that have been designated as “Centers of
Excellence” based on their satisfaction of clinical standards, including patient volumes and outcomes, medicai
teamn credentials and experience, and patient and family support services.

Care Solutions also provides benefit administration, and clinical and network management for chiropractic,
physical therapy, occupational therapy and other complementary and alternative care services through its national
network consisting of approximately 22,000 chiropractors, 15,000 physical and occupational therapists and 7,000
complementary and alternative health professionals. Care Solutions also offers treatment decision support,
consumer health information, private health portals and consumer health marketing services to address daily
living concerns and assist individuals in accessing the health care system,

Behavioral Solutions

Behavioral Solutions serves 35 million individuals with its employee assistance programs, work/life offerings,
and clinically driven behavioral health, substance abuse and psychiatric disability management programs. Its
consumer-focused programs employ predictive modeling, outcomes management, supportive coaching and
evidenced-based best practices to assist individuals in managing stress, depression, substance abuse and other
personal challenges while seeking to increase overall health, wellness and productivity. Its outreach programs
promote timely detection and intervention to oplimize the treatment for people struggling with both
psychological and medical conditions. Behavioral Solutions customers have access to a national network of
approximately 80,000 clinicians and counselors and 3,000 facilities.

Specialty Benefits

Specialty Benefits includes dental, vision, life, critical illness, short-term disability and stop loss product
offerings delivered through an integrated platform that enhances efficiency and effectiveness. Approximately
13.5 million individuals receive their vision benefits through Specialty Benefits and its network of approximately
30,000 vision professionals in private and retail settings. Dental benefit management and related services are
provided to six million consumers through a network of approximately 85,000 dentists. Stop-loss insurance is
marketed throughout the United States through a network of third-party administrators, brokers and consultants.

7




Financial Services (Exante)

Financial services were provided through Exante Bank and Exante Financial Services in 2007. During the first
half of 2008, we expect to change their name to OptumHealth Bank and OpiumHealth Financial Services.
Financial services provides health-based financial services for consumers, employers, payers and health care
professionals. These financial services include HSAs, HRAs, and Flexible Spending Accounts offered
through Exante Bank, a Utah-chartered industrial bank. Financial Services’ health benefit card programs include
electronic systems for verification of benefit coverage and eligibility. Financial Services also provides electronic
payment and statement services for health care professionals and payers.

INGENIX

Ingenix offers database and data management services, software products, publications, consulting services,
ottsourced services and pharmaceutical consulting and research services in conjunction with the development of
pharmaceutical products on a nationwide and international basis. As of December 31, 2007, Ingenix’s customers
include approximately 5,000 hospitals, 240,000 physicians, 1,500 payers and intermediaries, 245 Fortune 500
comypanies, 250 life sciences companies, and 50 government entities, as well as other UnitedHealth Group
businesses.

Ingenix is engaged in the simplification of health care administration with information and technology. Ingenix
helps customers accurately and efficiently document, code and bill for the delivery of care services. It also sells
reference materials and coding guides that health care professionals use to bill payers for their services. Ingenix
uses data to help advance transparency on cost and quality and help customers streamline their processes to make
health care more efficient. Ingenix is a leader in contract research services, and pharmacoeconomics, outcomes,
drug safety and epidemiology research through its i3 businesses.

Ingenix’s products and services are sold primarily through a direct sales force focused on specific customers and
market segments across the pharmaceutical, biotechnology, employer, government, hospital, physician, payer
and property and casualty insurance market segments. Ingenix’s products are also supported and distributed
through an array of alliance and business partnerships with other technology vendors, who integrate and interface
its products with their applications.

The Ingenix companies are divided into two groups: Information Services and i3.

Information Services

Information Services’ diverse product offerings help clients strengthen health care administration and advance
health care outcomes. These products include health care utilization reporting and analytics, physician clinical
performance benchmarking, clinical data warehousing, analysis and management responses for medical cost
wend management, physician practice revenue cycle management, revenve cycle management for payer and
health care professional organizations, decision-support portals for evaluation of health benefits and treatment
options, and claims management tools for administrative error and cost reduction. Ingenix uses proprietary
software applications that manage clinical and administrative data across diverse information technology
environments. lagenix also uses proprietary predictive algorithmic applications to help clients detect and act on
repetitive health care patterns in large data sets. Ingenix offers comprehensive Electronic Data Interchange (EDI)
services helping health care professionals and payers decrease costs of claims transmission, payment and
reimbursement through both networked and direct connection services.

Information Services provides other services on an outsourced basis, such as verification of physician credentials,
health care professional directories, Healthcare Effectiveness Data and Information Set reporting, and fraud and
abuse detection and prevention services. Ingenix also offers consulting services, including actuarial and financial
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advisory work through its Ingenix Consulting division and health care policy rescarch, implementation, strategy
and management consulting through its subsidiary, The Lewin Group, as well as product development, health
care professional contracting and medical policy management. Ingenix also provides health care IT consulting
for health care professionals. Ingenix publishes print and electronic media products that provide customers with
information regarding medical claims coding, reimbursement, billing and compliance issues.

i3

i3 helps to coordinate and manage clinical trials on a nationwide and international basis for products in
development for pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies. i3’s focus is to help pharmaceutical and
biotechnology customers effectively and efficiently get drug and medical device data to appropriate regulatory
bodies and to improve health outcomes through integrated information, analysis and technology. i3's capabilities
and efforts focus on the entire range of product assessment, through commercialization of life-cycle management
services — pipeline assessment, market access and product positioning, clinical trials, economic, epidemiology
and safety and outcomes research. i3’s services include global contract research services, protocol development,
investigator identification and training, regulatory assistance, project management, data management,
biostatistical analysis, quality assurance, medical writing and staffing resource services. i3 delivers contract
research services in 58 countries and is therapeutically focused on oncology, the central nervous system,
respiratory and infectious diseases, and endocrinology. i3 uses comprehensive, science-based evaluation and
analysis and benchmarking services to support pharmaceutical and biotechnology development.

PRESCRIPTION SOLUTIONS

Prescription Solutions was established as a reporting segment during the fourth quarter of 2007, and offers a
comprehensive suite of integrated pharmacy benefit management (PBM) services to approximately 10.3 million
people, through approximately 64,000 retail network pharmacies and two mail service facilities as of
December 31, 2007. Prescription Solutions processed approximately 300 million retail and mail service claims
during 2007. Prescriptions Solutions markets include Health Care Services health plans, external employer
groups, union trusts, seniors (Part D, Secure Horizons and Evercare) and commercial health plans.

Prescription Solutions’ integrated PBM services include retail network pharmacy management, mail order
pharmacy services, specialty pharmacy services, benefit design consultation, drug utilization review, formulary
management programs, disease management and compliance and therapy management programs. Prescription
Solutions’ products and services are designed to enhance clinical outcomes with appropriate financial results
for those served. The fulfillment capabilities of Prescription Solutions are an important strategic component in
serving commercial and senior business, including Part D members.

Prescription Solutions’ distribution system consists primarily of brokers and other consultant-based or direct
sales. Effective January 1, 2007, Prescription Solutions began providing PBM services to an additional four
million Ovations Medicare Advantage and stand-alone Part D members. Prescription Solutions’ growing
Consumer Health Products business distributes diabetic testing supplies and other specialized medical supplies,
over the counter items, vitamins, minerals and supplements directly to members homes.




GOVERNMENT REGULATION

Most of our health and well-being services are regulated by federal and state regulatory agencies that generally
have discretion to issue regulations and interpret and enforce laws and rules. This regulation can vary
significantly from jurisdiction to jurisdiction. Changes in applicable laws, regulations and rules are continually
being considered, and the interpretation of existing laws and rules also may change periodically. New laws,
regulations and rules, or changes in the interpretation of existing laws, regulations and rules, could negatively
impact our business. We believe we are in compliance in all material respects with the applicable laws,
regulations and rules.

Federal Regulation

We are subject to various levels of federal regulation. Ovations and AmeriChoice Medicare and Medicaid
businesses are regulated by CMS. CMS has the right to audit performance to determine compliance with CMS$S
contracts and regulations and the quality of care being given to Medicare beneficiaries. Qur Health Care Services
segment, through AmeriChoice and QOvations, also has Medicaid and SCHIP contracts that are subject to federal
regulations regarding services to be provided to Medicaid enrollees, payment for those services, and other
aspects of these programs. There are many regulations swrounding Medicare and Medicaid compliance. In
addition, the portion of Ingenix’s business that includes clinical research is subject to regulation by the U.S. Food
and Drug Administration.

HIPAA. The administrative simplification provisions of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act
of 1996, as amended (HIPAA), apply 1o both the group and individual health insurance markets, including self-
funded employee benefit plans, HIPAA requires guaranteed health care coverage for small employers and certain
eligible individuals. It also requires guaranteed renewability for employers and individuals and limits exclusions
based on preexisting conditions. Federal regulations promulgated pursuant to HIPAA include minimum standards
for electronic transactions and code sets, and for the privacy and security of protected health information.
Standards for nattonal health care provider identifiers are currently being implemented by regulators.

ERISA. The Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (ERISA), regulates how goods and
services are provided to or through certain types of employer-sponsored health benefit plans. ERISA is a set of
laws and regulations subject to periodic interpretation by the U.S. Department of Labor as well as the federal
courts. ERISA places controls on how our business units may do business with employers who sponsor employee
benefit health plans, particularly those that maintain self-funded plans. Regulations established by the U.S.
Department of Labor provide additional rules for claims payment and member appeals under health care plans
govermned by ERISA. Additionally, some states require licensure or registration of companies providing third-
party claims administration services for health care plans.

FDIC. The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) has federal regulatory and supervisory authority over
Exante Bank and performs annual examinations to ensure that the bank is operating in accordance with federal
safety and soundness requirements. In addition to such annual examinations, the FDIC performs periodic
examinations of the bank’s compliance with applicable federal banking statutes, regulations and agency
guidelines. In the event of unfavorable examination results, the bank could be subjected to increased operational
expenses, governmental oversight and monetary penalties.

State Regulation

All of the states in which our subsidiaries offer insurance and HMO products regulate those products and
operations. These states require periodic financial reports and establish minimum capital or restricted cash
reserve requirements. Health plans and insurance companies are also regulated under state insurance holding
company regulations. Such regulations generally require registration with applicable state Departments of
Insurance and the filing of reports that describe capital structure, ownership, financial condition, certain
intercompany transactions and general business operations. Some state insurance holding company laws and
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regulations require prior regulatory approval of acquisitions and material intercompany transfers of assets, as
well as transactions between the regulated companies and their parent holding companies or affiliates. These
laws may restrict the ability of our regulated subsidiaries to pay dividends.

In addition, some of our business and related activities may be subject to other health care-related regulations and
requirements, including PPO, managed care organization (MCO), utilization review (UR) or third-party
administrator-related regulations and licensure requirements. These regulations differ from state to state, but may
contain network, contracting, product and rate, and financial and reporting requirements. There are laws and
regulations that set specific standards for delivery of services, payment of claims, adequacy of health care
professional networks, fraud prevention, protection of consumer health information and covered benefits and
services. Our AmeriChoice and Ovations Medicaid businesses arc subject to regulation by state Medicaid
agencics that oversee the provision of benefits by AmeriChoice to its Medicaid and SCHIP beneficiaries and by
Ovations to its Medicaid beneficiaries. Our pharmacy activities are generally regulated at the state level and may
require registration or licensure with certain state boards of pharmacy. Additionally, different approaches to state
and federal privacy and insurance regulation and varying enforcement philosophies in the different states may
adversely affect our ability to standardize our products and services across state lines.

In connection with the PacifiCare acquisition, which closed on December 20, 2005, as typically occurs in
connection with a transaction of this size, certain of our subsidiaries entered into various commitments with state
regulatory departments, principally in California. We believe that none of these commitments will materially
affect our operations.

In addition, the Utah State Department of Financial Institutions (UDFT) has state regulatory and supervisory
authority over Exante Bank and in conjunction with federal regulators performs annual examinations to ensure
that the bank is operating in accordance with state safety and soundness requirements. In addition to such annual
examinations, the UDFI in conjunction with federal regulators performs periodic examinations of the bank’s
compliance with applicable state banking statutes, regulations and agency guidelines. In the event of unfavorable
examination results, the bank couid be subjected to increased operational expenses, governmental oversight and
monetary penalties.

Audits and Investigations

We have been and are currently involved in various governmental investigations, audits and reviews. These
include routine, regular and special investigations, audits and reviews by CMS, state insurance and health and
welfare departments, state attorneys general, the Office of the Inspector General, the Office of Personnel
Management, the Office of Civil Rights, U.S. Congressional committees, the U.S. Department of Justice, U.S.
Attorneys, the SEC and other governmental authorities. Such government actions can result in assessment of
damages, civil or criminal fines or penalties, or other sanctions, including loss of licensure or exclusion from
participation in government programs. See Note 13 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for details.

International Regulation

Some of our business units, including Ingenix’s i3 business, have international operations. These international
operations are subject to different legal and regulatory requirements in different jurisdictions, including various
tax, tariff and trade regulations, as well as employment, intellectual property and investment rules and laws.
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COMPETITION

As a diversified health and well-being services company, we operate in highly competitive markets. Our
competitors include managed health care companies, insurance companies, third-party administrators and
business services outsourcing companies, health care professionals that have formed networks to directly contract
with employers or with CMS, specialty benefit providers, government entities, disease management companies,
and various health information and consulting companies. For our Health Care Services businesses, competitors
include Aetna Inc., Cigna Corporation, Coventry Health Care, Inc., Health Net, Inc., Humana Inc., Kaiser
Permanente, WellPoint, Inc., numerous for-profit and not-for-profit organizations operating under licenses from
the Blue Cross Blue Shield Association and other enterprises that serve more limited geographic areas. For our
Prescription Solutions businesses, competitors include Medco Health Solutions, Inc., CVS/Caremark
Corporation, and Express Scripts, Inc. Our OptumHealth and Ingenix business segments also compete with a
number of other businesses. New entrants into the markets in which we compete, as well as consolidation within
these markets, also contribute to a competitive environment. We believe the principal competitive factors that
can impact our businesses relate to the sales, marketing and pricing of our producis and services; product
innovation; consumer satisfaction; the level and quality of products and services; care delivery; network
capabilities; market share; product distribution systems; efficiency of administration operations; financial
strength and marketplace reputation.

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2007, we employed approximately 67,000 individuals. We believe our employee relations
are generally positive.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following sets forth certain information regarding our executive officers as of February 15, 2008, including
the business experience of each executive officer during the past five years:

Name E Position

StephenJ. Hemsley ...................... 55 President and Chief Executive Officer

George .. Mikan Il ..................... 36 Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer

William A. Munsell ...................... 55 Executive Vice President of UnitedHealth
Group and President of Enterprise Services
Group

EricS.Rangen ..............oviiiinian-- 51 Senior Vice President and Chief
Accounting Officer

Thomas L. Strickland .................... 55 Executive Vice President and Chief Legal
Officer

Lo K.Sweere ...............cccciuunn.. 49 Executive Vice President, Human Capital

Anthony Welters ........................ 52 Executive Vice President of UnitedHealth
Group and President of Public and Senior
Markets Group

David S, Wichmann ..................... 45 Executive Vice President of UnitedHealth
Group and President of Commercial
Markets Group

Our Board of Directors elects executive officers annually. Our executive officers serve until their successors are
duty elected and qualified.

Mr. Hemsley is the President and Chief Executive Officer of UnitedHealth Group, has served in that capacity
since November 2006, and has been a member of the Board of Directors since February 2000. Mr. Hemsley
served as President and Chief Operating Officer from 2003 to November 2006. He joined UnitedHealth Group in
1997 and held various executive positions with the Company from 1997 to 2003.

Mr. Mikan is Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of UnitedHealth Group and has served in that
capacity since November 2006. Mr. Mikan served as Senior Vice President of Finance of UnitedHealth Group
from February 2006 to November 2006. From June 2004 to February 2006, Mr. Mikan served as Chief Financial
Officer of UnitedHealthcare and as President of UnitedHealth Networks. Mr. Mikan was Chief Financial Officer
of Specialized Care Services (now OptumHealth) from 2003 to June 2004. Mr. Mikan joined UnitedHealth
Group in 1998 and held various executive positions with the Company from 1998 to 2003

Mr. Munsell is Executive Vice President of UnitedHealth Group and President of the Enterprise Services Group
and has served in that capacity since September 2007. From December 2006 to August 2007, Mr. Munsell served
as Executive Vice President of UnitedHealth Group. From November 2004 to December 2006, Mr. Munsell
served as Chief Executive Officer of Specialized Care Services (now OptumHealth). From 2003 to June 2004,
Mr. Munsell served as the Chief Administrative Officer of UnitedHealthcare and Chief Operating Officer of
UnitedHealthcare. Mr. Munsell joined UnitedHealth Group in 1997 and held various executive positions with the
Company from 1997 to 2003.

Mr. Rangen is the Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer of UnitedHealth Group and has served in
that capacity since December 2006. From November 2006 to December 2006, Mr. Rangen was Senior Vice
President of UnitedHealth Group. Mr. Rangen joined UnitedHealth Group in November 2006. Prior to joining
UnitedHealth Group, Mr. Rangen served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Alliant
Techsystems Inc. from April 2004 to March 2006 and as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Alliant
Techsystems, Inc, from 2003 to April 2004,
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M. Strickland is the Executive Vice President and Chief Legal Officer of UnitedHealth Group and has served in
such capacity since May 2007. Prior to joining UnitedHealth Group, Mr. Strickland was a partrer at Hogan &
Hartson L.L.P., an international law firm, from 2003 to May 2007, and during such period, he was a managing
partner of the Colorado offices and served on the executive committee of Hogan & Hartson L.L.P.

Ms. Sweere is Executive Vice President of Human Capital of UnitedHealth Group ard has served in that capacity
since June 2007. Prior to joining UnitedHealth Group, Ms. Sweere served as Executive Vice President of Human
Resources of CNA Corporation from October 2004 1o April 2007 and held various leadership positions with
CNA Corporation from 2003 to October 2004.

Mr. Welters is Executive Vice President of UnitedHealth Group and President of the Public and Senior Market
Group and has served in that capacity since September 2007. Mr. Welters was named Executive Vice President
of UnitedHealth Group in November 2006. From 2003 to November 2006, Mr. Welters was President and Chief
Executive Officer of AmeriChoice. Mr. Welters joined UnitedHealth Group in 2002 and held various executive
positions with the Company from 2002 to 2003.

Mr. Wichmann is Executive Vice President of UnitedHealth Group and President of the Commercial Markets
Group and has served in that capacity since December 2006. From July 2004 to December 2006, Mr. Wichmann
served as President and Chief Operating Officer of UnitedHeathcare. From June 2003 to July 2004,
Mr. Wichmann served as Chief Executive Officer of Specialized Care Services (now OptumHealth). He also
served as President and Chief Operating Officer of Specialized Care Services during 2003. Mr. Wichmann joined
UnitedHealth Group in 1998 and held various executive positions with the Company from 1998 to 2003.

ITEM 1A, RISK FACTORS

See Item 7 “ - Cautionary Statements,” which is incorporated by reference herein.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

As of December 31, 2007, we owned and/or leased real properties totaling approximately 12.6 million square feet
to support our business operations in the United States and other countries (net of approximately 0.6 millton
square feet of space subleased to third parties). Of this total, we owned approximately 1.5 million aggregate
square feet of space and leased the remainder. Our leases expire at various dates through May 31, 2025. We are
currently constructing two new facilities in Minnesota. We anticipate completing the construction in 2008 and
upon completion, we will own an additional 0.4 million square feet of real property and lease an additional
0.2 million square feet of real property. Our facilities are primarily located in the United States. Our various
segments use these facilities for their respective business purposes, and we believe these current facilities are
suitable for their respective uses and are adequate for our anticipated future needs.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

See Note 13 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this Form 10-K, which is incorporated by
reference herein.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.

14




PART 11

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Prices

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) under the symbol UNH. On February 15,
2008, there were 14,414 registered holders of record of our common stock. The per share high and low common
stock sales prices reported by the NYSE were as follows:

High Low
2008
First quarter (through February 15,2008) ....................... 3 5786 § 4400
2007
S0 o U T2 - o b 57.10 $ 50.51
SECONd QUATTEL . . .o oo vve vt e e et i e b 55.90 % 50.70
Thirdquarter ........... i e $ 54.10 b 45.82
Fourthquarter ......... ... iiuiruuiiiiiiniieanaennens 3 59.46 3 46.59
2006
FirStQUAIET . . ..ottt e ettt s ie et aiaaane e rnens $ 6293 $ 5320
SecONd QUATTET . . ..\t v ettt e $ 56.60 $ 4144
Third QUAIEE .. ... .ottt e $ 52.84 3 4429
Fourth QUarer ... .........cieriiiiiinnriie et iinaanennens $ 5446 0§ 4512

Dividend Policy

Our Board of Directors established our dividend policy in August 1990. Pursuant to our dividend policy, the
Board reviews our financial statements following the end of each fiscal year and decides whether to declare a
dividend on the outstanding shares of common stock. On February 19, 2008, our Board of Directors approved an
annual dividend of $0.03 per share, which will be paid on April 16, 2008 to sharcholders of record on April 2,
2008. Shareholders of record on April 2, 2007 received an annual dividend for 2007 of $0.03 per share and
shareholders of record on April 3, 2006 received an annual dividend for 2006 of $0.03 per share.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities (1)

Fourth Quarter 2007
Total Number
of Shares Maximum
Purchased as Part Number of Shares
of Publicly that may yet be
Teotal Number of Average Price Announced Plans purchased under the
For the Month Ended Shares Purchased  Paid per Share or Programs Plans or Programs
October 31,2007 ............. ... 4,140,0002) % 48.30 4,140,000 209,960,000
November 30,2007 .............. 16,300,000(2) § 53.51 16,300,000 193,660,000
December 31,2007 .............. 21,962,139(3) § 57.07 21,750,000 171,910,000

TOTAL ................... 42,402,139 3 54.85 42,190,000

(1) In November 1997, our Board of Directors adopted a share repurchase program, which the Board evaluates
periodically and renews as necessary. On October 30, 2007, the Board renewed and increased the Company’s
common stock repurchase program, and authorized the Company to repurchase up to 210 million shares of our
common stock at prevailing market prices. There is no established expiration date for the program.
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(2) Represents the total number of shares of our common stock repurchased during the period.

(3) Represents 21,750,000 shares of our common stock repurchased during the period, of which 18,750,000 of
these shares were setiled for cash on or before December 31, 2007; and 212,139 shares of our common
stock withheld by the Company, as permitted by the applicable equity award certificate, to satisfy tax
withholding obligations upon vesting of shares of restricted stock.

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

In February 2007, we issued an aggregate of 139,877 unregistered shares of newly issued common stock of the
Company to two employees pursuant to the exercises of certain options previously granted to these employees
under our stock option plans at option exercise prices ranging from $5.86 to $28.93 per share. The sales were
made in reliance upon an exemption from registration under Rule 506 of Regulation ID promulgated under the
Securities Act of 1933. These options were exercised on a cashless basis and we did not receive any cash
proceeds from such transactions.

Performance Graphs

The following two performance graphs compare the Company’s total return to shareholders with indexes of other
specified companies and the S&P 500 Index. The first graph compares the cumulative five-year total return to
shareholders on UnitedHealth Group’s common stock relative to the cumulative total returns of the S&P 500
index, and a customized peer group (the “Fortune 50 Group™), an index of certain Fortune 50 companies for the
five-year period ended December 31, 2007. The second graph compares our cumulative total return to
shareholders with the S&P 500 Index and an index of a group of peer companies selected by us for the five-year
period ended December 31, 2007. The Company is not included in either the Fortune 50 Group index in the first
graph or the peer group index in the second graph. In calculating the cumulative total shareholder return of the
indexes, the shareholder returns of the Fortune 50 Group companies in the first graph and the peer group
companies in the second graph are weighted according to the stock market capitalizations of the companies at
January 1 of each year. The comparisons assume the investment of $100 on December 31, 2002 in company
common stock and in each index, and that dividends were reinvested when paid.

Fortune 50 Group

The Fortune 50 Group consists of the following companies: American International Group Inc, Berkshire
Hathaway Inc, Cardinal Health Inc, Citigroup Inc, General Electric Company, International Business Machine
Corp. and Johnson & Johnson. Although there are differences in terms of size and industry, like UnitedHealth
Group, all of these companies are large muiti-segment companies using a well-defined operating model in one or
more broad sectors of the economy. These companies have also distinguished themselves by the consistency of
their growth and performance, in many cases over multiple decades.
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COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Among UnitedHealth Group, The S&P 500 Index
And The Fortune 50 Group
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12/02 12/03 12/04 12/05 12/06 12/07
—8— UnltedHealth Group — - — S&P 500 ---@ - - Fortune 50 Group
12/02 12/03 12/04 12/05 12/06 12407
UnitedHealth Group $100.00 $139.40 $211.02 $298.01 $257.81 $279.42
S&P 500 $100.00 $128.68 $142.69 $149.70 $173.34 $182.87
Fortune 50 Group $100.00 $121.48 $134.20 $132.92 $150.72 $140.95

The stock price performance included in this graph is not necessarily indicative of future stock price
performance. ‘

17




Peer Group

The companies included in our peer group are Aetna Inc, Cigna Corp., Coventry Health Care Inc., Humana Inc.
and WellPoint Inc. We believe that this peer group accurately reflects our peers in the health care industry.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Among UnitedHealth Group, The S&P 500 Index

And The Peer Group
$450 ;
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$350 -
$300 -
$250 -
$200 -
$150 -
$100
550
$0 ; ; . . .
12/02 12/03 1204 12/05 12/06 12/07
—&-— UnlitedHealth Group — =+ — S&P 500 ---&--- Peer Group
12/02 12/03 12/04 12/05 12/06 12407
UnitedHealth Group $100.00 $139.40 $211.02 $298.01 $257.81 $279.42
S&P 500 $100.00 $128.68 $142.69 $149.70 $173.34 $182.87
Peer Group $100.00 $151.56 $233.93 $341.54 $337.19 $406.82

The stock price performance included in this graph is not necessarily indicative of future stock price
performance.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Financial Highlights

For the Year Ended December 31,
(in millions, except per share data) 2007 (£,2) 2006 (1,2) 2005 (2) 2004 (2) 2003
Consolidated Operating Results
REVENUES .. vvvessiennren et ssnaaan s $75,431 $71,542 $46425 $38,217  $29,696
Earnings From Operations . .................. .. $7.849 $6984 § 508 $3858 $ 2671
Net Barnings ...........ooiiinnneecnnninnnns $ 4654 $ 4,159 $3083 §$2411 § 1,655
Return on Shareholders” Equity ................. 22.4% 22.2% 25.2% 29.0% 34.6%
Basic Net Earnings per Common Share ........... $ 355 $ 309 $ 244 $ 193 35 140
Diluted Net Earnings per Common Share .......... $ 342 % 297 §$ 231 §$ 183 §$ 134
Common Stock Dividends per Share .. ............ $0030 $003 $0015 $0015 $0.008
Consolidated Cash Flows From (Used For)
Operating Activities ........ ...t $ 5877 §$6526 $ 408 $3923 §$ 2913
Investing Activities ......... ... ioiaaans $(4,147) $(2,101) $(3,489) $(1,644) $ (745)
Financing Activities . .. .........oooiriiiennnn $(3,185) $ 474 § 836 $ (550) $(1,036)
Consolidated Financial Condition
{As of December 31)
Cashand Investments .............ccouvenreanen $22286  $20,582 $14982 $12,253 § 9,477
Total ASSELS .. oo vvnerece e $50,899  $48320 $41,288 $27.862 $17,668
Total Debt ...t $11,009 $ 745 $ 7,095 $ 4011 $ 1979
Shareholders’ Equity -...........oieiiiinn. $20,063 $20,810 $17,815 $10,772 $ 5,236
Debt-to-Total-Capital Ratio . ... ................. 35.4% 26.4% 28.5% 27.1% 27.4%

Financial Highlights should be read with the accompanying Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations and Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes.

(1) On January I, 2006, the Company began serving as a plan sponsor offering Medicare Part D drug insurance
coverage under a contract with CMS. Total revenues generated under this program were $5.9 billion and
$5.7 billion for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. See Note 3 of Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for a detailed discussion of this program.

2

UnitedHealth Group acquired PacifiCare Health Systems, Inc. (PacifiCare) in December 2005 for total

consideration of approximately $8.8 billion, Oxford Health Plass, Inc. (Oxford) in July 2004 for total
consideration of approximately $5.0 billion and Mid-Atlantic Medical Services, Inc. (MAMSI) in February
2004 for total consideration of approximately $2.7 billion. The results of operations and financial condition
of PacifiCare, Oxford and MAMSI have been included in UnitedHealth Group’s Consolidated Financial

Statements since the respective acquisition dates.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Business Overview

UnitedHealth Group is a diversified health and well-being company, serving approximately 70 million
Americans. Qur focus is on enhancing the performance of the health system and improving the overall health and
well-being of the people we serve and their communities. We work with health care professionals and other key
partners to expand access 10 high quality health care. We help people get the care they need at an affordable cost,
support the physician/patient relationship, and empower people with the information, guidance and tools they
need to make personal health choices and decisions.

Through our diversified family of businesses, we leverage core competencies in advanced technology-based
transactional capabilities; health care data, knowledge and information; and health care resource organization and
care facilitation to make health care work better. We provide individuals with access to quality, cost-effective
health care services and resources, We provide employers and consumers with excellent value, service and
support, and we deliver value to our shareholders by executing a business strategy founded upon a commitment
to balanced growth, profitability and capital discipline.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations should be read in
conjunction with our Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

2007 Financial Performance Highlights

UnitedHealth Group had strong results in 2007. The Company achieved growth across each of its reporting
segments and generated net earnings of $4.7 billion, representing an increase of 2% over 2006. Other financial
performance highlights include:

* Diluted net earnings per common share of $3.42, an increase of 15% over 2006.
» Consolidated revenues of $75.4 billion, an increase of 5% over 2006.

» Earnings from operations of $7.8 billion, up $865 million, or 12%, over 2006.

* Operating margin of 10.4%, up from 9.8% in 2006.

» Cash flows from operations of $5.9 billion, representing 126% of 2007 net earnings.

2007 Results Compared to 2006 Results
Consolidated Financial Results
Revenues

Revenues are comprised of premium revenues from risk-based products; service revenues, which primarily
include fees for management, administrative and consulting services; product revenues; and investment and other
income.

Premium revenues are primarily derived from risk-based health insurance arrangements in which the premium is
fixed, typically for a one-year period, and we assume the economic risk of funding our customers’ health care
services and related administrative costs, Service revenues consist primarily of fees derived from services
performed for customers that self-insure the medical costs of their employees and their dependents. For both
premium risk-based and fee-based customer arrangements, we provide coordination and facilitation of medical
services; fransaction processing; customer, consumer and care provider services; and access to contracted
networks of physictans, hospitals and other health care professionals. Through our pharmacy beaefit management
(PBM) business, Prescription Solutions, revenues are derived from products sold and from administrative
services. Product revenues also include sales of Ingenix syndicated content products.
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Consolidated revenues in 2007 of $75.4 billion increased by $3.9 billion, or 5%, over 2006 driven primarily by
rate increases on premium-based and fee-based services and growth in the total number of individuals served by
Health Care Services.

Premium Revenues. Consolidated premium revenues totaled $68.8 billion in 2007, an increase of $3.1 billion, or
5%, over 2006. This increase was primarily driven by premium rate increases, partially offset by a decrease in
the number of individuals served by our commercial risk-based preducts.

Premium revenues for Commercial Markets (UnitedHealthcare and Uniprise) in 2007 totaled $36.2 billion, an
increase of $623 million, or 2%, over 2006. This increase was primarily due to average net premium rate
increases of 7% to 8% on UnitedHealthcare’s renewing commercia! risk-based products and due to premiums
from businesses acquired since the beginning of 2006. This was partially offset by a 4% decrease in the number
of individuals served by commercial risk-based products in 2007 primarily due to the Company’s internal pricing
decisions in a competitive commercial risk-based pricing environment and the conversion of certain groups to
commercial fee-based products. Ovations premium revenues in 2007 totaled $26.0 billion, an increase of $1.7
billion, or 7%, over 2006. The increase was driven primarily by an increase in individuals served by standardized
Medicare supplement and Evercare products, and rate increases on Medicare Advantage products as well as
continued growth in our Medicare Part D program. AmeriChoice premium revenues increased by $732 million,
or 20%, over 2006 primarily due to an increase in the number of individuals served by Medicaid products as well
as rate increases. The remaining premium revenue increase resulted primarily from membership growth and rate
increases at OptumHealth, which contributed a premium revenue increase of 11% over 2006.

Service Revenues. Consolidated service revenues in 2007 totaled $4.6 billion, an increase of $340 million, or
8%, over 2006. This was driven primarily by a 38% increase in Ingenix service revenues due to new business
growth in the health information and contract research businesses and from businesses acquired since the
beginning of 2006. In addition, Commercial Markets service revenues increased due to a 3% increase in the
number of individuals served under commercial fee-based arrangements during 2007, as well as annual rate
increases.

Product Revenues. Consolidated product revenues in 2007 totaled $898 million, an increase of $161 million, or
22%, over 2006. The increase was driven by pharmacy sales growth at Prescription Solutions primarily due to
providing prescription drug benefit services to an additional four million Ovations Medicare Advantage and Part
D members.

Investment and Other Income. Investment and other income during 2007 totaled $1.1 billion, representing an
increase of $273 million, or 31%, over 2006, Interest income increased by $239 million in 2007, driven by
increased levels of cash and fixed-income investments, due in part to deposits held for certain government-
sponsored programs during 2007 and the lack of share repurchase activity in the first two and a half months of
2007. Net realized gains on sales of investments were $38 million in 2007 and $4 million in 2006. We expect a
slight decline in investment income in 2008 due to the declining interest rate environment in early 2008, as well
as a comparatively lower level of invested asset balances expected in 2008.

Medical Costs

The combination of pricing, benefit designs, consumer health care utilization and comprehensive care facilitation
efforts is reflected in the medical care ratio (medical costs as a percentage of premium revenues). The
consolidated medical care ratio decreased from 81.2% in 2006 to 80.6% in 2007. This was primarily due to a
decrease in the medical care ratio relating to Ovations which was partially offset by am increase in the
commercial medical care ratio resulting from the Company’s internal pricing decisions in a competitive
commercial risk-based pricing environment, as well as a shift from favorable medical cost development for
UnitedHealthcare during 2006 to unfavorable medical cost development during 2007.
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For each period, our operating results include the effects of revisions in medical cost estimates related to all prior
periods. Changes in medical cost estimates related to prior fiscal years, resulting from more complete claim
information and other facts and circumstances, that are identified in the current year are included in total medical
costs reported for the current fiscal year, Medical costs for 2007 included approximately $420 million of
favorable medical cost development related to prior fiscal years. Medical costs for 2006 included approximately
$430 million of favorable medical cost development related to prior fiscal years.

Medical costs for 2007 increased $2.1 billion, or 4%, to $55.4 billion, primarily due to an annual medical cost
trend of 7% to 8% on commercial risk-based business due to medical cost inflation and increased utilization, as
well as growth in Ovations Medicare programs, partially offset by a decrease in the number of individuals served
by commercial risk-based products.

Operating Costs

The operating cost ratio (operating costs as a percentage of total revenues) for 2007 of 14.0% was consistent with
2006. The operating cost ratio reflected productivity gains from technology deployment and other cost
management initiatives, offset by the effect of business mix change as fee-based businesses such as Ingenix
increase in size and impact, as well as increased investment in technology, service and product enhancements;
incremental marketing and advertising costs for Medicare Advantage products; and expenses in the first quarter
of 2007 associated with the application of deferred compensation rules under Section 409A of the Internal
Revenue Code (Section 409A) to our historical stock option practices, as described below.

Operating costs in 2007 totaled $10.6 billion, an increase of $602 million, or 6%, over 2006. This increase was
primarily due to general operating cost inflation and was also impacted by the items discussed above.

Included in the operating costs for 2007 is $176 million ($112 million net of tax benefit) of expenses recorded in
the first quarter of 2007 related to application of deferred compensation rules under Section 409A to our
historical stock option practices, As part of our review of the Company’s historical stock option practices, we
determined that certain stock options granted to individuals who were nonexecutive officer employees at the time
of grant were granted with an exercise price that was lower than the closing price of our common stock on the
applicable accounting measurement date, subjecting these individuals to additional tax under Section 409A. The
Company elected to pay these individuals for the additional tax costs relating to such stock options exercised in
2006 and early 2007, For any outstanding stock options subject to additional tax under Section 409A that were
granted to nonexecutive officer employees, the Company increased the exercise price and committed to make
cash payments to these optionholders for their vested options based on the difference between the original stock
option exercise price and the revised increased stock option exercise price. The payments will be made on a
quarterly basis upon vesting of the applicable awards. The first payment of $110 million was made to
optionholders in January 2008 for options vested through December 31, 2007. Aggregate future payments will be
$38 million, assuming all applicable options vest during 2008 and 2009. If the modified stock options are
subsequently exercised, the Company will recover these cash payments at that time from exercise proceeds at the
revised increased stock option exercise prices.

The $176 million Section 409A charge includes $87 million of expense ($55 million net of tax benefit) for the
payment of certain optionholders’ tax obligations for stock options exercised in 2006 and early 2007 and $89
million of expense {$57 million net of tax benefit) for the modification related to increasing the exercise price of
unexercised stock options granted to nonexecutive officer employees and the related cash payments. These
amounts have been recorded as corporate expenses and have not been allocated to individual business segments.

As previously disclosed, in December 2006, the Company entered into agreements with individuals who were
executive officers of the Company at the time of grant of an applicable stock option to increase the exercise price
of certain outstanding stock options. No compensation was payable to any of those individuals as a result of the
increase in the exercise price of their stock options.
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Cost of Products Sold

Cost of products sold in 2007 totaled $768 million, an increase of $169 million, or 28%, over 2006, This was
primarily due to costs associated with increased pharmacy sales at Prescription Solutions as a result of providing
prescription drug benefit services to an additional four million Ovations Medicare Advantage and Part D
members in 2007,

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization in 2007 was $796 million, an increase of $126 million, or 19%, over 2006. This
increase was primarily related to higher levels of computer equipment and capitalized software as a result of
technology enhancements, business growth and businesses acquired since the beginning of 2006, as well as
separately identifiable intangible assets acquired in business acquisitions since the beginning of 2006.

Income Taxes
Our effective income tax rate was 36.3% in both 2007 and 2006.

Business Segments

During the fourth quarter of 2007, we completed the transition to our new segment reporting structure which
reflects how our chief operating decision maker now manages our business. Our new reporting structure has four
reporting segments:

» Health Care Services, which now includes our Commercial Markets (UnitedHealthcare and Uniprise),
Ovations and AmeriChoice businesses;

» OptumHealth;
* Ingenix; and

« Prescription Solutions (formerly included in the Ovations business).

Historical financial data as of and for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 was revised to reflect our
new segment operating and financial reporting structure.

The following summarizes the operating results of our reporting segments for the years ended December 31:

Percent
(in millions) 2007 2006 Change
Revenues
Health Care ServiCes » .o v et et et it e et $ 71,199 $ 67,817 5%
OptumHealth ........ ... ..o i i 4921 4342 13%
(=] 1 1,304 956 36%
Prescription Solutions . .......... ... i 13,249 4,084 224%
FlMinations . ..ot tereen e taanennaerneneesans (15,242} (5,657) nm
Consolidated ReVeNUES .. .. .o vvnt it iirieiacaenenrneens $ 75431 $ 71,542 5%
Earnings from Operations
Health Care ServiCes . .. oot erre e rine e ena i rnaas $ 6,595 $ 5,860 13%
OptumHealth .. ..., ... i e 895 809 11%
INEENIX . o v v et 266 176 51%
Prescription Solutions . ........ovivuiiii e 269 139 94%
COTPOTALE . .« o ettt et et ime e aaainnnaassnen (176) — nm
Consolidated Earnings From Operations ... ................ $ 7849 $ 6984 12%

nm - not meaningful
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Health Care Services

The Heaith Care Services segment is composed of the Commercial Markets, Ovations and AmeriChoice
businesses. Commercial Markets is comprised of UnitedHealthcare, which offers a comprehensive array of
consumer-oriented health benefit plans and services for local, small and mid-sized employers and individuals
nationwide, and Uniprise, which provides these services on a dedicated basis to large, multi-site employers.
Ovations provides health and well-being services to individuals age 50 and older and AmeriChoice provides
network-based health and well-being services to state Medicaid programs and the beneficiaries of those
programs, The financial results of Commercial Markets, Ovations and AmeriChoice have been aggregated in the
Health Care Services segment due to the similar economic characteristics, products and services, types of
customers, distributton methods and operational processes, and regulatory environment. These businesses also
share significant common assets, including our contracted networks of physicians, health care professionals,
hospitals and other facilities, information technology infrastructure and other resources.

Health Care Services had revenues of $71.2 billion in 2007, representing an increase of $3.4 billion, or 5%, over
2006. Commercial Markets revenues of $40.3 billion in 2007 increased by $821 million, or 2%, over 2006. This
increase was driven mainly by average net premium rate increases of 7% to 8% on UnitedHealthcare’s renewing
commercial risk-based products, an increase in the number of individuals served by commercial fee-based
products and businesses acquired since the beginning of 2006. This was partially offset by a 4% decrease in the
number of individuals served by commercial risk-based products in 2007 primarily due to the Company’s
internal pricing decisions in a competitive commercial risk-based pricing environment and the conversion of
certain groups to commercial fee-based products. Ovations revenues of $26.5 billion in 2007 increased by
approximately $1.8 billion, or 7%, over 2006. The increase was primarily driven by an increase in individuals
served by standardized Medicare supplement and Evercare products, and rate increases on Medicare Advantage
products as well as continued growth in our Medicare Part ID program. The rematning Health Care Services
revenue increase resulted from an increase in AmeriChoice revenues of $750 million, or 20%, over 2006
primarily due to an increase in the number of individuals served by Medicaid products as well as rate increases.

Health Care Services earnings from operations in 2007 were $6.6 billion, representing an increase of $735
million, or 13%, over 2006. This increase was principally driven by a decrease in the medical care ratio for
Ovations primarily due to favorable medical cost trends and an increase in the number of individuals served by
certain Medicare products and related rate increases discussed above, partially offset by a decrease in individuals
served by commercial risk-based products and an increase in the related medical care ratio. The Commercial
Markets medical care ratio increased to 82.6% in 2007 from 80.5% in 2006 and the UnitedHealthcare medical
care ratio increased to 82.1% in 2007 from 79.8% in 2006, These increases were mainly due to the Company's
internal pricing decisions in a competitive commercial risk-based pricing environment as well as a shift from
favorable medical cost development for UnitedHealthcare during 2006 to unfavorable medical cost development
during 2007, which was partially driven by costs from higher benefit utilization in December 2006 primarily
relating to high-deductible risk-based products. The Health Care Services operating margin for 2007 was 9.3%,
an increase from 8.6% in 2006, which reflected productivity gains from technology deployment and disciplined
operating cost management as well as the factors discussed above,
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The following table summarizes the number of individuals served by Health Care Services, by major market
segment and funding arrangement, as of December 31:

(in thousands) 2007 2006
Commercial Risk-based ... .ottt i ettt e e 10,805 11,285
Commercial Fee-based . .. ...ttt it ir ettt aaa e s 14,720 14,415
Total Commercial .. ... ..ottt ittt ettt iaacar st eaeasasa e 25,525 25,700
Medicare AGVANIAEE . ... ..vvo it et e 1,370 1,445
MeEdiCaid . .. oo et e e me e 1,710 1,465
Standardized Medicare Supplement ...... ... ... 2,400 2,275
Total Public and Semior . ... ot v ittt et e et e e 5,480 5,185
Total Health Care Services Medical Benefits .. ....... ... e 31,005 30,885

The number of individuals served with commercial products as of December 31, 2007 decreased by 175,000, or
1%, from the prior year. The number of individuals served with commercial fee-based products as of
December 31, 2007 increased by 305,000, or 2%, over 2006 driven by new customer relationships and customers
converting from risk-based products to fee-based products, partially offset by employment attrition at continuing
customers. The number of individuals served with commercial risk-based products decreased by 480,000, or 4%,
primarily due to a competitive pricing environment and the conversion of individuals to fee-based products.

The number of individuals served by Medicare Advantage products as of December 31, 2007 decreased by
75.000, or 5%, from 2006, primarily due to a decline in participation in private-fee-for-service offerings, while
individuals served by standardized Medicare supplement products increased by 125,000, or 5%, due to new
customer relationships. Medicaid enrollment increased 245,000, or 17%, in 2007 primarily due to new customer
gains, including 180,000 individuals served under the TennCare program in Tennessee.

OptumHealth

OptumHealth provides health, well-being and financial services to people and organizations nationwide through
personalized health advocacy and engagement, specialized benefits such as behavioral, dental and vision
offerings, and health-based financial services. OptumHealth revenues of $4.9 billion increased by $579 million,
or 13%, over 2006. This increase was principally driven by an increase in the number of individuals served by
several of its specialty benefit businesses and rate increases related to these businesses.

OptumHealth earnings from operations in 2007 of $895 million increased $86 million, or 11%, over 2006
primarily due to the membership growth and rate increases discussed above. The OptumHealth operating margin
declined from 18.6% in 2006 to 18.2% in 2007 due to a continued business mix shift toward higher revenue,
lower margin products, partially offset by effective operating cost management.

Ingenix

Ingenix offers solutions to a spectrum of health care market participants on a national and international basis,
including data management services, software products, publications, consuhing and actuarial services, business
process outsourcing services, clinical research outsourcing, pharmaceutical data and consulting services, and
revenue cycle management solutions. Ingenix revenues for 2007 of $1.3 billion increased by $348 million, or
36%, over 2006. This was primarily driven by new business growth in the health information and contract
research businesses as well as from businesses acquired since the beginning of 2006.

Ingenix earnings from operations in 2007 were $266 million, up $90 million, or 51%, from 2006. This increase in
earnings from operations was primarily due to growth in the health information and contract research businesses,
businesses acquired since the beginning of 2006 and effective operating cost management. The operating margin
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was 20.4% in 2007, up from 18.4% in 2006. This increase in operating margin was largely driven by business
growth and operating cost management described above.

Prescription Solutions

Prescription Solutions offers a comprehensive array of PBM and specialty pharmacy management services to
employer groups, union trusts, seniors through Medicare prescription drug plans, and commercial health plans.
Prescription Solutions revenues for 2007 of $13.2 billion increased by $9.2 billion, or 224%, over 2006. This was
primarily driven by providing prescription drug benefit services to an additional four mitlion Ovations Medicare
Advantage and stand-alone Part D members. Intersegment revenues were eliminated in consolidation and
amounted to $12.4 billion and $3.4 billion for 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Prescription Solutions earnings from operations in 2007 of $269 million increased $130 million, or 94%, from
2006 due largely to the expansion of services to Medicare Part D members discussed above. The operating
margin was 2.0% in 2007, a decrease from 3.4% in 2006. The decrease in operating margin reflected the
comparatively lower margin earned in the high volume Ovations Medicare Part D prescription drug service
contract.

2006 Results Compared to 2005 Results
Consolidated Financial Results
Revenues

Consolidated revenues in 2006 of $71.5 billion increased by $25.1 billion, or 54%, over 2005. Excluding the
impact of businesses acquired since the beginning of 2005, consolidated revenues increased by approximately
219 in 2006 principally driven by the successful launch of the Medicare Part D program on January 1, 2006, rate
increases on premium-based and fee-based services and growth in individuals served across our business
segments. Following is a discussion of our 2006 consolidated revenue for each of our revenue components.

Premium Revenues. Consolidated premium revenues totaled $65.7 billion in 2006, an increase of $23.6 billion,
or 56%, over 2005. Excluding the impact of acquisitions since the beginning of 2005, consolidated premium
revenues increased by $8.8 billion, or 21%, over 20035. The increase was primarily driven by premium rate
increases and the successful launch of the Medicare Part D program, partially offset by a slight decrease in the
number of individuals served by our commercial risk-based products.

Commercial Markets premium revenues in 2006 totaled $35.6 billion, an increase of $7.5 billion, or 27%, over
2005. Excluding premium revenues from businesses acquired since the beginning of 2005, Commercial Markets
premium revenues were essentially flat compared to 2005, This was primarily due to average net premium rate
increases of approximately 8% or above on UnitedHealthcare’s renewing commercial risk-based products, offset
by lower premium yields from new business primarily due to a larger portion of new customer sales generated
from high-deductible lower-premium products (with correspondingly lower medical costs), and a 5% decrease in
the number of individuals served by commercial risk-based products primarily due to the Company’s internal
pricing decisions in a competitive commercial risk-based pricing environment and the conversion of certain
groups to fee-based products. Ovations premium revenues in 2006 totaled $24.4 billion, an increase of $15.2
billion, or 165%, over 2005. Excluding the impact of acquisitions since the beginning of 2005, Ovations
premium revenues increased by approximately $8.3 billion, or 92%, over 2005. The increase was primarily
driven by the successful launch of the Medicare Part D program, which had premium revenues of $5.7 billion for
2006, and an increase in the number of individuals served by Medicare Advantage and standardized Medicare
supplement products, as well as rate increases on these products. OptumHealth premium revenues increased by
approximately $1.0 billion over 2005. This was primarily due to the acquisition of PacifiCare Health Systems,
Inc. (PacifiCare) and strong growth in the number of individuals served by several OptumHealth businesses
under premium-based arrangements. The remaining premium revenue increase primarily resulted from
membership growth and premium revenue rate increases in AmeriChoice’s Medicaid programs, which
contributed premium revenue increases of approximately $278 million, or 8%, over 2005.
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Service Revenues. Service revenues in 2006 totaled $4.3 billion, an increase of $602 million, or 16%, over 2005.
Excluding the impact of acquisitions since the beginning of 2005, service revenues increased by approximately
129 over 2005. The increase in service revenues was primarily driven by aggregate growth of 8% in the number
of individuals served by commercial fee-based arrangements during 2006, as well as annual rate increases. In
addition, Ingenix service revenues increased by approximately 22% due to new business growth in the health
information and contract research businesses and from businesses acquired since the beginning of 2005.

Product Revenues. Product revenues in 2006 totaled $737 million, an increase of $579 million over 2005. This
was primarily due to increased pharmacy sales at Prescription Solutions, which was acquired in December 2005
with the purchase of PacifiCare.

Investment and Other Income. Investment and other income during 2006 totaled $871 million, representing an
increase of $366 million over 2005. Interest income increased by $372 mitlion in 2006, principally due to the
impact of increased levels of cash and fixed-income investments during the year, due in part to the acquisition of
PacifiCare, as well as higher yields on fixed-income investments. Net capital gains on sales of investments were
$4 million in 2006 and $10 million in 2005,

Medical Costs

The consolidated medical care ratio increased from 80.0% in 2005 to 81.2% in 2006. This medical care ratio
increase resulted primarily from the impact of the acquisition of PacifiCare and launch of the Medicare Part D
program, both of which carry a higher medical care ratio than the historic UnitedHealth Group businesses.
Medical costs for 2006 include approximately $430 million of favorable medical cost development related to
prior fiscal years. Medical costs for 2005 include approximately $400 million of favorable medical cost
development related to prior fiscal years.

Medical costs for 2006 increased $19.6 billion, or 58%, to $53.3 billion, due to the impact of businesses acquired
since the beginning of 2005, medical costs associated with the new Medicare Part D program and a medical cost
trend of 7% to 8% on commercial risk-based business. Medical costs associated with the new Medicare Part D
program for 2006 were $4.9 billion. The medical cost trend was due to both medical inflation and increases in
health care consumption.

Operating Costs

The operating cost ratio for 2006 of 14.0%, improved from 15.4% in 2005. This decrease was primarily driven
by revenue mix changes, with premium revenues growing at a faster rate than service revenues primarily due to
the new Medicare Part D program and the PacifiCare acquisition. Operating costs as a percentage of premium
revenues are generally considerably lower than operating costs as a percentage of fee-based revenues. The
decrease in the operating cost ratio reflected productivity gains from technology deployment and other cost
management initiatives, including cost savings associated with the PacifiCare acquisition integration, and an
insurance recovery of $43 million. These items were partially offset by a $22 million charitable contribution to
the United Health Foundation and approximately $44 million of additional cash expenses related to the stock
option review, exclusive of share-based compensation expense.

Operating costs in 2006 totaled $10.0 billion, an increase of $2.8 billion, or 40%, over 2005. Excluding the
impact of businesses acquired since the beginning of 2005, operating costs increased by approximately 13% over
2005. The increase was primarily due to the new Medicare Part D program as well as a 4% increase in the total
number of individuals served by Health Care Services during 2006 (excluding the impact of acquisitions since
the beginning of 2005), growth in OptumHealth and Ingenix, general operating cost inflation, and the specific
items discussed above, partially offset by productivity gains from technology deployment, cost savings
associated with acquisition integrations and other cost management initiatives.
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Cost of Products Sold

Cost of products sold in 2006 totaled $599 million, an increase of 3510 million over 2005. This increase was
primarily due to increased pharmacy sales at Prescription Solutions, which was acquired in December 2005 with
the purchase of PacifiCare.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization in 2006 was $670 million, an increase of $217 million, or 48%, over 2005.
Approximately $85 million of this increase was related to intangible assets from PacifiCare and other businesses
acquired since the beginning of 2005. The remaining increase was primarily due to additional depreciation and
amortization from higher levels of computer equipment and capitalized software as a result of technology
enhancements, business growth and businesses acquired since the beginning of 2005.

Income Taxes

Our effective income tax rate was 36.3% in 2006 and in 2005.

Business Segments

The following summarizes the operating results of our business segments for the years ended December 31:

Percent
(in millions) 2006 2005 Change
Revenues
Health Care Services . ... ovviti o e it enerenes $ 67817 $ 44,119 54%
OptumHealth ... ... .. e 4,342 3,127 39%
IgemiX L L e e 956 796 20%
Prescription Solutions .. ...... .. ... .. . i 4,084 78 nm
Elminations . ........ . i i e e s (5,657 (1,695) nm
Consolidated ReVENUES . .. ..ottt i $ 71542 $ 46425 54%

Earnings from Operations

Health Care Sefvices . ... .. ..ttt eii e iaans $ 5860 & 4,376 34%
OptumHealth . ... ...\ 809 574 41%
IngemiX . e et 176 130 35%
Prescription Solutions . ........ ... ... .. i 139 —_ nm

Consolidated Earnings From Operations .................... $ 6984 $ 5080 3%

nm - not meaningful

Health Care Services

Health Care Services had revenues of $67.8 billion in 2006, representing an increase of $23.7 billion, or 54%,
over 2005, Excluding the impact of businesses acquired since the beginning of 2005, Health Care Services
revenues increased by approximately $8.6 billion, or 20%, over 2005. Commercial Markets revenues of $39.5
billion in 2006 increased by $8.1 billion, or 26%, over 2005, Excluding the impact of businesses acquired since
the beginning of 2005, Commercial Markets revenues increased by approximately 2% over 2005. This was
primarily due to an 8% increase in the number of individuals served with commercial fee-based products and
annual service fee rate increases for self-insured customers, as well as average premium rate increases of
approximately 8% or above on UnitedHealthcare’s renewing risk-based products, partially offset by lower
premium yields from a larger portion of new customer sales generated from high-deductible lower-premium
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products and a 5% decrease in the number of individuals served by commercial risk-based products in 2006
primarily due to the Company’s internal pricing decisions in a competitive commercial risk-based pricing
environment and the conversion of certain groups to fee-based products. Ovations revenues of $24.6 billion in
2006 increased by approximately $15.2 billion, or 162%, over 2005. Excluding the impact of acquisitions since
the beginning of 2005, Ovations revenues increased by $7.8 billion, or 85%, over 2005. The increase was
primarily driven by the successful launch of the Medicare Part D program, which had premium revenues of $5.7
billion for 2006, and an increase in the number of individuals served by Medicare Advantage and standardized
Medicare supplement products, as well as rate increases on these products. The remaining increase in Health
Care Services revenues is attributable to a 8% increase in AmeriChoice revenues, excluding the impact of
businesses acquired since the beginning of 2005, primarily driven by membership growth and premium revenue
rate increases on Medicaid preducts.

Health Care Services earnings from operations in 2006 were $5.9 billion, representing an increase of $1.5 billion,
or 34%, over 2005, This increase was principally driven by acquisitions and increases in the number of
individuals served by Ovations' Medicare and Part D products and Commercial Markets’ fee-based products.
The segment also benefited by productivity gains from technology deployment and other cost management
initiatives, including cost savings associated with the PacifiCare acquisition integration. These initiatives also
reduced labor and occupancy costs in the transaction processing and customer service, billing and enroliment
functions. The Commercial Markets medical care ratio increased to 80.5% in 2006 from 79.6% in 2005 and the
UnitedHealthcare medical care ratio increased to 79.8% in 2006 from 78.6% in 2005, mainly due to the impact of
the PacifiCare acquisition and changes in product, business and customer mix. Health Care Services’ operating
margin for 2006 was 8.6%, a decrease from 9.9% in 2005. This decrease was driven mainly by the acquisition of
PacifiCare and the new Medicare Part D program, which have lower operating margins than historic
UnitedHealth Group businesses.

The following table summarizes the number of individuals served by Health Care Services, by major market
segment and funding arrangement, as of December 31

(in thousands) 2006 2005
Commercial Risk-based ........... it it 11,285 11,350
Commercial Fee-based ... ...t ittt 14,415 13,240
Total Commercial . ........c.vii ittt et e 25,700 24,590
Medicare ADVANLARE ... ... ... . i 1,445 1,185
Medicaid ... vt ittt e e 1,465 1,290
Standardized Medicare Supplement . ....... ... . i i 2275 2,150
Total Publicand Senior ... ... ittt e i e 5,185 4,625
Total Health Care Services Medical Benefits ................. ..., 30,885 29,215

The number of individuals served by commercial products as of December 31, 2006 increased by approximately
1.1 million, or 5%, over the prior year. Excluding the impact of businesses acquired since the beginning of 2005,
commercial business individuals served increased by 565,000, or 3%, over the prior year. This included an
increase of approximately 1.0 million in the number of individuals served with commercial fee-based products,
driven by new customer relationships and customers converting from risk-based products to fee-based products,
offset by a decrease of approximately 475,000 in the number of individuals served with commercial risk-based
products primarily due to the Company’s internal pricing decisions in a competitive commercial risk-based
pricing environment and the conversion of certain groups to fee-based products.

Excluding businesses acquired since the beginning of 2005, the number of individuals served by Medicare
Advantage products increased by 230,000 from 2005 primarily due to new customer relationships, while
individuals served by standardized Medicare supplement products increased by 125,000, or 6%, due to new
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customer gains. Excluding the impact of businesses acquired since the beginning of 2005, Medicaid enrollment
increased 65,000, or 5%, primarily due to new customer gains.

OptumHealth

OptumHealth revenues of $4.3 billion increased by $1.2 billion, or 39%, over 2005. Excluding the impact of
businesses acquired since the beginning of 2005, revenues increased by 20% over the prior period. This increase
was principally driven by an increase in the number of individuals served by several of its specialty benefit
businesses and rate increases related to these businesses.

Earnings from operations in 2006 of $809 million increased $235 million, or 41%, over 2005, OptumHealth
operating margin was 18.6% in 2006, up from 18.4% in 2005. Realized improvements in operating cost structure
and benefits from the integration of PacifiCare specialty operations in 2006 were partially offset by a business
mix shift toward higher revenue, lower margin products.

Ingenix

Ingenix revenues for 2006 of $956 million increased by $160 million, or 20%, over 2005. This was primarily
driven by new business growth in the health information and contract research businesses, as well as businesses
acquired since the beginning of 2005. Earnings from operations in 2006 were $176 million, up $46 million, or
35%, from 2003. Operating margin was 18.4% in 2006, up from 16.3% in 2005. These increases in earnings from
operations and operating margin were primarily due to growth in the health information and pharmaceutical
services businesses, improving gross margins due to effective cost management, and businesses acquired since
the beginning of 2005.

Prescription Solutions

Results for Prescription Solutions in 2006 included revenues of $4.1 billion, earnings from operations of $139
million and operating margin of 3.4%. The 2005 results included $78 million of revenue and no earnings from
operations. The increases in 2006 were primarily due to the timing of the acquisition of this business, which was
acquired in December 2005 with the purchase of PacifiCare.

Liquidity, Financial Condition and Capital Resources
Liquidity and Financial Condition

We manage our cash, investments and capital structure so we are able to meet the short and long-term obligations
of our business while maintaining strong financial flexibility and liquidity. We forecast, analyze and monitor our
cash flows to enable prudent investment management and financing within the confines of our financial strategy.

Our regulated subsidiaries generate significant cash flows from operations. A majority of the assets held by our
regulated subsidiaries are in the form of cash, cash equivalents and investments. Afier considering expected cash
flows from operating activities, we generally invest cash of regulated subsidiaries that exceed our short-term
obligations in longer term, investment-grade, marketable debt securities to improve our overail investment return.
Factors we consider in making these investment decisions include our Board of Directors’ approved investment
policy, regulatory limitations, return objectives, tax implications, risk tolerance and maturity dates. Qur long-
term investments are also available for sale to meet short-term liquidity and other needs. Cash in excess of the
capital needs of our regulated entities is paid to their non-regulated parent companies, typically in the form of
dividends, for general corporate use, when and as permitted by applicable regulations.

QOur non-regulated businesses also generate significant cash from operations for general corporate nse. Cash
flows generated by these entities, combined with the issuance of commercial paper, long-term debt and the
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availability of committed credit facilities, further strengthen our operating and financial flexibility. We generally
use these cash flows to reinvest in our businesses in the form of capital expenditures, to expand the depth and
breadih of our services through business acquisitions, and to repurchase shares of our common stock, depending
on market conditions.

Cash flows generated from operating activities, our primary source of liquidity, are principally from premiums,
fee income and investment income. Any future decline in our profitability may have a negative impact on our
liquidity. The level of profitability of our risk-based insured business depends in large part on our ability to
accurately predict and price for health care and operating cost increases. This risk is partially mitigated by the
diversity of our other businesses, the geographic diversity of our risk-based business and our disciplined
underwriting and pricing processes, which seek to match premium rate increases with estimated future health
care costs. In 2007, a hypethetical unexpected 1% increase in commercial insured medical costs would have
reduced net earnings by approximately $190 million.

Change in Capital Structure. On October 31, 2007, we announced that we may increase the debt component of
our capital structure to the 40 percent range of debt-to-total-capital. Effective with our debt issuances in the
fourth quarter of 2007 and share repurchases through year end, the debt component of our capital structure
increased to 35.4%. Refer to “— Financing Activities” below for further detail of the debt issuances, including
the February 2008 issuance. These events increased our debt-to-total-capital ratio and will reduce our weighted
average total cost of capital. This change will also increase our interest expense during 2008, and thereafter as
applicable. As a result of this announcement on October 31, 2007, Standard & Poor's (S&P) downgraded our
senior debt rating one notch from “A” to “A-" and our commercial paper rating one notch from “Al” to “A2”.
S&P maintained our outlook at stable for both our senior debt and commercial paper. On January 9, 2008,
Moody’s downgraded our senior debt rating to “Baal” and returned our outlook to stable. Moody’s affirmed our
commercial paper rating at “P-2” with a stable outlook. On January 30, 2008, Fitch downgraded our senior debt
rating to “A-" with a stable outlook and maintained our commercial paper rating at “F-1" with a stable outlook.
The interest rates on our debt and commercial paper did not change as a result of the change in debt ratings. We
believe the prudent use of debt optimizes our cost of capital and return on sharcholders’ equity, while
maintaining appropriate liquidity.

Operating Activities

Net cash flows from operating activities totaled $5.9 billion, $6.5 billion and $4.1 billion for 2007, 2006 and
2005, respectively. Cash from operating activities in 2007 decreased from 2006 by $649 million, or 10%, due to
a reduction in working capital cash flows of $1.5 billion partially offset by an increase of $495 million in net
income. The decrease in working capital cash flows was driven by lower medical costs payable growth primarily
related to Ovations Medicare programs as the 2006 operating cash flows benefited from the initial establishment
of the medical costs payable balance related to the Medicare Part D program, fewer income tax refunds received
in 2007 as well as larger income tax payments and the timing of certain government payments and receipts.
Overall, our receivables and related days sales outstanding increased primarily as a result of these governmental
timing differences, while our commercial business receivables remained relatively flat.

Investing Activities

Net cash flows used for investing activities totaled $4.1 billion, $2.1 billion and $3.5 billion for 2007, 2006 and
2005, respectively. For detail on acquisitions, see Note 4 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Financing Activities

Net cash flows used for financing activities totaled $3.2 billion for 2007. Net cash flows from financing activities
totaled $474 million and $836 million for 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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Debt Transactions. In February 2008, we issued a total of $3.0 billion in senior unsecured debt, which included:
$250 million of floating rate notes due February 2011, $550 million of 4.9% fixed-rate notes due February 2013,
$1.1 billion of 6.0% fixed-rate notes due February 2018 and $1.1 billion of 6.9% fixed-rate notes due February
2038. The floating-rate notes are benchmarked to the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBCOR) and had an initial
interest rate of 4.5%. On the same date, we entered into interest rate swap agreements 1o receive fixed rates and
pay variable rates that are benchmarked to the LIBOR on the February 2013 and February 2018 notes with an
aggregate notional amount of approximately $1.7 billion.

In November 2007, we issued $500 million of zero coupon notes due November 2022. These zero coupon notes
are original issue discount notes with an aggregate principal amount due at maturity of approximately $1.1
billion and an accretion yieid of 5.3%. These notes have a put feature that allows a note holder 1o require us to
repurchase the notes at the accreted value at certain annual dates in the future, beginning on November 15, 2010.

In November 2007, we issued a total of $1.6 billion in senior unsecured debt, which included: $250 million of
5.1% fixed-rate notes due November 2010, $450 million of 5.5% fixed-rate notes due November 2012, $250
million of 6.0% fixed-rate notes due November 2017 and $650 million of 6.6% fixed-rate notes due November
2037. These notes were issued pursuant to an exemption from registration under Section 4(2) of the Securities
Act of 1933 (1933 Act). In January 2008, we commenced an offer to allow purchasers of the notes to exchange
each series of these notes for a new issue of substantially identical debt securities registered under the 1933 Act.
We expect to complete the exchange in February 2008.

In June 2007, we issued a total of $1.5 billion in senior unsecured debt, which included: $500 million of floating-
rate notes due June 2010, $500 million of 6.0% fixed-rate notes due June 2017 and $500 million of 6.5% fixed-
rate notes due June 2037. The floating-rate notes due June 2010 are benchmarked to the LIBOR and had an
interest rate of 5.1% at December 31, 2007. These notes were issued pursuant to an exemption from registration
under Section 4(2) of the 1933 Act. In January 2008, we commenced an offer to allow purchasers of the notes to
exchange each series of these notes for a new issue of substantially identical debt securities registered under the
1933 Act. We expect to complete the exchange in February 2008.

In March 2006, we issued a total of $3.0 billion in senior unsecured debt to refinance outstanding commerciat
paper. We issued $650 million of floating-rate notes due March 2009, $750 million of 5.3% fixed-rate notes due
March 2011, $750 million of 5.4% fixed-rate notes due March 2016 and $850 million of 5.8% fixed-rate notes
due March 2036. The floating-rate notes due March 2009 are benchmarked to the LIBOR and had an interest rate
of 5.2% and 5.5% at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

PacifiCare had approximately $100 million par value of 3% convertible subordinated debentures {convertible
notes) which were convertible into approximately 5.2 million shares of UnitedHealth Group’s common stock and
$102 million of cash as of December 31, 2005. In December 2005, we initiated a consent solicitation to all of the
holders of outstanding convertible notes pursuant to which we offered 10 compensate all holders who elected to
convert their notes in accordance with existing terms and consent to an amendment to a covenant in the indenture
governing the convertible notes, The compensation consisted of the present value of interest through October 18,
2007, the earliest mandatory redemption date, plus a pro rata share of $1 million. On January 31, 2006,
approximately $91 million of the convertible notes were tendered pursuant to the offer, for which we issued
4.8 million shares of UnitedHealth Group common stock, valued at $282 million, and cash of $93 million and
amended the indenture governing these notes. During 2007, approximately $9 million of convertible notes were
tendered for conversion, for which we issued 470,119 shares of UnitedHealth Group common stock, valued at
approximately $24 million, and cash of approximately $10 million. In September 2007, we notified the
remaining holders of our intent to fully redeem all outstanding convertible notes on October 18, 2007, the earliest
redemption date. As of October 16, 2007, all convertible notes were tendered pursuant to this redemption notice.

Hedging Activities. To more closely align interest costs with floating interest rates received on our cash
equivalent and investment balances, we have entered into interest rate swap agreements to convert the majority
of our interest rate exposure from fixed rates to variable rates. The interest rate swap agreements have aggregate
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notional amounts of $5.6 billion as of December 31, 2007, with variable rates that are benchmarked to the
LIBOR. As of December 31, 2007, the aggregate asset, recorded at fair value, for all existing interest rate swaps
was approximately $151 million. These interest rate swap agreements qualify as fair value hedges and are
accounted for using the short-cut method under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (FAS 133), whereby the hedges are reported in
our Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value, and the carrying value of the long-term debt is adjusted for an
offsetting amount representing changes in fair value attributable to the bedged risk. Since these amounts
completely offsct, we have reported both the swap asset and the debt liability within debt in our Consolidated
Balance Sheets and there have been mo net gains or losses recognized in our Consolidated Statements of
Operations. At December 31, 2007, the rates used to accrue interest expense on these agreements ranged from
4.1% 10 6.1%.

Stock Repurchases. Under our Board of Directors’ authorization, we maintain a common stock repurchase
program. Repurchases may be made from time to time at prevailing prices, subject to certain restrictions on
volume, pricing and timing. During 2007, we repurchased 125.3 million shares which were settled for cash on or
before December 31, 2007 at an average price of approximately $53 per share and an aggregate cost of
approximately $6.6 billion. During 2006, we repurchased 40.2 million shares which were settled for cash on or
before December 31, 2006 at an average price of approximately $56 per share and an aggregate cost of
approximately $2.2 billion. As of December 31, 2007, we had Board of Directors’ authorization to purchase up to
an additional 171.9 million shares of our common stock. Our common stock repurchase program is discretionary
as we are under no obligation to repurchase shares. We expect to repurchase approximately $5 billion of our
common stock in 2008,

Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, we had commercial paper and debt outstanding of approximately $11.0
billion and $7.5 billion, respectively. Qur debt-to-total-capital ratio was 35.4% and 26.4% as of December 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively. Commercial paper consisted of senior unsecured debt sold on a discounted basis
with maturities up to 270 days.

The availability of financing in the form of debt or equity is influenced by many factors, including our
profitability, operating cash flows, debt levels, debt ratings, debt covenants and other contractual restrictions,
regulatory requirements and market conditions. We believe that our strategies and actions toward maintaining
financial flexibility mitigate much of this risk. However, a significant downgrade in ratings may increase the cost
of borrowing for us or limit our access to capital. See “— Cautionary Statements™ for additional information.

Cash and Investments. We maintained a strong liquidity position, with cash and investments of $22.3 billion and
$20.6 billion at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Total cash and investments increased by $1.7 billion
since December 31, 2006, primarily due to strong operating cash flows, the issuance of debt, and proceeds
received from common stock issuances related to exercises of share-based awards, partially offset by common
stock repurchases, repayments of debt, capital expenditures, and funds paid to Centers for Medicare & Medicaid
Services (CMS) under the Medicare Part D program.

As further described under “— Dividend Restrictions,” many of our subsidiaries are subject to various
government regulations that restrict the timing and amount of dividends and other distributions that may be paid
to their parent companies. At December 31, 2007, approximately $2.4 billion of our $22.3 billion of cash and
investments was held by non-regulated subsidiaries and was available for general corporate use, including
acquisitions and common stock repurchases.

Shelf Registration. In February 2008, we filed a universal S-3 shelf registration statement with the SEC
registering an unlimited amount of debt securities.
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Ratings. Currently, our senior debt is rated “A-" with a stable outlook by S&P, “A-" with a stable outlook by
Fitch, and “Baal” with a stable outloock by Moody’s. Our commercial paper is rated “A2” with a stable outlook
by S&P, “F-1” with a stable outlook by Fitch, and “P-2" with a stable outlook by Moody’s.

Debt Covenants. Our debt arrangements and credit facilities contain various covenants, the most restrictive of
which require us to maintain a debt-to-total-capital ratio (calculated as the sum of commercial paper and debt
divided by the sum of commercial paper, debt and shareholders’ equity) below 50%. We were in compliance
with the requirements of all debt covenants as of December 31, 2007. On August 28, 2006, we received a
purported notice of default from persons claiming to hold our 5.8% Senior Unsecured Notes due March 135, 2036
alleging a violation of the indenture governing those debt securities. This followed our announcement that we
would delay filing our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2006. See Note 13 of Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for details.

Bank Credit Facilities. In November 2007, we entered into a $1.5 billion 364-day revolving credit facility in
order to expand our access to liquidity. The credit facility supports our commercial paper program and is
available for general working capital purposes. As of December 31, 2007, we had no amounts outstanding under
this bank credit facility.

In May 2007, we amended and restated our $1.3 billion five-year revolving credit facility supporting our
commercial paper program. We increased the credit facility to $2.6 billion and extended the maturity date to May
2012. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, we had no amounts outstanding under this credit facility.

In October 2006, we entered into a $7.5 billion 364-day revolving credit facility. Effective August 3, 2007, we
elected to reduce the amount of this facility to $1.5 billion. This credit facility expired on October 15, 2007.

Dividend Restrictions. We conduct a significant portion of our operations through subsidiaries that are subject to
standards established by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners. These standards, among other
things, require these subsidiaries to maintain specified levels of statutory capital, as defined by each state, and
restrict the timing and amount of dividends and other distributions that may be paid to their parent companies.
Generally, the amount of dividend distributions that may be paid by a regulated subsidiary, without prior
approval by state regulatory authorities, is limited based on the entity’s level of statutory net income and
statutory capital and surplus.

In 2007 and 2006, based on the previous years’ statutory net income and statutory capital and surplus levels, the
maximum amounts of dividends which could be paid without prior regulatory approval were $2.5 billion and
$2.2 billion, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company’s regulated
subsidiaries paid approximately $2.9 billion and $2.5 billion in dividends to their parent companies, including
approximately $400 million and $300 million of special dividends approved by state insurance regulators,
respectively. '
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Contractual Obligations, Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Commitments

The following table summarizes future obligations due by period as of December 31, 2007, under our various
contractual obligations, off-balance sheet arrangements and commitments:

(in millions) 2008 2009 to 2010 2011 to 2012 Thereafter Total
Debt and Commercial Paper (1} ............ $ 1946 3 2,103 $ 1,197 § 5763 8§ 11,009
Interest on Debt and Commercial Paper (2) ... 434 804 655 4,147 6,090
Operating Leases ....................... 173 317 204 345 1,039
Purchase Obligations (3) ................. 204 161 17 — 382
Future Policy Benefits{(4) ................ 167 335 327 1,187 2,016
Unrecognized Tax Benefits (5) ............ 4 — — 210 214
Unfunded Investment Commitments (6) . .. .. 131 221 6 3 361
Other Long-Term Obligations (7) .......... 7 31 —_ 408 446
Total Contractual Obligations ......... $ 3,116 $ 3972 § 2406 § 12,063 8 21,557

(1

2

€))

@

(3)

©)

N

Debt payments could be accelerated upon violation of debt covenants. We believe the likelihood of
acceleration is remote.

Calculated using stated rates from the debt agreements and related interest rate swap agreements and
assuming amounts are outstanding through their contractual term. For variable-rate obligations, we used the
rates in place as of December 31, 2007 to estimate all remaining contractual payments. Includes
unamortized discounts from par values.

Includes fixed or minimum commitments under existing purchase obligations for goods and services,
including agreements which are cancelable with the payment of an early termination penalty. Excludes
agreements that are cancelable without penalty and also excludes liabilities to the extent recorded in our
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2007.

Estimated payments required under life and annuity contracts held by a divested entity. Under our
reinsurance arrangement with OneAmerica Financial Partners, Inc. (OneAmerica) these amounts are
payable by OneAmerica, but we remain primarily liable to the policyholders if they are unable 1o pay. We
have recorded a corresponding reinsurance receivable from OneAmerica in our Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Unrecognized tax benefits relate to the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48). Since the timing of future settlements are uncertain, the long-term portion
has been classified as “Thereafter.” See Note 11 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for more
detail.

Includes remaining capital commitments for equity investment funds and the investment commitment
related to the PacifiCare acquisition discussed below.

Includes future payments to optionholders related to the application of Section 409A, as well as obligations
associated with certain employee benefit programs and charitable contributions related to the PacifiCare
acquisition discussed below, which have been classified as “Thereafter” due to uncertainty regarding
payment timing.

The table above includes a facility lease agreement that we signed in 2006. Lease payments are expected to
commence under this agreement in March 2009, at the time we occupy the facility, and extend over a 20-year
period with total estimated lease payments of $229 million.

In conjunction with the PacifiCare acquisition we committed to make $50 million in charitable contributions for
the benefit of California health care consumers, which has been accrued in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. We
have committed to specific projects totaling approximately $18 million of the $50 million charitable commitment
at December 31, 2007, of which $6 million was paid. Additionally, we agreed to invest $200 million in
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California’s health care infrastructure to further health care services to the underserved populations of the
California marketplace, of which $8 million was invested at December 31, 2007. The timing and amount of
individual contributions and investments are at our discretion subject to the advice and oversight of the tocal
regulatory authorities; however, our goal is to have the investment commitment fully funded by the end of 2010.
The investment commitment remains in place for 20 years after funding. The unfunded charitable commitment
and investment commitment have been included in the above table.

At December 31, 2007, we had pending cash acquisitions. See Note 4 of Notes of the Consolidated Financial
Statements for further detail.

We do not have any other material contractual obligations, off-balance sheet arrangements or commitments that
require cash resources; however, we continually evaluate opportunities to expand our operations. This includes
internal development of new products, programs and technology applications, and may include acquisitions.

Medicare Part D Pharmacy Benefits Contract

Beginning January 1, 2006, the Company began serving as a plan sponsor offering Medicare Part D prescription
drug insurance coverage under contracts with CMS. The Company contracts with CMS on an annual basis.
Under Medicare Part D, members have access to a standard drug benefit that features a monthly premium,
typically with an initial annual deductible, coinsurance of 25% for the member and 75% for the Company up to
an initial coverage limit of $2,400 of annual drug costs, no insurance coverage between $2,400 and $5,451
{except the member gets the benefit of the Company’s significant drug discounts), and catastrophic coverage for
annual drug costs in excess of $5,451 covered approximately 80% by CMS, 15% by the Company and 5% by the
member up to an annual out-of-pocket maximum of $3,850.

The Company’s coniract with CMS includes risk-sharing provisions, wherein CMS retains approximately 75% to
80% of the losses or profits ouiside a pre-defined risk corridor. The risk-sharing provisions take effect if actual
pharmacy benefit costs are more than 2.5% above or below expected cost levels as submitted by the Company in
its initial contract application. Contracts are generally non-cancelable by enrollees; however, enrollees may
change plans during an annual enroitment period each year.

As a result of the Medicare Part D product benefit design, the Company incurs a disproportionate amount of
pharmacy benefit costs early in the contract year. While the Company is responsible for approximately 67% of a
Medicare Part D beneficiary’s drug costs up to $2,400, the beneficiary is responsible for 100% of their drug costs
from $2,400 up to $5,451 (at the Company’s discounted purchase price). Consequently, the Company incurs a
disproportionate amount of pharmacy benefit costs in the first half of the contract year as compared with the last
half of the contract year, when comparatively more members will be incurring claims above the $2,400 initial
coverage limit. The uneven timing of Medicare Part D pharmacy benefit claims results in losses in the first half
of the year that entitle the Company to risk-share adjustment payments from CMS. Accordingly, during the
interim periods within the contract year we record a net risk-share receivable from CMS in Other Current Assets
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and a corresponding retrospective premium adjustment in Premivm Revenues
in the Consolidated Statements of Operations, This represents the estimated amount payable by CMS to the
Company under the risk-share contract provisions if the program were terminated based on estimated costs
incurred through that interim period. Those losses are typically expected to reverse in the second half of the year.

Total premium revenues from CMS related to the Medicare Part D program and all other Medicare-related
programs were approximately 25% of our total consolidated revenues for the twelve months ended December 31,
2007.
As of January 1, 2008, certain changes were made to the Medicare Part D coverage by CMS, including:

» The initial coverage limit increased to $2,510.

» The catastrophic coverage begins at $5,726.
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+ The annual out-of-pocket maximum increased to $4,050.
+ The risk-share provisions take effect if actual costs are more than 5% above or below expected costs.

+  CMS retains 50% to 80% of the losses or profits outside this risk corridor.

These changes result in an increase in the amount of losses or profits that we may realize from this contract in
2008 as the amount of risk retained by CMS has diminished.

AARP

We provide health insurance products and services to members of AARP. These products and services are
provided to supplement benefits covered under traditional Medicare (AARP Medicare Supplement Insurance),
hospital indemnity insurance, health insurance focused on persons between 50 to 64 years of age, and other
products (Supplemental Health Insurance Program). Under the Supplemental Health Insurance Program, we are
compensated for transaction processing and other services as well as for assuming underwriting risk. We are also
engaged in product development activities to complement the insurance offerings. Premium revenues from our
portion of the AARP Supplemental Health Insurance Program were approximately $5.3 billion in 2007, $5.0
billion in 2006 and $4.9 billion in 2005.

The underwriting gains or losses related to the AARP Medicare Supplement Insurance business are directly
recorded as an increase or decrease to a rate stabilization fund (RSF). The primary components of the
underwriting results are premium revenue, medical costs, investment income, administrative expenses, member
service expenses, marketing expenses and premium taxes. Underwriting gains and losses are recorded as an
increase or decrease to the RSF and accrue to the overall benefit of the AARP policyholders, unless cumulative
net losses were to exceed the balance in the RSF. To the extent underwriting losses exceed the balance in the
RSF, we would have to fund the deficit. Any deficit we fund could be recovered by underwriting gains in future
periods of the contract. To date, we have not been required to fund any underwriting deficits. As further
described in Note i2 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the RSF balance is reported in Other
Policy Liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. We believe the RSF balance is sufficient to cover potential
future underwriting and other risks and liabilities associated with the contract.

Under separate trademark license agreements with AARP, we sell AARP-branded Medicare Prescription Drug
benefit plans and Medicare Advantage plans. We pay AARP a license fee for the use of the trademark and
member data and assume all operational and underwriting risks.

On October 3, 2007, we entered into new agreements with AARP which amended our existing arrangements. See
Note 12 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further details.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Critical accounting policies are those policies that require management to make challenging, subjective or
complex judgments, often because they must estimate the effects of matters that are inherently uncertain and may
change in subsequent periods. Critical accounting policies involve judgments and uncertainties that are
sufficiently sensitive to result in materially different results under different assumptions and conditions. We
believe our critical accounting policies are those described below. For a detailed discussion of these and other
accounting policies, see Note 2 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Medical Costs

Each reporting period, we estimate our obligations for medical care services that have been rendered on behalf of
insured consumers but for which claims have either not yet been received or processed, and for liabilities for
physician, hospital and other medical cost disputes. We develop estimates for medical care services incurred but
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not reported using an actvarial process that is consistently applied, centrally controlled and automated. The
actuarial models consider factors such as time from date of service to claim receipt, claim backlogs, seasonal
variances in medical care consumption, health care professional contract rate changes, medical care utilization
and other medical cost trends, membership volume and demographics, benefit plan changes, and business mix
changes related to products, customers and geography. Depending on the health care professional and type of
service, the typical billing lag for services can be up to 90 days from the date of service. Substantially all claims
related to medical care services are known and settled within nine to twelve months from the date of service. We
estimate liabilities for physician, hospital and other medical cost disputes based upon an analysis of potential
outcomes, assuming a combination of litigation and settlement strategies.

Each period, we re-examine previously established medical costs payable estimates based on actual claim
submissions and other changes in facts and circumstances. As more complete claim information becomes
available, we adjust the amount of the estimates, and include the changes in estimates in medical costs in the
period in which the change is identified. In every reporting period, our operating results include the effects of
more completely developed medical costs payable estimates associated with previously reported periods. If the
revised estimate of prior period medical costs is less than the previous estimate, we will decrease reported
medical costs in the current period (favorable development). If the revised estimate of prior period medical costs
is more than the previous estimate, we will increase reported medical costs in the current period (unfavorable
development). Historically, the net impact of estimate developments has represented less than 1% of annual
medical costs, less than 5% of annual earnings from operations and less than 4% of medical costs payable.

In developing our medical costs payable estimates, we apply different estimation methods depending on the
month for which incurred claims are being estimated. For example, we actuariaily calculate completion factors
using an analysis of claim adjudication patterns over the most recent 36-month period. A completion factor is an
actuarial estimate, based upon historical experience, of the percentage of incurred claims during a given period
that have been adjudicated by us as of the date of estimation. For months prior to the most recent three months,
we apply the completion factors to actual claims adjudicated-to-date in order to estimate the expected amount of
ultimate incurred claims for those months. We do not believe that completion factors are a reliable basis for
estimating claims incurred for the most recent three months as there is typically insufficient claim data available
for those months to calculate credible completion factors. Accordingly, for the most recent three months, we
estimate claim costs incwrred primarily by applying observed medical cost trend factors to the average per
member per month (PMPM) medical costs incurred in prior months for which more complete claim data is
available, supplemented by a review of near-term completion factors. Medical cost trend factors are developed
through a comprehensive analysis of claims incurred in prior months for which more complete claim data is
available and by reviewing a broad set of health care utilization indicators including, but not limited to, pharmacy
utilization trends, inpatient hospital census data and incidence data from the National Centers for Disease
Control, as well as through a review of near-term completion factors. This approach is consistently applied from
period to period.

Completion factors are the most significant factors we use in developing our medical costs payable estimates for
older periods, generally periods prior to the most recent three months, The following table illustrates the
sensitivity of these factors and the estimated potential impact on our medical costs payable estimates for those
periods as of December 31, 2007:

Completion Factor Increase (Decrease) in
Increase (Decrease) in Factor Medical Costs Payable (1)
(in millions)
(0,750 oot e e e e e i e $ 135
(050 e . o b 90
(3 $ 45
02508 oo e e e e e $ {45)
0800 e e e e 5 (90)
O o e e e e e e $ (135)




Medical cost PMPM trend factors are the most significant factors we use in estimating our medical costs payable
for the most recent three months. The following table illustrates the sensitivity of these factors and the estimated
potential impact on our medical costs payable estimates for the most recent three months as of December 31,
2007:

Medical Cost PMPM Trend Inerease (Decrease) in

Increase (Decrease) in Factor Medical Costs Payable (2)
(in millions)

L $ 258

P $ 172

P ) 86

0 Z $ (86)

73 P $ A7)

(B)0b o v e s $ (258)

(1) Reflects estimated potential changes in medical costs and medical costs payable caused by changes in
completion factors used in developing medical cost payable estimates for older periods, generally periods
prior to the most recent three months.

(2) Reflects estimated potential changes in medical costs and medical costs payable caused by changes in
medical costs PMPM trend data used in developing medical cost payable estimates for the most recent three
months,

The analyses above include those outcomes that are considered reasonably likely based on our historical
experience in estimating liabilities for incurred but not reported benefit claims.

In order to evaluate the impact of changes in medical cost estimates for any particular discrete period, one should
consider both the amount of development recorded in the current period pertaining to prior periods and the
amount of development recorded in subsequent periods pertaining to the current period. The accompanying table
provides a summary of the net impact of favorable development on medical costs and earnings from operations:

Favorable Increase (Decrease) Medical Costs Earnings from Operations
(in millions)  Development to Medical Costs (a) As Reported As Adjusted (b) As Reported As Adjusted (b}
2005 .... § 400 $ @G0 $ 33669 % 33639 § 5,080 $ 5,110
2006 .... § 430 3 10 b 53308 $ 53,318 % 6,984 $ 6,974
2007 .... § 420 (<) $ 55,435 « 3 7,849 (c)

(a) The amount of favorable development recorded in the current year pertaining to the prior year less the
amount of favorable development recorded in the subsequent year pertaining to the current year.

(b) Represents reported amounts adjusted to reflect the net impact of medicat cost development.

(c) Not yet determinable as the amount of prior period development recorded in 2008 will change as our
December 31, 2007 medical costs payable estimate develops throughout 2008.

Our estimate of medical costs payable represents management’s best estimate of our liability for unpaid medical
costs as of December 31, 2007, developed using consistently applied actuarial methods, Management believes
the amount of medical costs payable is reasonable and adequate to cover our liability for unpaid claims as of
December 31, 2007; however, actual claim payments may differ from established estimates. Assuming a
hypothetical 1% difference between our December 31, 2007 estimates of medical costs payable and actual
medical costs payable, excluding the AARP business, 2007 earnings from operations would increase or decrease
by $72 million and diluted net earnings per common share would increase or decrease by $0.03 per share.
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Revenues

Revenues are principally derived from health care insurance premiums. We recognize premium revenues in the
period eligible individuals are entitled to receive health care services. Customers are typically billed monthly at a
contracted rate per eligible person multiplied by the total namber of people eligible to receive services, as
recorded in our records. Employer groups generally provide us with changes to their eligible population one
month in arrears. Each billing includes an adjustment for prior period changes in eligibility status that were not
reflected in our previous billing. We estimate and adjust the current period’s revenues and accounts receivable
accordingly. OQur estimates are based on historical trends, premiums billed, the level of contract renewal activity
and other relevant information. We revise estimates of revenue adjustments each period and record changes in
the period they become known.

Goodwill, Intangible Assets and Other Long-Lived Assets

As of December 31, 2007, we had tong-lived assets, including goodwill, other intangible assets and property,
equipment and capitalized software, of $20.7 billion. We review our goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibles for
impairment annually at the reporting unit level, and we review our remaining long-lived assets for impairment
when events and changes in circumstances indicate we might not recover their carrying value, To determine the
fair value of our long-lived assets and assess their recoverability, we must make assumptions about a wide
variety of internal and external factors including estimated future utility and estimated future cash flows, which
in turn are based on estimates of future revenues, expenses and operating margins. If these estimates or their
related assumptions change in the future, we may be required to record impairment charges for these assets that
could materially affect our results of operations and shareholders’ equity in the pertod in which the impairment
occurs.

Investments

As of December 31, 2007, we had approximately $13.4 billion of investments, primarily held in marketable debt
securities. Our investments are principally classified as available for sale and are recorded at fair value. We
exclude unrealized gains and losses on investments available for sale from carnings and report them together, net
of income tax effects, as a separate component in shareholders’ equity. We continually monitor the difference
between the cost and fair value of our investments. As of December 31, 2007, our investments had gross
unrealized gains of $182 million and gross unrealized losses of $27 million. If any of our investments experience
a decline in fair value that is determined to be other than temporary, based on analysis of relevant factors, we
record a realized loss in our Consolidated Statements of Operations. Management judgment is involved in
evaluating whether a decline in an investment’s fair value is other than temporary. We analyze relevant factors
individually and in combination including the length of time and extent to which market value has been less than
cost, the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer as well as specific events or circumstances that
may influence the operations of the issuer, and our intent and ability to hold the investment for a sufficient time
in order to enable recovery of our cost. New information and the passage of time can change these judgments,
We revise impairment judgments when new information becomes known or when we do not anticipate holding
the investment until recovery and record any resulting impairment charges at that time. We manage our
investment portfolio to limit our exposure to any one issuer or industry and largely limit our investments to U.S.
Government and Agency securities, state and municipal securities, and corporate debt obligations that are
investment grade,

Contingent Liabilities

Because of the nature of our businesses, we are routinely involved in various disputes, legal proceedings and
governmental audits and investigations. We record liabilities for our estimates of the probable costs resulting
from these matters. Our estimates are developed in consultation with outside legal counsel and are based upon an
analysis of potential results, assuming a combination of litigation and settlement strategies and considering our
insurance coverage, if any, for such matters, It is possible that future results of operations for any particular
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quarterly or annual period could be materially affected by changes in our estimates or assumptions. See “—
Cautionary Statements” for a description of the risks related to our pending regulatory inquiries and litigation,

Legal Matters

A description of our legal proceedings is included in Note 13 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
contained in Part II, Item 8 of this report and is incorporated by reference herein.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Investments in financial instruments such as marketable securities and accounts receivable may subject us to
concentrations of credit risk. Our investments in marketable securities are managed under an investment policy
authorized by our Board of Directors. This policy limits the amounts that may be invested in any one issuer and
generally limits our investments to U.S. Government and Agency securities, state and municipal securities and
corporate debt obligations that are investment grade. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to accounts
receivable are limited due to the large number of employer groups that constitute our customer base. As of
December 31, 2007, we had an aggregate $2.0 billion reinsurance receivable resulting from the sale of our
Golden Rule Financial Corporation life and annuity business in 2005. We regularly evaluate the financial
condition of the reinsurer and only record the reinsurance receivable to the extent that the amounts are deemed
probable of recovery. As of December 31, 2007, there were no other significant concentrations of credit risk.

Cautionary Statements

The statements, estimates, projections, guidance or outlook contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K
include forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995
(PSLRA). When used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and in future filings by us with the SEC, in our news
releases, presentations to securities analysts or investors, and in oral statements made by or with the approval of
one of our executive officers, the words or phrases “believes,” “anticipates, expects,” “plans,” “seeks,”
“intends,” “will likely result,” “estimates,” “projects” or similar expressions are intended to identify such
forward-looking statements. These statements are intended to take advantage of the “safe harbor” provisions of
the PSLRA. These forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties that may cause our actual results to
differ materially from the results discussed in the forward-looking statements.

LAY

The following discussion contains certain cautionary statements regarding our business that investors and others
should consider. Except to the extent otherwise required by federal securities laws, we do not undertake to
address or update forward-looking statements in future filings or communications regarding our business or
operating results, and do not undertake to address how any of these factors may have caused results to differ from
discussions or information contained in previous filings or communications. In addition, any of the matters
discussed below may have affected past, as well as current, forward-looking statements about future results. Any
or all forward-looking statements in this Form 10-K and in any other public filings or statements we make may
turn out to be wrong. They can be affected by inaccurate assumptions we might make or by known or unknown
risks and uncertainties. Many factors discussed below will be important in determining future results. By their
nature, forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance or results and are subject to risks,
uncertainties and assumptions that are difficult to predict or quantify. Actual future results may vary materially
from expectations expressed in this report or any of our prior communications.
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Cautionary Statements Relating to Our Historical Steck Option Practices

Matters relating to or arising out of our historical stock option practices, including regulatory inquiries,
litigation matters, and potential additional cash and noncash charges could have a material adverse effect
on the Company.

In early 2006, our Board of Directors initiated an independent review of the Company’s historical stock option
practices from 1994 to 2005. The independent review was conducted by an independent committee comprised of
three independent directors of the Company (Independent Committee) with the assistance of independent counsel
and independent accounting advisors. On October 15, 2006, we announced that the Independent Committee had
completed their review of the Company’s historical stock option practices and reported the findings to the
non-management directors of the Company. As a result of our historical stock option practices, we restated our
previously filed financial statements, we are subject to various regulatory inquiries and litigation matters, and we
may be subject to further cash and noncash charges, the outcome of any or all of which could have a material
adverse effect on us.

Regulatory Inquiries

As previously disclosed, the SEC and the U.S. Attorney for the Southern District of New York are conducting
investigations into the Company’s historical stock option practices and the Company has received requests for
documents from the Minnesota Attorney General and various Congressional committees in connection with these
issues and the Company’s executive compensation practices. We have not resolved these matters. We cannot
provide assurance that the Company will not be subject to adverse publicity, regulatory or criminal fines,
penalties, or other sanctions or contingent liabilities or adverse customer reactions in connection with these
matters. In addition, we may be subject to additional regulatory inquiries arising out of the review of the
Independent Committee, the review of a special litigation committee, consisting of two former Minnesota
Supreme Court Justices, appointed by our Board of Directors to review claims asserted in federal and state
shareholder derivative claims relating to our historical stock option practices (Special Litigation Committee), and
the related restatement of our historical financial statements. Regulatory inquiries may be time consuming,
expensive and disiracting from the conduct of our business. The adverse resolution of any regulatory inquiry
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Litigation Matters

We and certain of our current and former directors and officers are defendants in a consolidated federal securities
class action, an Employment Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (ERISA) class action, and
state and federal shareholder derivative actions relating to our historical stock option practices. We also have
received shareholder demands relating to those practices.

In addition, following our announcement that we would delay filing our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q) for the
quarter ended June 30, 2006, we received a purported notice of default from persons claiming to hold our 5.8%
Senior Unsecured Notes due March 15, 2036 alleging a violation of the indenture governing those debt securities.

We cannot provide assurance that the ultimate outcome of these actions will not have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition or results of operations. See Note 13 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for a more detailed description of these proceedings and shareholder demands.

In addition, we may be subject to additional litigation, proceedings or actions arising out of the Independent
Commitiee’s review, the Special Litigation Committce’s review and the related restatement of our historical
financial statements. Litigation regulatory proceedings or actions may be time consuming, expensive and
distracting from the conduct of our business. The adverse resolution of any specific lawsuit or any potential
regulatory proceeding or action could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations.
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Potential Additional Cash and Noncash Charges

While we belicve we have made appropriate judgments in our restated financial statements in determining the
financial impacts of our historical stock option practices, we cannot provide assurance that the SEC will agree
with the manner in which we have accounted for and reported, or not reported, the financial impacts, including
the adjustments that we made based on our determination of the measurement dates for our historical stock
option grants, If the SEC disagrees with our financial adjustments and such disagreement results in material
changes to our historical financial statements, we may bave to further restate our prior financial statements,
amend prior filings with the SEC, or take other actions not currently contemplated.

In addition, other adjustments for non-operating cash charges may be required in connection with the resolution
of stock option-related matters arising under litigation and the above-referenced regulatory reviews, the amount
and timing of which are uncertain but which could be material.

Caautionary Statements Relating to Our Business

If we fail to effectively estimate and manage our health care costs, the profitability of our risk-based
products could decline and could materially adversely affect our future financial results.

Under our risk-based product arrangements, we assume the risk of both medicai and administrative costs for our
customers in return for monthly premiums. Premium revenues from risk-based products comprise approximately 90%
of our total consolidated revenues. We generally use approximately 80% to 85% of our premium revenues to pay the
costs of health care services delivered to these customers. The profitability of our risk-based products depends in large
part on our ability to predict, price for, and effectively manage health care costs. Total health care costs are affected by
the number of individual services rendered and the cost of each service. Our premium revenue on commercial policies
is typically fixed for a 12-month period and is generally priced one to four months before the contract commences. Our
revenue on Medicare policies is based on bids submitted in June the year before the contract year. We base the
premiums we charge and our Medicare bids on our estimate of futurc health care costs over the fixed contract period;
however, medical cost inflation, regulations and other factors may cause actual costs to exceed what was estimated and
reflected in premiums or bids. These factors may include increased use of services, increased cost of individual
services, catastrophes, epidemics, the introduction of new or costly treatments and technology, new mandated benefits
or other regulatory changes, insured population characteristics and seasonal changes in the level of health care use. As
a measure of the impact of medical cost on our financial results, relatively small differences between predicted and
actual medical costs or utilization rates as a percentage of revenues can result in significant changes in our financial
results. For example, if medical costs increased by 1% without a proportional change in related revenues for
commercial insured products, our annual net earnings for 2007 would have been reduced by approximately $190
million. In addition, the financial results we report for any particular period include estimates of costs that have been
incurred for which claims are still outstanding. If these estimates prove too low, they will have a negative impact on
our future results.

If we fail to comply with or fail to respond quickly and appropriately to frequent changes in federal and
state regulations, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely
affected.

Our business is regulated at the federal, state, local and international levels. The laws and rules governing our
business and interpretations of those laws and rules are subject to frequent change. The broad latitude that is
given to the agencies administering those regulations, as well as future laws and rules could force us to change
how we do business, restrict revenue and enrollment growth, increase our health care and administrative costs
and capital requirements, and increase our liability in federal and state courts for coverage determinations,
contract interpretation and other actions. We must obtain and maintain regulatory approvals to market many of
our products, to increase prices for certain regulated products and to complete certain acquisitions and
dispositions, including integration of certain acquisitions. Delays in obtaining approvals or our failure to obtain
or maintain these approvals could reduce our revenue or increase our costs.
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We participate in federal, state and local government health care coverage programs. These programs generally
are subject to frequent change, including changes that may reduce the number of persons enrolled or eligible,
reduce the amount of reimbursement or payment levels, or increase our administrative or health care costs under
such programs. Such changes have adversely affected our financial results and willingness to participate in such
programs in the past, and may do so in the future.

State legislatures and Congress continue to focus on health care issues. Legislative and regulatory proposals at
state and federal levels may affect certain aspects of our business, including contracting with physicians,
hospitals and other health care professionals; physician reimbursement methods and payment rates, coverage
determinations; mandated benefits and minimum medical expenditures; claim payments and processing; drug
utilization and patient safety efforts; use and maintenance of individually identifiable health information; medical
malpractice litigation; consumer-driven health plans and health savings accounts and insurance market reforms;
confidentiality of health information; and government-sponsored programs. For example, from time to time,
Congress has considered vartous forms of managed care reform legislation which if adopted, could
fundamentally alter the treatment of coverage decisions under ERISA. Additionally, there have been legislative
attempts to limit ERISA’s preemptive effect on state laws. If adopied, such limitations could increase our liability
exposure and could permit greater state regulation of our operations. We cannot predict if any of these initiatives
will ultimately become law, or, if enacted, what their terms or the regulations promulgated pursvant to such laws
will be, but their enactment could increase our costs, expose us to expanded liability and require us to revise the
ways in which we conduct business or put us at risk for loss of business.

In addition, the health care industry is subject to negative publicity. Negative publicity may result in increased
regulation and legislative review of industry practices, which may further increase our costs of doing business
and adversely affect our profitability by: adversely affecting our ability to market our products and services;
requiring us to change our products and services; or increasing the regulatory burdens under which we operate.

In August 2007, we entered into a multi-state national agreement with regulatory offices in 38 states relating to
the legacy UnitedHealthcare fully insured commercial business. The agreement covers several key areas of
review of our business operations, including claims payment accuracy and timeliness, appeals and grievances
resolution timeliness, health care professional network/service, utilization review, explanation of benefits
accuracy, and oversight and due diligence of contracted entities and vendor performance. The agreement
addressed and resolved past regulatory matters related to the areas of review prior to August 2007 and establishes
a transparent framework for evaluating and regulating performance through December 2010. On a prospective
basis, the agreement is similar to a customer performance guarantee, whereby we will self report quarterly and
annually our operational performance on a set of national performance standards agreed to by the participating
states. We must perform to the standards set forth in the agreement, or be subject to fines and penalties.

We are also involved in various governmental investigations, audits and reviews. These regulatory activities
include routine, regular and special investigations, audits and reviews by CMS, state insurance and health and
welfare departments and state attorneys gencral, the Office of the Inspector General, the Office of Personnel
Management, the Office of Civil Rights, the U.S. Department of Justice, U.S. Attorneys, the SEC and other
governmental authorities. Reviews and investigations of this sort can lead to government actions, which can
result in the assessment of damages, civil or criminal fines or penalties, or other sanctions, including restrictions
or changes in the way we conduct business, loss of licensure or exclusion from participation in government
programs. For example, in 2007, the California Department of Managed Health Care and the California
Department of Insurance examined our PacifiCare health plans in California. As a result of these examinations,
the California Department of Managed Health Care has assessed a penalty of $3.5 million related to its findings.
The California Department of Insurance, however, has not yet levied a financial penalty related to its findings. In
addition, public perception or publicity surrounding routine governmental investigations may adversely affect
our stock price, damage our reputation in various markets or make it more difficult for us to sell products and
services.




Our business providing PBM services are subject to federal and state regulations associated with the PBM
industry and if we fail to comply with these regulations, our business, financial condition and results of
operations could be materially adversely affected.

In connection with the PacifiCare merger, we acquired a PBM business, Prescription Solutions. We also provide
PBM services through UnitedHealth Pharmaceutical Solutions. Prescription Solutions and UnitedHealth
Pharmaceutical Solutions are subject to .federal and state anti-kickback and other laws that govern their
relationships with pharmaceutical manufacturers, customers and consumers. In addition, federal and state
legislatures regularly consider new regulations for the industry that could adversely affect current industry
practices, including the receipt or required disclosure of rebates from pharmaceutical companies. In the event a
court were to determine that our PBM business acts as a fiduciary under ERISA, we could be subject to claims
for alleged breaches of fiduciary obligations in implementation of formularies, preferred drug listings and drug
management programs, contracting network practices, specialty drug distribution and other transactions. Qur
PBM business also conducts business as a mail order pharmacy, which subjects it to extensive federal, state and
local laws and regulations. The failure to adhere to these laws and regulations could expose our PBM subsidiary
to civil and criminal penalties. We also face potential claims in connection with purported errors by our mail
order pharmacy, including in connection with the risks inherent in the packaging and distribution of
pharmaceuticals and other health care products.

If we fail to compete effectively to maintain or increase our market share, including maintaining or
increasing enrollments in businesses providing health benefits, our results of operations could be materially
adversely affected,

Our businesses compete throughout the United States and face competition in all of the geographic markets in
which we operate. For our Health Care Services segment, competitors include Aetna Inc., Cigna Corporation,
Coventry Health Care, Inc., Health Net, Inc., Humana Inc., Kaiser Permanente, WellPoint, Inc., numerous
for-profit and not-for-profit organizations operating under licenses from the Blue Cross Blue Shield Association
and other enterprises that serve more limited geographic areas or market segments such as Medicare specialty
services. For our Prescription Solutions business, competitors include Medco Health Solutions, Inc., CVS/
Caremark Corporation and Express Scripts, Inc. Qur OptumHealth and Ingenix business segments also compete
with a number of other businesses. The addition of new competitors can occur relatively easily, and customers
enjoy significant flexibility in moving between competitors. In particular markets, competitors may have
capabilities or resources that give them a competitive advantage. Greater market share, established reputation,
superior supplier or health care professional arrangements, existing business relationships, and other factors all
can provide a competitive advantage to our businesses or to their competitors. In addition, significant merger and
acquisition activity has occurred in the industries in which we operate, both as to our competitors and suppliers
(including hospitals, physician groups and other care professionals) in these industries. Consolidation may make
it more difficult for us to retain or increase customers, to improve the terms on which we do business with our
suppliers, or to maintain or advance profitability. If we do not complete effectively in our markets, if we set rates
too high or too low in highly competitive markets, if we do not provide a satisfactory level of services, if
membership does not increase as we expect, if membership declines, or if we lose accounts with more profitable
products while retaining or increasing membership in accounts with less profitable products, our business and
results of operations could be materially adversely affected.

A reduction or less than expected increase in Medicare and Medicaid program funding and/or our failure
to retain and acquire Medicare, Medicaid and State Medicaid Children’s Health Insurance Programs
(SCHIP) enrollees could adversely affect our revenues and financial results.

We participate as a payer in Medicare Advantage, Medicare Part D, and various Medicaid and SCHIP programs
and receive revenues from the Medicare, Medicaid and SCHIP programs to provide benefits under these
programs, Our participation in these programs is through bids that are submitted periodically. Revenues for these
programs are dependent upon periodic funding from the federal government or applicable state governments and
allocation of the funding through various payment mechanisms. Funding for these programs is dependent upon
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many factors outside of our control, including general economic conditions at the federal or applicable state level
and general political issues and priorities. A reduction or less than expected increase in government funding for
these programs or change in allocation methodologies may adversely affect our revenues and financial results.

Our ability to retain and acquire Medicare, Medicaid and SCHIP enrollees is impacted by bids and plan designs
submitted by us and our competitors. Under the Medicaid Managed Care program, state Medicaid agencies are
periodically required by federal law to seek bids from eligible health plans to continue their participation in the
acute care Medicaid health programs. If we are not successful in obtaining renewals of state Medicaid Managed
Care contracts, we risk losing the members that were enrolled in those Medicaid plans. Under the Medicare Part
D program, to qualify for automatic enrollment of low income members, our bids must result in an enrollee
premium below a threshold, which is set by the government after our bids are submitted. If the enrollee premium
is not below the government threshold, we risk losing the members who were auto-assigned to us and we will not
have additional members auto-assigned to us. For example, we lost approximately 650,000 of our auto-enrolled
low-income subsidy members in 2008 because our bids exceeded thresholds set by the government. In general,
our bids are based upon certain assumptions regarding enrollment, utilization, medical costs, and other factors. In
the event any of these assumptions are materially incorrect or our competitors’ bids and positioning are different
than anticipated, either as a result of unforeseen changes to the Medicare program or otherwise, our financial
results could be materially affected.

If we fail to develop and maintain satisfactory relationships with physicians, hospitals and other health care
providers, our business could be adversely affected.

We contract with physicians, hospitals, pharmaceutical benefit service providers, pharmaceutical manufacturers,
and other health care providers for competitive prices and services. Our results of operations and prospects are
substantially dependent on our continued ability to maintain these competitive prices and services. In any
particular market, these physicians and health care providers could refuse to contract, demand higher payments,
or take other actions that could result in higher health care costs, less desirable products for customers or
difficulty meeting regulatory or accreditation requirements. In some markets, certain health care providers,
particularly hospitals, physician/hospital organizations or multi-specialty physician groups, may have significant
market positions or near monopolies that couid result in diminished bargaining power on our part. In addition,
physician or practice management companies, which aggregate physician practices for administrative efficiency
and marketing leverage, may compete directly with us, If these providers refuse to contract with us, use their
market position to negotiate favorable contracts or place us at a competitive disadvantage, our ability to market
products or to be profitable in those areas could be adversely affected.

In addition, we have capitation arrangements with some physicians, hospitals and other health care providers.
Under the typical arrangement, the health care provider receives a fixed percentage of premium to cover all the
medical costs provided to the capitated member. Under some capitated arrangements, the provider may also
receive additional compensation from risk sharing and other incentive arrangements. Capitation arrangements
limit our exposure to the risk of increasing medical costs, but expose us to risk related to the adequacy of the
financial and medical care resources of the professional. To the extent that a capitated health care provider
organization faces financial difficulties or otherwise is unable to perform its obligations under the capitation
arrangement, we may be held responsible for unpaid health care claims that should have been the responsibility
of the capitated health care provider and for which we have already paid the provider under the capitation
arrangement. Further, payment or other disputes between a primary care provider and specialists with whom the
primary care provider contracts can result in a disruption in the provision of services to our members or a
reduction in the services available to our members. There can be no assurance that health care providers with
whom we contract will properly manage the costs of services, maintain financial solvency or avoid disputes with
other providers. Any of these events could have an adverse effect on the provision of services to our members
and our operations.
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If we fail to comply with restrictions on patient privacy and information security, including taking steps lo
ensure that our business associates who obtain access to sensitive patient information maintain its
confidentiality, our reputation and business operations could be materially adversely affected.

The use of individually identifiable data by our businesses is regulated at the international, federal and state
levels. These laws and rules are subject to change by legislation or administrative interpretation. Various state
laws address the use and disclosure of individually identifiable health data to the extent they are more restrictive
than those contained in the privacy and security provisions in the federal Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act and in Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, as amended (HIPAA). HIPAA also requires that we
impose privacy and security requirements on our business associates (as such term is defined in the HIPAA
regulations). Even though we provide for appropriate protections through our contracts with our business
associates, we still have limited control over their actions and practices. In addition, despite the security measures
we have in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and rules, our facilities and systems, and those of our
third party service providers, may be vulnerable to security breaches, acts of vandalism, computer viruses,
misplaced or lost data, programming and/or human errors or other similar events. Compliance with any privacy
proposals, requirements, and new regulations may result in cost increases due to necessary systems changes, the
development of new administrative processes, and the effects of potential noncompliance by our business
associates. They also may impose further restrictions on our use of patient identifiable data that is housed in one
or more of our administrative databases. Noncompliance with any privacy laws or any security breach involving
the misappropriation, loss or other unauthorized disclosure of sensitive or confidential member information,
whether by us or by one of our vendors, could have a material adverse effect on our business, reputation and
results of operations.

Our relationship with AARP is important and the loss of such relationship could have an adverse effect on
our business and results of operations.

Under our agreements with AARP, we provide AARP-branded Medicare Supplement insurance, hospital
indemnity insurance and other products to AARP members and Medicare Part D prescription drug plans to
AARP members and non-members. One of our agreements with AARP expands the relationship to include
AARP-branded Medicare Advantage plans for AARP members and non-members. Our agreements with AARP
contain commitments regarding corporate governance, corporate social responsibility, diversity and measures
intended to improve and simplify the health care experience for consumers. The AARP agreements may be
terminated early under certain circumstances, including, depending on the agreement, a material breach by either
party, insolvency of either party, a material adverse change in the financial condition of the Company, material
changes in the Medicare programs, material harm to AARP caused by the Company, and by mutual agreement.
The success of our AARP arrangements depends, in part, on our ability to service AARP and its members,
develop additional products and services, price the products and services competitively, meet our corporate
governance, corporate social responsibility, and diversity commitments, and respond effectively to federal and
state regulatory changes. The loss of our AARP relationship could have an adverse effect on our business and
results of operations.

Because of the nature of our business, we are routinely subject to various litigation actions, which, if
resolved unfavorably to us, could result in substantial monetary damages.

Periodically, we become a party to the types of legal actions that can affect any business, such as employment
and employment discrimination-related suits, employee benefit claims, breach of contract actions, tort claims,
shareholder suits, and intellectual property-related litigation. In addition, because of the nature of our business,
we are routinely made party to a variety of lega! actions related to the design and management of our service
offerings. These matters include, among others, claims related to health care benefits coverage and payment
(including disputes with enrollees, customers, and contracted and non-contracted physicians, hospitals and other
health care professionals), medical malpractice actions, contract disputes and claims related to disclosure of
certain business practices. We are also party to certain class action lawsuits brought by health care professional

groups.
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We are largely self-insured with regard to litigation risks. Although we maintain excess liability insurance with
outside insurance carriers for claims in excess of our self-insurance, certain types of damages, such as punitive
damages in some circumstances, are not covered by insurance. We record liabilities for our estimates of the
probable costs resulting from self-insured matters, however, it is possible that the level of actual losses may
exceed the liabilities recorded.

A description of materiat legal actions in which we are currently involved is included in Note 13 of Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. We cannot predict the outcome of these actions with certainty, and we are
incurring expenses in resolving these matters. Therefore, these legal actions could have a material adverse effect
on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

If we fail to properly maintain the integrity of our data or to strategically implement new or upgrade or
consolidate existing information systems, our business could be materially adversely affected.

Qur ability to adequately price our products and services, to provide effective and efficient service to our customers,
and to accurately report our financial results depends on the integrity of the data in our information systems. As a
result of technology initiatives, changes in our system platforms and integration of new business acquisitions, we
have been taking steps to consolidate the number of systems we operate and have upgraded and expanded our
information systems capabilities. Our information systems require an ongoing commitment of significant resources
to maintain, protect and enhance existing systems and develop new systems to keep pace with continuing changes in
information processing technology, evolving systems and regulatory standards, and changing customer patterns. If
the information we rely upon to run our businesses were found to be inaccurate or unreliable or if we fail to
maintain our information systems and data integrity effectively, we could lose existing customers, have difficulty
attracting new customers, have problems in determining medical cost estimates and establishing appropriate pricing,
have disputes with customers, physicians and other health care professionals, have regulatory problems, have
increases in operating expenses or suffer other adverse consequences. In addition, failure to consolidate our systems
successfully could result in higher than expected costs and diversion of management’s time and energy, which could
materially impact our business, financial condition and operating results,

If we are not able to protect our proprietary rights to our databases and related products, our ability to
market our knowledge and information-related businesses could be hindered and our business could be
adversely affected.

We rely on our agreements with customers, confidentiality agreements with employees, and our trademarks,
trade secrets, copyrights and patents to protect our proprietary rights. These legal protections and precautions
may not prevent misappropriation of our proprietary information. In addition, substantial litigation regarding
intellectual property rights exists in the software industry, and we expect software products to be increasingly
subject to third-party infringement claims as the number of products and competitors in this industry segment
grows. Such litigation and misappropriation of our proprietary information could hinder our ability to market and
sell products and services and our revenues and results of operations could be adversely affected.

If the value of our intangible assets is materially impaired, our results of operations, shareholders’ equity
and debt ratings could be materially adversely affected,

Due largely to our recent acquisitions, goodwill and other intangible assets represent a substantial portion of our
assets. Goodwill and other intangible assels were approximately $18.6 billion as of December 31, 2007,
representing approximately 37% of our total assets. f we make additional acquisitions, it is likely that we will
record additional intangible assets on our books. We periodically evaluate our goodwill and other intangible
assets 1o determine whether all or a portion of their carrying values may no longer be recoverable, in which case
a charge to earnings may be necessary. Any future evaluations requiring an asset impairment of our goodwiil and
other intangible assets could materially affect our results of operations and shareholders’ equity in the period in
which the impairment occurs. A material decrease in shareholders’ equity could, in turn, negatively impact our
debt ratings or potentially impact our compliance with existing debt covenants.
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Our ability to obtain funds from some of our subsidiaries is restricted and if we are unable to obtain
sufficient funds from our subsidiaries to fund our obligations, our operations or financial position may be
adversely affected.

Because we operate as a holding company, we are dependent upon dividends and administrative expense
reimbursements from some of our subsidiaries to fund our obligations. These subsidiaries generally are regulated
by states’ Departments of Insurance. We are also required by law to maintain specific prescribed minimum
amounts of capital in these subsidiaries. The levels of capitalization required depend primarily upon the volume
of premium generated. A significant increase in premium volume will require additional capitalization from us,
in most states, we are required to seek prior approval by these state regulatory authorities before we transfer
money or pay dividends from these subsidiaries that exceed specified amounts, or, in some states, any amount. In
addition, we normally notify the state Departments of Insurance prior to making payments that do not require
approval. If we are unable to obtain sufficient funds from our subsidiaries to fund our obligations, our operations
or financial position may be adversely affected.

Downgrades in our debt ratings, should they occur, may adversely affect our business, financial condition
and results of operations.

Claims paying ability, financial strength, and debt ratings by recognized rating organizations are an increasingly
important factor in establishing the competitive position of insurance companies. Ratings information is broadly
disseminated and generally used throughout the industry. We believe our claims paying ability and financial
strength ratings are an important factor in marketing our products to certain of our customers. Our debt ratings
impact both the cost and availability of future borrowings. Each of the rating agencies reviews its ratings
periodically and there can be no assurance that current ratings will be maintained in the future. Our ratings reflect
each rating agency’s opinion of our financial strength, operating performance, and ability to meet our debt
obligations or obligations to policyholders. Downgrades in our ratings, should they occur, may adversely affect
our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Any failure by us to manage acquisitions and other significant transactions successfully could harm our
Sfinancial results, business and prospects.

As part of our business strategy, we frequently engage in discussions with third parties regarding possible
investments, acquisitions, strategic alliances, joint ventures, and outsourcing transactions and often enter into
agreements relating to such transactions, If we fail to identify and complete successfully transactions that further
our strategic objectives, we may be required to expend resources to develop products and technology internally,
we may be at a competitive disadvantage or we may be adversely affected by ncgative market perceptions, any of
which may have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

Our investment portfolio may suffer losses which could materially adversely affect our financial results.

Fluctuations in the fixed income or equity markets could impair our profitability and capital position. Volatility
in interest rates affects our returns on, and the market value of, fixed income and short term investments, which
comprise the majority of the fair value of our investments at December 31, 2007. In addition, defaults by issuers,
primarily from investments in liquid corporate and municipal bonds, who fail to pay or perform on their
obligations could reduce our investment income and net realized investment gains or result in investment losses
as we may be required to write down the value of our investments, which would adversely affect our profitability
and shareholders’ equity.

We also invest a smaller proportion of our investments in equity investments, which are subject to greater
volatility than fixed income investments. General economic conditions, stock market conditions, and many other
factors beyond our control can adversely affect the value of our equity investments and may result in investment
losses.
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ITEM7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk represents the risk of changes in the fair value of a financial instrument caused by changes in interest
rates or equity prices. The Company’s primary market risk is exposure to changes in interest rates that could
impact the fair value of our investments and long-term debt.

Approximately $13.0 billion of our investments at December 31, 2007 were debt securities. Assuming a
hypothetical and immediate 1% increase or decrease in interest rates applicable to our fixed-income investment
portfolio at December 31, 2007, the fair value of our fixed-income investments would decrease or increase by
approximately $460 million. We manage our investment portfolio to limit our exposure to any one issuer or
industry and largely limit our investments to U.S. Government and Agency securities, state and municipal
securities, and corporate debt obligations that are investment grade.

To mitigate the financial impact of changes in interest rates, we have entered into interest rate swap agreements
to more closely align the fixed interest rates of our long-term debt with the variable rates of our cash equivalents
and short-term investments, Including the impact of our interest rate swap agreements, approximately 3$8.2
billion of our commercial paper and debt had variable rates of interest and $2.8 billion had fixed rates as of
December 31, 2007. A hypothetical 1% increase or decrease in interest rates would change the fair value of our
debt by approximately $330 million.

At December 31, 2007, we had $383 million of equity investments, a portion of which were held in various
public and non-public companies concentrated in the areas of health care delivery and related information
technologies, Market conditions that affect the value of health care or technology stocks will likewise impact the
value of our equity portfolio.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

UnitedHealth Group
Consolidated Statements of Operations
For the Year Ended December 31,
(in millions, except per share data) 2007 2006 2005
Revenues
PremMiUMS .. oottt eacmca ettt nenannnns 68,781 § 65,666 42,006
BEIVICES o\ vttt e 4,608 4,268 3,666
Products ......covvrii i s 898 737 158
Investment and OtherIncome ...................... 1,144 871 505
Total Revenues .. ..... .. ... 75,431 71,542 46,425
Operating Costs
Medical COSES ..o v e e e e ceeiae i ian i 55.435 53,308 33,669
Operating CostS ... ... ivireuainiannnnnnis 10,583 9981 7.134
Costof Products Sold . . ......... ... ..ottt 768 599 89
Depreciation and Amortization ..................... 796 670 453
Total Operating Costs . .......... oo ieneennne, 67,582 64,558 41,345
Earnings From Operations ... ........................ 7,849 6,984 5,080
Interest Expense .............coiiiiiiiiirnnnnns (544) (456) (241)
Earnings Before Income Taxes ........................ 7,305 6,528 4,839
ProvisionforIncome Taxes . ..............ccvvuvun- (2,651) (2,369) (1,756)
NetEarmings ............cc0tiiiiiiiiiiiinaiaans 4654 § 4159 § 3,083
Basic Net Earnings per Common Share ................. 3.55 3.09 244
Diluted Net Earnings per Common Share . .............. 342 297 2.31
Basic Weighted-Average Number of Common Shares
Quistanding . . .............. ... o i 1,312 1,344 1,265
Dilutive Effect of Common Stock Equivalents ........... 49 58 68
Diluted Weighted-A verage Number of Common Shares
Outstanding . ... ... ... ... . it 1,361 1,402 1,333

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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United Health Group
Consolidated Balance Sheets

As of December 31,
(in miltions, except per share data) 2007 2006
Assets
Current Assets
Cashand CashEquivalents . .............. . ... ... ............ 8,865 10,320
Short-Term Investments . .. ......... ... .. . ciiviiir .. 754 620
Accounts Receivable, net of allowances of $121and $120 . ........... 1,574 1,323
Assets Under Management . .......... .. .. ccciiiiiiiiinnnann.. 2,210 1,970
DeferredIncome Taxes ........... ... .. iiiriiiiinninnnannn.. 386 561
Other CUmrent ASSeLS ..o oottt et e e e et e e e e e 1,755 1,250
Total Curment ASSelS . .ottt e it e e e e 15,544 16,044
Long-Term Investments ... ......uuuitniiiin ittt iia i ieeanns 12,667 9,642
Propenty, Equipment, and Capitalized Software, net of accumulated
depreciation and amortization of $1,578 and $1,215 .. ................. 2,121 1,894
Goodwill . . ... e 16,854 16,822
Other Intangible Assets, net of accumulated amortization of $553 and $373 .. 1,737 1,904
OHET A S IS . . .ottt et e e 1,976 2,014
Total ASSElS . ... .. e e e 50,899 48,320
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities
Medical Costs Payable ., . ......... ... . i, 8,331 8,076
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities .. ...................... 3,654 3,713
Other Policy Liabilities ............. ... ... i nen.. . 3,207 3,957
Commercial Paper and Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt ...... .. 1,946 1,483
Unearned Premiums . . ... ... ittt e iniiineenen 1,354 1,268
Total Current Liabilities . .. ... ... ... e 18,492 18,497
Long-Term Debt, less current maturities . ........... ... ... ... ...... 9,063 5,973
Future Policy Benefits for Life and Annuity Contracts ................... 1,849 1,850
Deferred Income Taxes and Other Liabilities ............. ... ... ..., 1,432 1,190
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 13) . ........... .. .. ..count.
Shareholders’ Equity
Common Stock, $0.01 par value — 3,000 shares authorized; 1,253 and
1,345 sharesoutstanding ............... ... . iiiii L, 13 13
Additional Paid-In Capital .................... ... ..., 1,023 6,406
Retained Earnings ... ... ... ... i 18,929 14,376
Accuomulated Other Comprehensive Income:
Net Unrealized Gains on Investments, netof tax effects .. ........ 98 15
Total Shareholders” Equity ......... ... ... .. ... ... ... ..., 20,063 20,810
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity .................. 50,899 48,320

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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UnitedHealth Group
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

Net
Additional Unrealized Total
M Paid-in Retained Gains on  Shareholders’ Comprehensive
{in millions) Shares Amount Capital  Earnings Investments Equity Income
Balance at December 31,2004 .... .. 1,286 § 13 0§ 3433 $ 719 $ 12 $ 10,772
Issuances of Common Stock, and
related tax benefits ............ 126 1 6,145 — — 6,146
Common Stock Repurchases ...... (54) — (2,557) — —_ (2,557
Share-Based Compensation, and
related tax benefits .. ... ... ... — — 489 —_ — 489
Net Eamings ................... —_ — — 3,083 — 3,083 $ 3,083
Other Comprehensive Income
Adjustments:
Change in Net Unrealized
Gains on Investments, net of
taxeffects ............... — — — - (99) 99 (99)
Comprehensive Income ... .., . 5 2984
Common Stock Dividend . . ... —_ _ — (19 — (19)
Balance at December 31,2005 ... ... 1,358 14 7,510 10,258 33 17,815
[ssuances of Common Stock, and
related tax benefits ............ 22 — 342 — — 342
Common Stock Repurchases ...... (40) n (2.344) — — (2.345)
Conversion of Convertible Debt . . . . 5 — 282 -— - 282
Share-Based Compensation, and
related tax benefits ............ — —_ 616 — — 616
NetEamings .............cone.. — —_ — 4,159 — 4,159 $ 4,159
Other Comprehensive Income
Adjustments:
Change in Net Unrealized
Gains on Investments, net of
taxeffects ............... — — — —_ (18) (18} (18)
Comprehensive [ncome ...... $ 414!
Common Stock Dividend ... .. —_ — —_ 1) — {41)
Balance at December 31,2006 . ... .. 1,345 13 6,406 14,376 15 20,810
Issuances of Common Stock, and
reluted tax benefits ............ 33 1 590 —_ — 591
Common Stock Repurchases .. .... (125) (1) (6,598) — —_ (6,599)
Conversion of Convertible Debt . . . . — — 24 — — 24
Share-Based Compensation, and
refated tux benefits ............ — — 602 — — 602
Adjustment to Adopt FIN48 ... ... _ — {n w6n — (62)
NetEarnings ................... — —_ — 4,654 — 4,654 $ 4,654
Other Comprehensive Income
Adjustments:
Change in Net Unrealized
Gains en Investments, net of
taxeffects ............... —_ — — —_ &3 83 83
Comprehensive Income ...... $ 4737
Common Stock Dividend . ... ..... — — — {40) — (40) '
Balance at December 31,2007 . ... ., 1253 % 13 §$ 1023 $ 18929 $ 98 $ 20,063

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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UnitedHealth Group
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

| Fer the Year Ended December 31,

(in miltions) . 2007 2006 2005
Operating Activities
Net Eamnings . ...t iieeeiiiiiiiiiiinnnas $ 4654 % 4,159 § 3,083
Noncashtems ....... ... ... ... ... . . it
Depreciation and Amortization ....... e 796 670 453
Deferred Income Taxesand Other .................. (127) (267 (171)
Share-Based Compensation ....................... 505 404 306
Net Change in Other Operating Items, net of effects from
acquisitions, and changes in AARP balances:
Accounts Receivable and Other Current Assets ....... (580) (411) (86)
Medical Costs Payable ........................... 149 597 196
Accounts Payable and Other Accrued Liabilities . ... .. 457 1,284 602
Unearmned Premiums ........civviivrrnrrnrnrenns 23 90 (300)
Cash Flows From Operating Activities ............ 5,877 6.526 4,083
Investing Activities
Cash Paid for Acquisitions, net of cash assumed and other
effects ........ (262) (670) (2,562)
Cash Transferred on Sale of Business . .................. — — (363)
Purchases of Property, Equipment and Capitalized
Software ... ... ... (871) (728) (509)
Proceeds from Disposal of Property, Equipment and
Capitalized Software ............... o, — 52 —
Purchases of Investments .................. ... 0.0 (6,379) (4,851) (5,876)
Maturities and Sales of Investments .................... 3,365 4,096 5,821
Cash Flows Used For Investing Activities ....... ... (4,147) (2,101) (3,489)
Financing Activities
Proceeds from (Payments of) Commercial Paper, net ....... 947 (2,332) 2,556
Proceeds from Issuance of Long-Term Debt .............. 3,582 3,000 500
Payments for Retirement of Long-Term Debt .. ... ........ (950) — (400)
Repayments of Convertible Subordinated Debentures ...... (10) (91} —
Common Stock Repurchases .................. ... .. ... (6,599) (2,345) (2,557
Proceeds from Common Stock Issuances . ............... 712 397 423
Share-Based Compensation Excess Tax Benefits .......... 303 241 243
Customer Funds Administered . . ....................... (L1l 1,705 102
Dividends Paid ............cciiiiii e, (40) an (19)
Other . ... e e (20) (60) (12)
Cash Flows (Used For) From Financing Activities . . . (3,185) 474 836
{Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents ... ... .. .. (1,455) 4,899 1,430
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Period ... ......... 10,320 5,421 3.99]
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Endof Period ... .............. $ 885 $ 10320 $ 5,421
Supplemental Schedule of Noncash Investing and Financing
Activities
Common Stock Issued for Acquisitions . ................. $ — 5 — § 569
Common Stock Issued for Convertible Subordinated
Debentures Redemption .. ..........ovviinin, $ 24 % 282 % —
Promissory Note Issued for Acquisition ................. $ — 3 95 $ —
Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosures
Cash Paid forInterest .. ..............iciiiiiiinnnnan. 3 553 % 409 % 219
Cash Paid for Income Taxes ... .............ooveinnn. $ 2,277 % 1,729 % 1,377

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Description of Business

" i, "

UnitedHealth Group Incorporated (also referred to as “UnitedHealth Group,” “the Company,” “we,” “vs,” and
“our”) is a diversified health and well-being company dedicated to making health care work better. Through
strategically aligned, market-defined businesses, we design products, provide services and apply technologics
that improve access to health and well-being services, simplify the health care experience, promote quality and
make health care more affordable.

2.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

We have prepared the Consolidated Financial Statements according to U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP} and have included the accounts of UnitedHealth Group and its subsidiaries. We have
eliminated ail intercompany balances and transactions. Certain historical financial data was revised to reflect our
new segment operating and financial reporting structure. See Note 14 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Use of Estimates

These Consolidated Financial Statements include certain amounts that are based on our best estimates and
judgments. These estimates require us to apply complex assumptions and judgments, often because we must
make estimates about the effects of matters that are inherently uncertain and will likely change in subsequent
periods. The most significant estimates relate to medical costs, medical costs payable, revenues, intangible asset
valuations, asset impairments, investment valvation and contingent liabilities. We adjust these estimates each
period, as more current information becomes available. The impact of any changes in estimates is included in the
determination of earnings in the period in which the estimate is adjusted.

Revenues

Premium revenues are primarily derived from risk-based health insurance arrangements in which the premium is
fixed, typically for a one-year period, and we assume the economic risk of funding our customers’ health care
services and related administrative costs. We recognize premium revenues in the period in which eligible
individuals are entitled to receive health care services. We record health care premium payments we receive from
our customers in advance of the service period as unearned premiums.

Service revenues consist primarily of fees derived from services performed for customers that self-insure the
medical costs of their employees and their dependents. Under service fee contracts, we recognize revenue in the
period the related services are performed based upon the fee charged to the customer. The customers retain the
risk of financing medical benefits for their employees and their employees’ dependents, and we administer the
payment of customer funds to physicians and other health care professionals from customer-funded bank
accounts. Because we neither have the obligation for funding the medical expenses, nor do we have
responsibility for delivering the medical care, we do not recognize premium revenue and medical costs for these
contracts in our Consolidated Financial Statements.

For both premium risk-based and fee-based customer arrangements, we provide coordination and facilitation of
medical services; transaction processing; customer, consumer and care professional services; and access to
contracted networks of physicians, hospitals and other health care professionals.

Through our Prescription Solutions pharmacy benefits management (PBM) business, revenues are derived from
products sold through a contracted network of retail pharmacies, and from administrative services, including
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claims processing and formulary design and management. Product revenues include ingredient costs (net of
rebates), a negotiated dispensing fee and customer co-payments for drugs dispensed through our mail-service
pharmacy. In all retail pharmacy transactions, revenues recognized always exclude the member’s applicable
co-payment. Product revenues are recognized upon sale or shipment. Service revenues are recognized when the
prescription claim is adjudicated. The Company has entered into retail service contracts that separately obligate us
to pay our network pharmacy providers for benefits provided to its customers, whether or not we are paid. We are
also involved in establishing the prices charged by retail pharmacies, determining which drugs will be included in
formulary listings and selecting which retail pharmacies will be included in the network offered to plan sponsors’
members. As a result, revenues are reported on a gross basis in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF)
Issue No. 99-19, “Reporting Gross Revenue as a Principal versus Net as an Agent.” Product revenues also include
sales of Ingenix syndicated content products which are recognized as revenue upon shipment.

Medical Costs and Medical Costs Payable

Medical costs and medical costs payable inciude estimates of our obligations for medical care services that have
been rendered on behalf of insured consumers but for which we have either not yet received or processed claims,
and for liabilities for physician, hospital and other medical cost disputes. We develop estimates for medical costs
incurred but not reported using an actuarial process that is consistently applied, centrally controlled and
automated. The actuarial models consider factors such as time from date of service to claim receipt, claim
backlogs, care professional contract rate changes, medical care consumption and other medical cost trends. We
estimate liabilities for physician, hospital and other medical cost disputes based upon an analysis of potential
outcomes, assuming a combination of litigation and settlement strategies. Each period, we re-examine previously
established medical costs payable estimates based on actual claim submissions and other changes in facts and
circumstances. As the liability estimates recorded in prior periods become more exact, we adjust the amount of
the estimates, and include the changes in estimates in medical costs in the period in which the change is
identified. In every reporting period, our operating results include the effects of more completely developed
medical costs payable estimates associated with previously reported periods.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents are highly liquid invesiments that generally have an original maturity of three months
or less. The fair value of cash and cash equivalents approximates their carrying value because of the short
maturity of the instruments. Investments with maturities of less than one year are classified as short-term. We
may sell investments classified as long-term before their maturities to fund working capital or for other purposes.
Because of regulatory requirements, certain investments are included in long-term investments regardless of their
maturity date. We classify these investments as held-to-maturity and report them at amortized cost. All other
investments are classified as available for sale and reported at fair value based on quoted market prices.

We exclude unrealized gains and losses on investments available for sale from earnings and report them, net of
income tax effects, as a separate component of shareholders’ equity. We continually monitor the difference
between the cost and estimated fair value of our investments. For those investments in an unrealized loss
position, we analyze relevant factors individually and in combination including the length of time and extent to
which market value has been less than cost, the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer as well
as specific events or circumstances that may influence the operations of the issuer, and our intent and abitity to
hold the investment for a sufficient time to recover our cost. New information and the passage of time can change
these judgments. We revise impairment judgments when new information becomes known or when we do not
anticipate holding the investment until the forecasted recovery. If any of our investments experience a decline in
value that is determined to be other than temporary, based on analysis of relevant factors, we record a realized
loss in Investment and Other Income in our Consolidated Statements of Operations. We manage our investment
portfolio to limit our exposure to any one issuer or industry and largely limit our investments to U.S. Government
and Agency securities, state and municipal securities, and corporate debt obligations that are investment grade.
To calculate realized gains and losses on the sale of investments, we use the specific cost or amortized cost of
each investment sold.
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Assets Under Management

We administer certain aspects of AARP’s insurance program (See Note 12). Pursuant to our agreement, AARP
assets are managed separately from our general investment portfolio and are used to pay costs associated with the
AARP program. These assets are invested at our discretion, within investment guidelines approved by AARP.
We do not guarantee any rates of return on these investments and, upon transfer of the AARP contract to another
entity, we would transfer cash equal in amount to the fair value of these investments at the date of transfer to that
entity. Because the purpose of these assets is to fund the medical costs payable, the rate stabilization fund (RSF)
liabilities and other related liabilities assoctated with the AARP contract, assets under management are classified
as current assets, consistent with the classification of these liabilities. Interest earnings and realized investment
gains and losses on these assets accrue to the overall benefit of the AARP policyholders through the RSF.
Accordingly, they are not included in our earnings.

Property, Equipment and Capitalized Software

Property, equipment and capitalized software are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
amortization. Capitalized software consists of certain costs incurred in the development of internal-use software,
including external direct costs of materials and services and payroll costs of employees devoted to specific
software development.

We calculate depreciation and amortization using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. The useful lives for property, equipment and capitalized software are: from three to seven years for
furniture, fixtures and equipment; from 35 to 40 years for buildings; the shorter of the useful life or remaining
lease term for leasehold improvements; and from three to nine years for capitalized software. The weighted-
average useful life of property, equipment and capitalized software at December 31, 2007 was approximately
four years. The net book value of property and equipment was $1,060 million and $966 million as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The net book value of capitalized software was $1,061 million and
$928 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the amount by which the purchase price of businesses we have acquired exceeds the
estimated fair value of the net tangible assets and separately identifiable intangible assets of these businesses.
Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested at least annually for
impairment. Intangible assets with discrete useful lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. There was no impairment at December 31, 2007,

Long-Lived Assets

We review long-lived assets, including property, equipment, capitalized software and intangible assets, for events
or changes in circumstances that would indicate we might not recover their carrying value. We consider many
factors, including estimated future utility and cash flows associated with the assets, to make this decision. An
impairment charge is recorded for the amount by which an asset’s carrying value exceeds its estimated fair value.
There was no impairment at December 31, 2007,

Other Policy Liabilities

Other policy liabilities include the RSF associated with the AARP program (See Note 12), deposits under the
Medicare Pant D program (See Note 3), customer balances related to experience-rated insurance products and the
current portion of future policy benefits for life insurance and annuity contracts. Customer balances represent
excess customer payments and deposit accounts under experience-rated contracts. At the customer’s option, these
balances may be refunded or used 10 pay future premiuvms or claims under eligible contracts.

57




Income Taxes

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the differences between the financial and income tax
reporting bases of assets and liabilities based on enacted tax rates and laws. The deferred income tax provision or
benefit generally reflects the net change in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the year, excluding
any deferred income tax assets and liabilities of acquired businesses. The current income tax provision reflects
the tax consequences of revenues and expenses currently taxable or deductible on various income tax returns for
the year reported.

Future Policy Benefits for Life and Annuity Contracts and Reinsurance Receivables

Future policy benefits for life insurance and annuity contracts represent account balances that accrue to the
benefit of the policyholders, excluding surrender charges, for universal life and investment annuity products. As
a result of the October 2005 sale of the life and annuity business within our subsidiary Golden Rule Financial
Corporation {Golden Rule) under an indemnity reinsurance arrangement, we have maintained a liability
associated with the reinsured contracts, as we remain primarily liable to the policyholders, and have recorded a
corresponding reinsurance receivable due from the purchaser in Other Assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
We evaluate the financial condition of the reinsurer and only record the reinsurance receivable to the extent of
probable recovery.

Policy Acquisition Costs

Our commercial health insurance contracts typically have a one-year term and may be cancelled upon 30 days
notice by either the Company or the customer. Costs related to the acquisition and renewal of customer contracts
are charged to expense as incurred.

Share-Based Compensation

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (FAS) No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (FAS 123R). FAS 23R supersedes APB
Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (APB 25). Under APB 25, no compensation
expense was recognized for employee stock option grants if the exercise price of the Company’s stock option
was at least equal to the quoted market price of the underlying stock on the measurement date. FAS 123R
requires the determination of the fair value of the share-based compensation at the grant date and the recognition
of the related expense over the period in which the share-based compensation vests. The Company adopted
FAS 123R effective January i, 2006, using the modified retrospective method. All prior periods have been
restated to give effect to the {air-value-based method of accounting for awards granted in fiscal years beginning
on or after January 1, 1995.

Net Earnings Per Common Share

We compute basic net earnings per common share by dividing net earnings by the weighted-average number of
common shares outstanding during the pertod. We determine diluted net earnings per common share using the
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for potentially dilutive
shares associated with the exercise of common stock options, stock-settled stock appreciation rights (SARs) and
the conversion of convertible subordinated debentures.

Derivative Financial Instruments

As part of our risk management strategy, we enter into interest rate swap agreements {0 manage our exposure to
interest rate risk. The differential between fixed and variable rates to be paid or received is accrued and
recognized over the life of the agreements as an adjustment to interest expense in the Consolidated Statements of

58




Operations. Our existing interest rate swap agreements convert a majority of our interest from a fixed to a
variable rate and are accounted for under the short-cut method as fair value hedges. Additional information on
our existing interest rate swap agreements is included in Note 8,

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

In the normal course of business, we invest in various financial assets, incur various financial liabilities and enter
into agreements involving derivative securities.

Fair values are disclosed for all financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate fair value, whether or
not such values are recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Management obtains quoted market prices
for these disclosures.

The carrying amounts reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets for cash and cash equivalents, premium and
other receivables, unearned premiums, accounts payable and accrued expenses, income taxes payable, and certain
other current liabilities approximate fair value because of their short-term nature.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instrument:

»  Current and long-term investments, available-for-sale, at fair value: The carrying amount is stated at fair
value, based on quoted market prices, where available. For securities not actively traded, fair values were
estimated using values obtained from independent pricing services or quoted market prices of comparable
instruments,

*  Senior unsecured notes: Estimated based on third-party quoted market prices for the same or similar issues.

+  Commercial paper: The carrying amount for commercial paper approximates fair value as the underlying
instruments have variable interest rates at market value.

»  Interest rate swaps: The fair value of the interest rate swaps are based on the quoted market prices by the
financial institution that is the counterparty to the swap.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109" (FIN 48). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for income taxes by
prescribing a minimum recognition threshold that a tax position is required to meet before being recognized in
the financial statements. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, measurement, classification, interest
and penalties, disclosure and transition. We adopted FIN 48 as of January 1, 2007 (See Note 11}.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In December 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 141 (Revised 2007), “Business Combinations” (FAS 141R) which
replaces FAS No. 141, “Business Combinations™. FAS 141R establishes principles and requirements for how an
acquirer recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities
assumed, any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree and the goodwill acquired. The statement also establishes
disclosure requirements that will enable users 1o evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business
combination. FAS 141R is effective for our fiscal year 2009 and must be applied prospectively to all new
acquisitions closing on or after January 1, 2009. Early adoption of this standard is not permitted. We are
currently evalvating the impact, if any, of FAS 141R on our Consolidated Financial Statements.
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In December 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements — An Amendment of ARB No. 51 (FAS 160). FAS 160 requires that accouating and reporting for
minority interests be recharacterized as noncontrolling interests and classified as a component of equity. The
standard is effective for our fiscal year 2009 and must be applied prospectively. We do not expect that the
adoption of FAS 160 will have a material impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities — Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115" (FAS 159). FAS 159 expands the use of fair
value accounting but does not affect existing standards that require assets or liabilities to be carried at fair value.
Under FAS 159, a company may elect to use fair value to measure various assets and liabilities including
accounts receivable, available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities, equity method investments, accounts
payable, guarantees and issued debt. If the use of fair value is elected, any upfront costs and fees related to the
item must be recognized in earnings and cannot be deferred. The fair value election is irrevocable and generally
made on an instrumeni-by-instrument basis, even if a company has similar instruments that it elects not to
measure based on fair value. At the adoption date, unrealized gains and losses on existing items for which fair
value has been elected are reported as a cumulative adjustment to beginning retained earnings. Subsequent to the
adoption of FAS 159, changes in fair value are recognized in earnings. FAS 159 is effective for our fiscal year
2008. We are currently evaluating the impact, if any, of FAS 159 on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued FAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (FAS 157). FAS 157 provides
enhanced guidance for using fair value to measure assets and liabilities. It does not require any new fair value
measurements, but does require expanded disclosures to provide information about the extent to which fair value
is used to measure assets and liabilities, the methods and assumptions used to measure fair value, and the effect
of fair value measures on earnings. In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position FAS 157-2,
“Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157 (the FSP). The FSP delayed, for one year, the effective date of FAS
157 for all nonfinancial assets and liabilities, except those that are recognized or disclosed in the financial
statements on at least an annual basis. Consequently, FAS 157 will be effective for our fiscal year 2008 for
financial assets and liabilities recognized or disclosed in our Consolidated Financial Statements. The deferred
provisions of FAS 157 will be effective for our fiscal year 2009. We have evaluated the effects of the initiat
adoption of FAS 157 for our 2008 fiscal year and do not expect its adoption will have a material impact on our
Consolidated Financial Statements. We are currently evaluating the impact, if any, of the entirety of FAS 157 on
our fiscal year 2009 Consolidated Financial Statements.

3. Maedicare Part D Pharmacy Benefits Contract

Beginning January 1, 2006, the Company began serving as a plan sponsor offering Medicare Part D prescription
drug insurance coverage under contracts with the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS). Under the
Medicare Part D program, there are six separate elements of payment received by the Company during the plan
year. These payment elements are as follows:

*  CMS Premium — CMS pays a fixed monthly premium per member to the Company for the entire plan year.

*  Member Premium — Additionally, certain members pay a fixed monthly premium to the Company for the
entire plan year.

*  Low-Income Premium Subsidy — For qualifying low-income members, CMS pays some or all of the
member’s monthly premiums to the Company on the member’s behalf.

*  Catastrophic Reinsurance Subsidy — CMS pays the Company a cost reimbursement estimate monthly to
fund the CMS obligation to pay approximately 80% of the costs incurred by individual members in excess
of the individual annual out-of-pocket maximum of $3,850. A settlement is made based on actual cost
experience subsequent to the end of the plan year,

*  Low-Income Member Cost Sharing Subsidy — For qualifying low-income members, CMS pays on the
member’s behalf, some or all of a member’s cost sharing amounts, such as deductibles and coinsurance. The
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cost sharing subsidy is funded by CMS through monthly payments to the Company. The Company
administers and pays the subsidized portion of the claims on behalf of CMS, and a settlement payment is
made between CMS and the Company based on actual claims experience, subsequent to the end of the plan
year.

*  CMS Risk-Share — If the ultimate per member per month benefit costs of any Medicare Part D regional
plan varies more than 2.5% above or below the level estimated in the original bid submitted by the
Company and approved by CMS, there is a risk-share settlement with CMS subsequent to the end of the
plan year. The risk-share adjustment, if any, is recorded as an adjustment to premium revenues and other
receivables or liabilities.

The CMS Premium, the Member Premium, and the Low-Income Premium Subsidy represent payments for the
Company’s insurance risk coverage under the Medicare Part D program and therefore are recorded as Premium
Revenues in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. Premium revenues are recognized ratably over the
period in which eligible individuals are entitled to receive prescription drug benefits. We record premium
payments received in advance of the applicable service period in Unearned Premiums in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets.

The Catastrophic Reinsurance Subsidy and the Low-Income Member Cost Sharing Subsidy represent cost
reimbursements under the Medicare Part D program. The Company is fully reimbursed by CMS for costs
incurred for these contract elements and, accordingly, there is no insurance risk to the Company. Amounts
received for these subsidies are not reflected as premium revenues, but rather are accounted for as deposits, with
the related liability recorded in Other Policy Liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Related cash flows
are presenied as Customer Funds Administered within financing cash flows in the Consolidated Statements of
Cash Flows. As of December 3}, 2007, the amount on deposit for these subsidies for the 2007 contract year was
approximately $395 million and the payable to CMS for these subsidies for the 2006 contract year was
approximately $55 million,

Pharmacy benefit costs and administrative costs under the contract are expensed as incurred and are recognized
in Medical Costs and Operating Costs, respectively, in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

As a result of the Medicare Part D product benefit design, the Company incurs a disproportionate amount of
pharmacy benefit costs early in the contract year, While the Company is responsible for approximately 67% of a
Medicare Part D beneficiary’s drug costs up to $2,400, the beneficiary is responsible for 100% of their drug costs
from $2,400 up to $5,451 (at the Company’s discounted purchase price). Consequently, the Company incurs a
disproportionate amount of pharmacy benefit costs in the first half of the contract year as compared with the last
half of the contract year, when comparatively more members will be incurring claims above the $2,400 initial
coverage limit. The uneven timing of Medicare Part D pharmacy benefit claims results in losses in the first half
of the year that entitle the Company to risk-share adjustment payments from CMS. Accordingly, during the
interim periods within the contract year we record a net risk-share receivable from CMS in Other Current Assets
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and a corresponding retrospective premivm adjustment in Premium Revenues
in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. This represents the estimated amount payable by CMS to the
Company under the risk-share contract provisions if the program were terminated based on estimated costs
incurred through that interim period. Those losses are typically expected 10 reverse in the second half of the year.

The risk-share payable due to CMS for the 2007 contract year through December 31, 2007 was approximately
$145 million. This final risk-share amount is expected to be settled approximately six months after the contract
year-end. The risk-share payable due to CMS as of December 31, 2007 for the 2006 contract year was
approximately $135 million, subject to the reconciliation process with CMS, and was paid in January 2008.
These risk-share payables, totalling $280 million are recorded in Other Policy Liabilities in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets.

Total premium revenues from CMS related to the Medicare Part D program and all other Medicare-related programs
were approximately 25% of our total consolidated revenues for the twelve months ended December 31, 2007.
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As of January 1, 2008, certain changes were made to the Medicare Part D coverage by CMS, including:
« The initial coverage limit increased to $2,510.
» The catastrophic coverage begins at $5,726.
»  The annual out-of-pocket maximum increased to $4,050.
* The risk-share provisions take effect if actual costs are more than 5% above or below expected costs.

*  CMS retains 50% to 80% of the losses or profits outside this risk corridor.

These changes result in an increase in the amount of losses or profits that we may realize from this contract in
2008 as the amount of risk retained by CMS has diminished.

4. Acquisitions

On March 12, 2007, we announced that we had signed a definitive merger agreement under which the Company
will acquire all of the outstanding shares of Sierra Health Services, Inc. {Sierra), a diversified health care services
company based in Las Vegas, Nevada, for approximately $2.6 billion in cash, representing a price of $43.50 per
share of Sierra common stock. The transaction has been approved by the Boards of Directors of both companies,
Sierra’s shareholders and all required state regulatory agencies, and is expected to close in early 2008, subject to
federal regulatory approvals and other customary conditions. This acquisition is intended to strengthen our
position in the rapidly growing southwest region.

On January 10, 2008, we acquired all of the outstanding shares of Fiserv Health, Inc. (Fiserv Health), a
subsidiary of Fiserv, Inc., for $730 million in cash. Fiserv Health is a leading administrator of medical benefits
and also provides care facilitation services, specialty health solutions and PBM services. The acquired businesses
will each align with our Health Care Services, OptumHealth, Ingenix and Prescription Solutions segments. We
expect that this transaction will allow us to expand the capacity of our existing benefits administration businesses
and enable existing and new Fiserv Health customers to leverage our full range of assets, inciuding ancillary
services, our national network and technology tools. The pro forma effects of this acquisition on our
Consolidated Financial Statements were not material.

On January 8, 2008, we announced that AmeriChoice had signed a definitive agreement to acquire Unison Health
Plans (Unison). Unison provides government-sponsored health plan coverage to approximately 370,000 people in
Pennsylvania, Ohio, Tennessee, Delaware and South Carolina through a network of independent health care
professionals. This all-cash transaction is expected to close by mid-2008, subject to required regulatory approvals
and other customary conditions. The pro forma effects of this acquisition on our Consolidated Financial
Statements are not expected to be material.

On December 1, 2006, our Health Care Services business segment acquired the Student Insurance Division
(Student Resources) of The MEGA Life and Health Insurance Company through an asset purchase agreement.
Student Resources primarily serves college and university students. This acquisition strengthened our position in
this market and provided expanded distribution opportunities for our other UnitedHealth Group businesses. In
exchange and under the terms of the asset purchase agreement, we issued a i0-year, $95 million promissory note
bearing a 5.4% fixed interest rate and paid approximately $1 million in cash. The results of operations and
financia! condition of Student Resources have been included in our Consolidated Financial Statements since the
acquisition date. The pro forma effects of the Student Resources acquisition on our Consolidated Financial
Statements were not material,

On February 24, 2006, we acquired John Deere Health Care, Inc. (JDHC). JDHC serves employers primarily in
Towa, central and western Illinois, eastern Tennessee and southwestern Virginia. This acquisition strengthened
our resources and capabilities in these areas. The operations of JDHC reside primarily within our Health Care
Services segment. We paid approximately $515 million in cash, including transaction costs, in exchange for all
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of the outstanding equity of JDHC. The purchase price and costs associated with the acquisition exceeded the
estimated preliminary fair value of the net tangible assets acquired by approximately $376 million. Based on
management’s consideration of fair value, which included completion of a valuation analysis, we have allocated
the excess purchase price over the fair value of the net tangible assets acquired to finite-lived intangible assets of
360 million and goodwill of $316 million. The finite-lived intangible assets consist primarity of member lists and
physician and hospital networks, with an estimated weighted-average useful life of approximately 15 years. The
acquired goodwill is deductible for income tax purposes. The results of operations and financial condition of
JDHC have been included in our Consolidated Financial Statements since the acquisition date. The pro forma
effects of the JDHC acquisition on our Consolidated Financial Statements were not material. Acquired net
tangible assets and liabilities are categorized as follows: cash and cash equivalents of $46 million; investments of
$197 million; accounts receivable and other current assets of $60 million; property, equipment and capitalized
software and other assets of $29 million; medical costs payable of $131 millior and other liabilities of $62
million. JDHC has been renamed UnitedHealthcare Services Company of the River Valley, Inc.

On December 20, 2005, the Company acquired PacifiCare Health Systems, Inc. (PacifiCare). PacifiCare provides
health care and benefit services to individuals and employers, principatly in markets in the western United States,
This merger significantly strengthened our resources by enhancing our capabilities on the Pacific Coast and in
other western states and broadening the scope of our product offerings for a host of specialized services. The
operations of PacifiCare reside primarily within our Health Care Services, OptumHealth and Prescription
Solutions segments. Under the terms of the agreement, PacifiCare shareholders received 1.1 shares of
UnitedHealth Group common stock and $21.50 in cash for each share of PacifiCare common stock they owned.
Total consideration issued for the transaction was approximately $8.8 billion, composed of approximately
99.2 million shares of UnitedHealth Group common stock (valued at approximately $5.3 billion based upon the
average of UnitedHealth Group’s share closing price for two days before, the day of and two days after the
acquisition announcement date of July 6, 2005), approximately $2.1 billion in cash, $960 million cash paid to
retire PacifiCare’s existing debt and UnitedHealth Group vested common stock options with an estimated fair
value of approximately $420 million issved in exchange for PacifiCare’s outstanding vested common stock
options. The purchase price and costs associated with the acquisition exceeded the estimated fair value of the net
tangible assets acquired by approximately $7.0 billion. Based on management’s consideration of fair value,
which included completion of a valuation analysis, we have allocated the excess purchase price over the fair
value of the net tangible assets acquired to finite-lived intangible assets of $954 million and associated deferred
tax liabilities of $377 million, and goodwill of approximately $6.4 billion. The finite-lived intangible assets and
related weighted-average useful lives consist of the following:

Weighted-Average

($ in millions) ) Fair Value Useful Life
Customer Contracts and MembershipLists .. . ................... $ 744 12 years
Trademarks ... .. . . . e 157 17 years
Physician and Hospital Networks . .............. ... ... ... ..., 53 15 years
Total Acquired Finite-Lived Intangible Assets . .................. $ 954 13 years

The acquired goodwill is not deductible for income tax purposes. Acquired net tangible assets and liabilities are
categorized as follows: cash and cash equivalents of $808 million; investments of $2.4 billion; accounts
receivable and other current assets of $832 million; property, equipment and capitalized software and other assets
of $454 million; medical costs payable of $1.4 billion and other liabilities of $1.1 billion.

The results of operations and financial condition of PacifiCare have been included in our Consolidated Financial
Statements since its acquisition date. The unaudited pro forma financial information presented below assumes
that the acquisition occurred as of the beginning of the period. The pro forma adjustments include the pro forma
effect of UnitedHealth Group shares issued in the acquisition, the amortization of finite-lived intangible assets
arising from the purchase price allocations, interest expense related to financing the cash portion of the purchase
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price and the associated income tax effects of the pro forma adjustments. The following unaudited pro forma
results have been prepared for comparative purposes only and do not purport to be indicative of the results of
operations that would have occurred had the acquisition been consummated at the beginning of the period.

For the
Year Ended
(in millions, except per share data) December 31, 2005
Pro forma - unaudited

REVENUES . .\ vttt et i i e e e e e $ 60,486
Net Barmings . .....oiiiiiiiitt it aniniaeeens $ 3,351
Earnings Per Share:

Basic ... e $ 246

Diluted ... 3 2.33

We record liabilities related to integration activities in connection with business combinations when integration
plans are finalized and approved by management within one year of the acquisition date in accordance with the
requirements of EITF Issue No. 95-3, “Recognition of Liabilities in Connection with a Purchase Business
Combination.” Liabilities recorded relate to activities that have no future economic benefit to the Company and
represent contractual obligations. These liabilities result in an increase to goodwill acquired. At each reporting
date, we evaluate our liabilities associated with integration activities and make adjustments as appropriate.
Integration activities relate primarily to severance costs for certain workforce reductions largely in the Health
Care Services segment, costs of terminated or vacated leased facilities and other contract termination costs. The
following table illustrates the changes in employee termination benefit costs and other integration costs related to
the PacifiCare acquisition as of December 31, 2007:

Employee
Termination  Other Integration
(in millions) Benefit Costs Activities Total
Accrued integration liabilities at December 31,2006 .... § 27 $ 28 $ 55
Estimate adjustments ......................... ... 13 (3) (16)
Payments made against liability .. ................... (12) (23) (35)
Accrued integration liabilities at December 31,2007 .... 3 2 $ 2 $ 4

For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, aggregate consideration paid, net of cash assumed and
other effects, for smaller acquisitions was $262 million, $276 million and $196 million, respectively. These
acquisitions were not material to our Consolidated Financial Statements.




5. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

As of December 31, the amortized cost, gross unrealized gains and losses, and fair value of cash, cash
equivalents and investments, by type, were as follows:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

{in millions) Cost Gains Losses Value
2007
Cash and Cash Equivalents .................... $ 8,865 $ — 3 — % 8,865
Debt Securities — Available for Sale:

U.S. Government and Agency obligations . ... 3915 73 (2) 3,986

State and Municipal obligations ............ 5,503 62 (N 5,558

Corporate obligations . . ................... 3,291 27 {17 3,301
Total Debt Securities — Available for Sale ....... 12,709 162 (26) 12,845
Equity Securities — Available for Sale . .. ........ 364 20 (0 383
Debt Securities — Held to Maturity:

U.S. Government and Agency obligations . ... 118 — — 118

State and Municipal obligations ............ | — — |

Corporate obligations . . ................... 74 — —_ 74
Total Debt Securities — Held to Maturity . .. .. .. .. 193 — — 193
Total Cashand Investments . ................... $ 22,131 % 182 % 2N $ 22,286
2006
Cash and Cash Equivalents .................... $ 10,320 % — % — 3 10,320
Debt Securities — Available for Sale:

U.S. Government and Agency obligations .. .. 3,197 12 (17) 3,192

State and Municipal obligations ............ 4,184 32 {7 4,199

Corporate obligations ..................... 2,329 13 (18) 2,324
Total Debt Securities — Available for Sale ....... 9,710 37 (52) 9,715
Equity Securities — Available forSale ........... 291 22 () 312
Debt Securities — Held to Maturity:

U.S. Government and Agency obligations . ... 164 — — 164

State and Municipal obligations ............ 4 — — 4

Corporate obligations . . ................... 67 — — 67
Total Debt Securities — Held to Maturity . ... ... .. 235 — — 235
Total Cashand Investments ... ................. $ 20,556 $ 79 3 (53) § 20,582

At December 31, 2007, the fair value of debt securities had the following maturity dates:

{in millions) <1 Year 1to 5 Years 5to 10 Years > 10 Years Total
Debt Securities ............... $ 1,023 % 4731 &% 3399 §$ 3885 % 13,038
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The following tables show the gross unrealized losses and fair value of investments with unrealized losses that, in
our judgment, are not other-than-temporarily impaired as of December 31. These investments are aggregated by
investment type and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position (1):

12 Months or

Less Than 12 Months Greater Total
Gross Gross Gross
Unreatized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
(in ntillions) Fair Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
2007
U.S. Government and Agency
obligations ................... 3 72 % — 8 173§ )% 245 $ )
State and Municipal obligations . . .. 466 (5) 318 (2) 784 N
Corporate obligations ............ 646 ()] 518 (8 1,164 (ah
Total Debt Securities —
AvailableforSale ......... $ 1,184 § (19 3 1,009 § SVAR] 2,193 % {26)
Total Equity Securities ....... $ 15 % ms — 3 — % 15 § ¢)]
2006
U.S. Government and Agency
obligations . .................. $ 1,433 $ M3 643 $ (1O % 2,076 % (18)
State and Municipal obligations .. .. 956 4) 1,171 (12) 2,127 (16)
Corporate obligations ............ 635 {4) 853 {14) 1,490 (18)
Total Debt Securities —
Available for Sale ......... b 3024 § (15) $ 2669 $ 33 56093 § (52)
Total Equity Securities ....... $ 19 § s — 3 — § 19 $ )

(1} Debt securities classified as held-to-maturity investments have been excluded from this analysis. These
investments are predominantly held in U.8. Government or Agency obligations and the contractual terms do
not permit the issuer to settle the securities at a price less than the amortized cost of the investment.
Additionally, the fair values of these investments approximate their amortized cost.

The unrealized losses on investments in U.S. Government and Agency obligations, state and municipal
obligations and corporate obligations at December 31, 2007 were mainly caused by interest rate increases and not
by unfavorable changes in the credit ratings associated with these securities. We evaluate impairment at each
reporting period for each of the securities where the fair value of the investment is less than its cost. The
contractual cash flows of the U.S. Government and Agency obligations are either guaranteed by the U.S.
Government or an agency of the U.S. Government. It is expected that the securities would not be settled at a price
less than the cost of our investment. We evaluated the underlying credit quality of the issuers and the credit
ratings of the state and municipal obligations and the corporate obligations, noting neither a significant
deterioration since purchase nor other factors leading to other-than-temporary impairment.

A portion of the Company’s investments in equity securities consists of investments held by our UnitedHealth
Capital business in various public and nonpublic companies concentrated in the areas of health care delivery and
related information technologies. Market conditions that affect the value of health care and related technology
stocks will likewise impact the value of our equity portfolio. The equity securities were evaluated for severity
and duration of unrealized loss, overall market volatility and other market factors,

We analyze relevant factors individually and in combination including the length of time and extent to which
market value has been less than cost, the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer as well as
specific events or circumstances that may influence the operations of the issuer, and our intent and ability to hold
the investment for a sufficient time to recover our cost. We revise impairment judgments when new information
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becomes known or when we do not anticipate holding the investment until recovery. If any of our investments
experience a decline in fair value that is determined to be other-than-temporary, based on analysis of relevant
factors, we record a realized loss in our Consolidated Staiements of Operations. We do not consider the
unrealized losses on each of the investments described above to be other-than-temporarily impaired at
December 31, 2007.

We recorded realized gains and losses on sales of investments, as follows:

For the Year Ended
December 31,
(in millions) 2007 2006 2005
Gross Realized Gains . ....ovrtir i ittt et $ 57 % 4 3 60
Gross Realized Losses . ... vt ittt e e e (19) 37N (50
Net Realized Gains ... ..ottt it aenainans $ 38 % 4 % 10

Included in the realized losses above are impairment charges of $6 million, $4 million and $8 million for 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively.

6. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill, by segment, during the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006,
were as follows:

Health
é:re Prescription
(in millions) Services OptumHealth Ingenix Solutions Consolidated
Balance at December 31,2005 ... ... $ 14,105 % 742§ 715§ 676 3 16,238
Acquisitions and Subsequent
Payments/Adjustments .......... 161 331 92 —_ 584
Balance at December 31,2006 ...... $ 14,266 $ 1073 % 807 % 676 % 16,822
Acquisitions and Subsequent
Payments/Adjustments .. ........ (127) 7 151 1 32

Balance at December 31,2007 ...... $ 14,139 § 1,080 $ 958 % 677 % 16,854

The gross carrying value, accumulated amortization and net carrying value of other intangible assets as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, were as follows:

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying  Accumulated  Carrying Carrylng  Accumulated  Carrying
(in millions} Value Amortization Vatue Value Amortization Value
Customer Contracts and Membership
Lists ... i e $ 1,879 % (394) § 1,485 § i,871 % (246) % 1,625
Patents, Trademarks and Technology . ... 302 (121 181 303 (89) 214
Other ...... ... .. .ot 109 (38) 71 103 (38) 65
Total ... ... .. i, $ 2,290 $ (553) $ 1,737 § 22717 % (37 % 1,904

Amortization expense relating to intangible assets was $192 million in 2007, $181 million in 2006 and $94
million in 2003, Estimated full year amortization expense relating to intangible assets for each of the next five
years is as follows: $185 million in 2008, $167 million in 2009, $158 million in 2010, $153 million in 2011, and
$151 million in 2012.
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7. Medical Costs and Medical Costs Payable

Medical costs and medical costs payable include estimates of our obligations for medical care services that have
been rendered on behalf of insured consumers but for which we have either not yet received or processed claims,
and for liabilities for physician, hospital and other medical cost disputes. We develop estimates for medical costs
incurred but not reported using an actuarial process that is consistently applied, centrally controlled and
automated. The actuarial models consider factors such as time from date of service to claim receipt, claim
backlogs, care professional contract rate changes, medical care consumption and other medical cost trends. We
estimate liabilities for physician, hospital and other medical cost disputes based upon an analysis of potential
outcomes, assuming a combination of litigation and settlement strategies. Each period, we re-examine previously
established medical costs payable estimates based on actual claim submissions and other changes in facts and
circumstances. As the liability estimates recorded in prior periods become more exact, we adjust the amount of
the estimates, and include the changes in estimates in medical costs in the period in which the change is
identified. For example, in every reporting period, our operating results include the effects of more completely
developed medical costs payable estimates associated with previously reported periods.

The following table shows the components of the change in medical costs payable for the years ended
December 31:

(in millions) 2007 2006 . 2005
Medical Costs Payable, Beginning of Period .. ................ 3 8076 § 7262 % 5,500
ACQUISIONS . ..ottt ittt e e — 224 1,469
Reported Medical Costs
Curment Year ... ... vertei oo 55,855 53,738 34,069
Prior Years . ...........iiiseiieninenannainneeciinn. (420) (430) (400)
Total Reported Medical Costs ..................... 55,435 53,308 33,669
Claim Payments
Payments forCarrent Year . ... ... (48,240) (46,560) (28,928)
Payments forPrior Years ..... ... vinviininn e, {6,940) (6,152) (4,448)
Total Claim Payments .........ccouuuiiiiennunn.. (55,180) (52,718) (33,376)
Medical Costs Payable, Endof Period ....................... h 8331 § 8076 § 7,262
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8. Commercial Paper and Debt
Commercial paper and debt consisted of the following as of December 31:

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

(in millions) Value (1} Value(2) Value(l) Value(2)
Commercial Paper. . .......o.cuiiiiint e $ 1445 $ 1445 $ 498 $§ 498
3.0% Convertible Subordinated Debentures . .. ........................ — — 34 34
$4060 million par, 5.2% Senior Unsecured Notes due January 2007 ........ — — 400 400
$550 million par, 3.4% Senior Unsecured Notes due August 2007 ......... — — 540 543
$500 million par, 3.3% Senior Unsecured Notes due January 2008 ........ 499 500 489 489
$250 million par, 3.8% Senior Unsecured Notes due February 2009 ....... 250 251 243 243
$650 million par, Senior Unsecured Floating-Rate Notes due March 2009 ... .. 654 652 650 649
$450 million par, 4.1% Senior Unsecured Notes due August 2009 ......... 433 447 438 438
$500 million par, Senior Unsecured Floating Rate Notes due June 2010 . ... 500 497 — —
$250 million par, 5.1% Senior Unsecured Notes due November 2010 ... ... 253 252 — —
$750 miliion par, 5.3% Senior Unsecured Notes due March 2011 ......... 15 764 748 747
$450 million par, 5.5% Senior Unsecured Notes due November 2012 .. .. .. 456 457 — —
$450 million par, 4.9% Senior Unsecured Notes due April 2013 .......... 454 447 444 436
$250 million par, 4.8% Senior Unsecured Notes due February 2014 .. ..... 253 241 242 239
$500 million par, 5.0% Senior Unsecured Notes due August 2014 ......... 511 487 489 485
$500 million par, 4.9% Senior Unsecured Notes due March 2015 ......... 511 478 488 479
$750 million par, 5.4% Senior Unsecured Notes due March 2016 ......... 774 732 741 743
$95 million par, 5.4% Senior Unsecured Note due November 2016 ........ 95 90 95 95
$500 million par, 6.0% Senior Unsecured Notes due June 2017 ........... 536 502 — —
$250 million par, 6.0% Senior Unsecured Notes due November 2017 .. ..., 254 252 — —
$1,095 million par, zero coupon Senior Unsecured Notes due

NOVEMbEr 2022 . ot e et 503 426 —_ —
$850 million par, 5.8% Senior Unsecured Notes due March 2036 ......... 844 767 844 839
$500 million par, 6.5% Senior Unsecured Notes due June 2037 ........... 4935 496 — —
$650 million par, 6.6% Senior Unsecured Notes due November 2037 .. .. .. 645 652 — —_
Interest Rate SWaps . ... ... i i it i (15 (151) 73 73
Total Commercial PaperandDebt ........... ... iiiiiiiii et 11,009 10,684 7,456 7,430
Less Current Maturities .. ...... ... .. i (1,946) (1,947) (1,483) (1,475)
Long-Term Debt, less current maturities .............covevrvnivren... $ 9063 % 8737 § 5973 $§ 5955

(1) The carrying value of debt has been adjusted based upon the applicable interest rate swap fair values in accordance
with the fair value hedge short-cut method of accounting described below.

(2) Estimated based on third-party quoted market prices for the same or similar issues.
As of December 31, 2007, our outstanding commercial paper had interest rates ranging from 5.1% to 5.5%.

Maturities of commercial paper and debt for the years ending December 31 are as follows: $1.9 billion in 2008,
$1.4 billion in 2009, $750 million in 2010, $749 million in 2011, $448 million in 2012 and $5.8 billion thereafter.

In February 2008, we issued a total of $3.0 billion in senior unsecured debt, which included: $250 million of
floating rate notes due February 2011, $550 million of 4.9% fixed-rate notes due February 2013, $1.1 biltion of
6.0% fixed-rate notes due February 2018 and $1.1 billion of 6.9% fixed-rate notes due February 2038. The
floating-rate notes are benchmarked to the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) and had an initial interest
rate of 4.5%. On the same date, we entered into interest rate swap agreements to receive fixed rates and pay
variable rates that are benchmarked to the LIBOR on the February 2013 and February 2018 notes with an
aggregate notional amount of approximately $1.7 billion.

In November 2007, we issued $500 million of zero coupon notes due November 2022. These zero coupon notes
are original issue discount notes with an aggregate principal amount due at maturity of approximately $1.1
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billion and an accretion yield of 5.3%. These notes have a put feature that allows a note holder to reguire us to
repurchase the notes at the accreted value at certain annual dates in the future, beginning on November 15, 2010.

In November 2007, we entered into a $1.5 billion 364-day revolving credit facility in order to expand our access
to liquidity, The credit facility supports our commercial paper program and is available for general working
capital purposes, As of December 31, 2007, we had no amounts outstanding under this bank credit facility.

In November 2007, we issued a total of $1.6 billion in senior unsecured debt, which included: $250 million of
5.1% fixed-rate notes due November 2010, $450 million of 5.5% fixed-rate notes due November 2012, $250
million of 6.0% fixed-rate notes due November 2017 and $650 million of 6.6% fixed-rate notes due November
2037. These notes were issued pursuant to an exemption from registration under Section 4(2) of the Securities
Act of 1933 (1933 Act). In January 2008, we commenced an offer to allow purchasers of the notes to exchange
each series of these notes for a new issue of substantially identical debt securities registered under the 1933 Act.
We expect to complete the exchange in February 2008.

In June 2007, we issued a total of $1.5 billion in senior unsecured debt, which included: $500 million of floating-
rate notes due June 2010, $500 million of 6.0% fixed-rate notes due June 2017 and $500 million of 6.5% fixed-
rate notes due June 2037, The floating-rate notes due June 2010 are benchmarked to the LIBOR and had an
interest rate of 5.1% at December 31, 2007. These notes were issued pursuant to an exemption from registration
under Section 4(2) of the 1933 Act. In January 2008, we commenced an offer to allow purchasers of the notes to
exchange each series of these notes for a new issue of substantially identical debt securities registered under the
1933 Act. We expect to complete the exchange in February 2008.

In May 2007, we amended and restated our $1.3 billion five-year revolving credit facility supporting our
commercial paper program. We increased the credit facility to $2.6 billion and extended the maturity date to May
2012. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, we had no amounts outstanding under this credit facility.

On December 1, 2006, our Health Care Services business segment acquired the Student Insurance Division
(Student Resources) of The MEGA Life and Health Insurance Company through an asset purchase agreement.
Under the terms of the asset purchase agreement, we issued a 10-year, 5.4% promissory note for approximately
$95 million and paid approximately $1 million in cash in exchange for the net assets of Student Resources.

In October 2006, we entered into a $7.5 billion 364-day revolving credit facility. Effective August 3, 2007, we
elected to reduce the amount of this facility to $1.5 billion. This credit facility expired on October 15, 2007.

In March 2006, we issued a total of $3.0 billion in senior unsecured debt to refinance outstanding commercial
paper. We issued $650 million of floating-rate notes due March 2009, $750 million of 5.3% fixed-rate notes due
March 2011, $750 million of 5.4% fixed-rate notes due March 2016 and $850 million of 5.8% fixed-rate notes
due March 2036. The floating-rate notes due March 2009 are benchmarked to the LIBOR and had an interest rate
of 5.2% and 5.5% at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

On February 24, 2006, our Health Care Services business segment acquired John Deere Health Care, Inc.
(JDHC). Under the terms of the purchase agreement, we paid approximately $515 million in cash, including
transaction costs, in exchange for all of the outstanding equity of JDHC. We issued commercial paper to finance
the JDHC purchase price. JDHC has been renamed UnitedHealthcare Services Company of the River Valley, Inc.

To more closely align interest costs with floating interest rates received on our cash equivalent and investment
balances, we have entered into interest rate swap agreements to convert the majority of our interest rate exposure
from fixed rates to variable rates. The interest rate swap agreements have aggregate notional amounts of $5.6
billion as of December 31, 2007, with variable rates that are benchmarked to the LIBOR. As of December 31,
2007, the aggregate asset, recorded at fair value, for all existing interest rate swaps was approximately $151
million. These interest rate swap agreements qualify as fair value hedges and are accounted for using the
short-cut method under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
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Instruments and Hedging Activities” (FAS 133), whereby the hedges are reported in our Consolidated Balance
Sheets at fair value, and the carrying value of the long-term debt is adjusted for an offsetting amount representing
changes in fair value attributable to the hedged risk. Since these amounts completely offset, we have reported
both the swap asset and the debt liability within debt in our Consolidated Balance Sheets and there have been no
net gains or losses recognized in our Consolidated Statements of Operations. At December 31, 2007, the rates
used to accrue interest expense on these agreements ranged from 4.1% to 6.1%.

Our debt arrangements and credit facilities contain various covenants, the most restrictive of which require us to
maintain a debt-to-total-capital ratio {calculated as the sum of commercial paper and debt divided by the sum of
commercial paper, debt and shareholders’ equity) below 50%. We were in compliance with the requirements of
all debt covenants as of December 31, 2007. On August 28, 2006, we received a purported notice of default from
persons claiming to hold our 5.8% Senior Unsecured Notes due March 15, 2036 alleging a violation of the
indenture governing those debt securities. This followed our announcement that we would delay filing our
quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2006 (See Note 13).

PacifiCare had approximately $100 million par value of 3% convertible subordinated debentures (convertible
notes) which were convertible into approximately 5.2 million shares of UnitedHealth Group’s common stock and
$102 million of cash as of December 31, 2005. In December 2005, we initiated a consent solicitation to all of the
holders of outstanding convertible aotes pursuant to which we offered to compensate all holders who elected to
convert their notes in accordance with existing terms and consent to an amendment to a covenant in the indenture
governing the convertible notes. The compensation consisted of the present value of interest through October 18,
2007, the earliest mandatory redemption date, plus a pro rata share of $1 million. On lanuary 31, 2006,
approximately $91 million of the convertible notes were tendered pursuant to the offer, for which we issued
4.8 million shares of UnitedHealth Group common stock, valued at $282 million, and cash of $93 million and
amended the indenture governing these notes. During 2007, approximately $9 million of convertible notes were
tendered for conversion, for which we issued 470,119 shares of UnitedHealth Group common stock, valued at
approximately %24 million, and cash of approximately $10 million. In September 2007, we notified the
remaining holders of our intent to fully redeem all outstanding convertible notes on October 18, 2007, the earliest
redemption date. As of October 16, 2007, all convertible notes were tendered pursuant to this redemption notice.

9. Shareholders’ Equity
Regulatory Capital and Dividend Restrictions

We conduct a significant portion of our operations through subsidiaries that are subject to standards established
by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners. These standards, among other things, require these
subsidiaries to maintain specified levels of statutory capital. as defined by each state, and restrict the timing and
amount of dividends and other distributions that may be paid to their parent companies, Generally, the amount of
dividend distributions that may be paid by a regulated subsidiary, without prior approval by state regulatory
authorities, is limited based on the entity’s level of statutory net income and statutory capital and surplus. At
December 31, 2007, approximately $2.4 billion of our $22.3 billion of cash and investments was held by
non-regulated subsidiaries and was available for general corporate use, including acquisitions and common stock
repurchases.

As of December 31, 2007, our regulated subsidiaries had aggregate statutory capital and surplus of approximately
$10.0 billion, which is significantly more than the aggregate minimum regulatory requirements.

Stock Repurchase Program

Under cur Board of Directors’ authorization, we maintain a common stock repurchase program. Repurchases
may be made from time to time at prevailing prices, subject to certain restrictions on volume, pricing and timing.
During 2007, we repurchased 125.3 miltion shares which were settled for cash on or before December 31, 2007
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at an average price of approximately $53 per share and an aggregate cost of approximately $6.6 billion. During
2006, we repurchased 40.2 million shares which were settled for cash on or before December 31, 2006 at an
average price of approximately $56 per share and an aggregate cost of approximately $2.2 billion. As of
December 31, 2007, we had Board of Directors’ authorization to purchase up to an additional 171.9 million
shares of our common stock.

Preferred Stock

At December 31, 2007, we had 10 million shares of $0.001 par value preferred stock authorized for issuance, and
no preferred shares issued and outstanding.

10. Share-Based Compensation and Other Employee Benefit Plans

We adopted FAS 123R as of Janvary 1, 2006. FAS 123R requires companies to measure compensation expense
for all share-based payments (including employee stock options, stock-settled stock appreciation rights (SARs)
and restricted stock) at fair value and recognize the expense over the related service period. We adopted FAS
123R using the modified retrospective transition method, under which all prior period financial statements were
restated to recognize compensation cost as calculated under FAS 123.

As of December 31, 2007, we had approximately 70.6 million shares available for future grants of share-based
awards under our share-based compensation plan, including, but not limited to, incentive or non-qualified stock
options, SARs, and up to 26.1 million of awards in restricted stock and restricted stock units. Qur existing share-
based awards consist mainly of non-qualified stock options and SARs.

Stock Options and SARs

Stock options and SARs generally vest ratably over four to six years and may be exercised up to 10 years from
the date of grant. Stock option and SAR activity for the year ending December 31, 2007 is summarized in the
table below:

Weighted-
Average
Exercise
{shares in millions) Shares Price
Outstanding at Beginningof Year .......................... 1802 % 28
Granted ... ... ..o 225 3 54
Exercised . ..... ... oottt i e e (331 % 21
Forfeited .. ... ..o i it e e 89) $% 35
Quistandingat Endof Year ............. . ... .. ciinnn.. 160.7 $ 34
Exercisable atEndof Year .......................ciuee.. 1089 §% 26

As of December 31, 2007, outstanding stock options and SARs had an aggregate intrinsic value of $3.9 billion,
and a weighted-average remaining contractual life of 5.5 years. As of December 31, 2007, exercisable stock
options and SARs had an aggregate intrinsic value of $3.5 billion, and a weighted-average remaining contractual
life of 4.2 years.

To determine compensation expense related to our stock options and SARs, the fair value of each award grant is
estimated on the date of grant using an option-pricing model. For purposes of estimating the fair value of our
employee stock option and SAR grants, we utilize a binomial model. The principal assumptions we used in
applying the option-pricing models were as follows:
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2007 2006 2005

Risk-Free Interest Rate ................ ..o 38%-52% 41%-52% 2.1%-45%
Expected Volatility ........ ... ... ... it 24.2% 26.0% 23.5%
Expected Dividend Yield .............................. 0.1% 0.1% 0.1%
Forfeiture Rate .......... ... ... ... ... o il 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
Expected Lifein Years .. .. ... ... .. .. ... oL 4.1 4.1 4.1

The risk-free interest rate is based on U.S. Treasury yields in effect at the time of grant. Expected volatilities are
based on a blend of the implied volatilities from traded options on our common stock and the historical volatility
of our common stock. We use historical data to estimate option and SAR exercises and employee terminations
within the valuation model. The expected term of options and SARs granted represents the period of time that the
awards granted are expected to be outstanding based on historical exercise patterns,

The weighted-average fair value of stock options and SARs granted for 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $14 per share,
$11 per share and $14 per share, respectively. The total intrinsic value of options and SARs exercised during
2007, 2006 and 2005 was $1,076 million, $753 million and $847 million, respectively.

Restricted Shares

Restricted stock awards generally vest ratably over two to five years, Compensation expense related to restricted
stock awards is determined based upon the fair value of each award on the date of grant. Restricted stock award
activity for the year ending December 31, 2007 is summarized in the table below:

Weighted-
Average

Grant Date
(shares in millions) Shares Fair Value
Outstanding at Beginning of Year .. ..................... 1.3 $ 59
Granted .. ... ... .. . e e 0.1 $ 51
VESted . oo 0.6) $ 61
Forfeited ... ... it i e ©.hH 3 37
Qutstanding at Endof Year ............................ 0.7 3 59

The total fair value of restricted shares vested during 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $35 million, $35 million and $5
million, respectively.

Share-Based Compensation Recognition

We recognize compensation cost for share-based awards, including stock options, SARs, restricted stock and
restricted stock units, on a straight-line basis over the related service period (generally the vesting period) of the
award, or to an employee’s eligible retirement date under the award agreement, if earlier. For 2007, 2006 and
2005, we recognized compensation expense related to our share-based compensation plans of $505 million ($325
million net of tax effects), $404 million ($259 million net of tax effects) and $306 million ($194 million net of
tax effects), respectively, Share-based compensation expense is recognized within Operating Costs in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations. Share compensation expense for 2006 included $31 million associated
with the cash settlement of stock options expiring or forfeiting during the period. As of December 31, 2007, there
was $529 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to share awards that is expected to be
recognized over a weighted-average period of approximately 1.4 years.

For 2007, 2006 and 2005, the income tax benefit realized from share-based awards was $399 million, $287
million and $311 million, respectively.
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Included in the share-based compensation expense for 2007 is $176 million ($112 million net of tax benefit) of
expenses recorded in the first quarter of 2007 related to application of deferred compensation rules under
Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code (Section 409A) to our historical stock option practices. As part of our
review of the Company’s historical stock option practices, we determined that certain stock options granted to
individuals who were nonexecutive officer employees at the time of grant were granted with an exercise price that
was lower than the closing price of our common stock on the applicable accounting measurement date, subjecting
these individuals to additional tax under Section 409A. The Company elected 1o pay these individuals for the
additional tax costs relating to such stock options exercised in 2006 and early 2007. For any outstanding stock
options subject to additional tax under Section 409A that were granted to nonexecutive officer employees, the
Company increased the exercise price and committed to make cash payments to these optionholders for their
vested options based on the difference between the original stock option exercise price and the revised increased
stock option exercise price. The payments will be made on a quarterly basis upon vesting of the applicable awards.
The first payment, amounting to $110 million, was made to optionholders in January 2008 for options that had
vested through December 31, 2007. Aggregate future payments will be $38 million, assuming all applicable
options vest during 2008 and 2009. If the modified stock options are subsequently exercised, the Company will
recover these cash payments at that time from exercise proceeds at the revised increased stock option exercise
prices.

The $176 million Section 409A charge includes $87 million of expense ($55 million net of tax benefit) for the
payment of certain optionholders’ tax obligations for stock options exercised in 2006 and early 2007 and $89
million of expense (357 million net of tax benefit) for the modification related to increasing the exercise price of
unexercised stock options granted to nonexecutive officer employees and the related cash payments. These
amounts have been recorded as corporate expenses and have not been allocated to individual business segments.

In December 2006, the Company entered into agreements with individuals who were executive officers of the
Company at the time of grant of an applicable stock option to increase the exercise price of certain outstanding
stock options. No compensation was payable to any of those individuals as a result of the increase in the exercise
price of their stock options.

As further discussed in Note 9, we maintain a common stock repurchase program. The objectives of our share
repurchase program are 10 optimize our capital structure, cost of capital and return to shareholders, as well as to
offset the dilutive impact of shares issued for share-based award exercises.

Other Employee Benefit Plans

Our Employee Stock Purchase Plan allows employees to purchase the Company’s stock at a discounted price
based on the lower of the price on the first day or the last day of the six-month purchase period. The
compensation expense is included in the compensation expense amounts recognized and discussed above. We
also offer a 401(k) plan for all employees of the Company. Compensation expense related to this plan was not
significant for the years 2007, 2006 and 2005,

We have provided Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan benefits (SERPs), which are non-qualified defined
benefit plans, for our current CEQ and our former CEQ, as well as for certain nonexecutive officers under a plan
that was assumed in an acquisition. No additional amounts are accruing to the SERPs of our current CEQ and
former CEO. The SERPs are non-contributory, unfunded and provide benefits based on years of service and
compensation during employment. Pension expense is determined using various actuarial methods to estimate the
total benefits ultimately payable to executives, and is allocated to service periods. The actuarial assumptions used
to calculate pension costs are reviewed annually. Pension expense was not significant for the years 2007, 2006
and 2005. The total SERP liability was $139 million and $131 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively, and is recorded within Other Long Term Liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets,

In addition, the Company maintains non-qualified, unfunded deferred compensation plans, which allow certain
members of senior management and executives to defer portions of their salary or bonus and receive certain
Company contributions on such deferrals, subject to plan limitations. The deferrals are recorded within
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Long-Term Investments with an equal amount in Long-Term Other Liabilities in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets. The total deferrals are distributable based upon termination of employment or other periods, as elected
under each plan and are $225 million and $212 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

11. Income Taxes

The components of the provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

(in millions) 2007 2006 2005
Current Provision
Federal . ...t e $ 2284 § 2236 % 1,594
Stateand Local . ........... . i 166 158 125
Total Current Provision ............ . ... o, 2,450 2,394 1,719
Deferred Provision . ..........vii it iiiii iy 201 (25) 37
Total Provision for Income Taxes .................. $ 2651 % 2,369 % 1,756

The reconciliation of the tax provision at the U.S. Federal Statutory Rate to the provision for income taxes for the
years ended December 31 is as follows:

{int miflions) 2007 2006 2005

Tax Provision at the U.S. Federal Statutory Rate . ............. $ 2557 § 2285 § 1,693

State Income Taxes, net of federal benefit .. .................. 120 116 87

Tax-Exempt Investment Income .. ........... ... .. ........ {52) (50) (40)

Other, Bt ..o e e e 26 18 16
Provision for Income Taxes .............c.ccovvnrinnonn. $ 2651 % 2369 § 1,756

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

(in millions) 2007 2006

Deferred Income Tax Assets
Accrued Expenses and Allowances ............. ... ... i
Unearned Premiums . . ... ... .. i i
Medical Costs Payable and Other Policy Liabilities ....................
Long Term Liabilities . ....... ... . i ittt nenns
Net Operating Loss Carryforwards ..........................co0vn.
Share-Based Compensation .. ... .. ot iiinnr i
Unrecognized Tax Benefits
Other

Deferred Income Tax Liabilities
Capitalized Software Development . ........ ... ... .. ... ... . ceenn..
Nert Unrealized Gains on Investments . ..... ... .. ... ... ... . ........
Intangible ASSEIS ... ... o i e s
Property and Equipment . ...... ... . . ... . et

Total Deferred Income Tax Liabilities

83 221
54 43
168 181
132 142
110 91
346 329
105 -
116 139
1,114 1,146
(73) (53
1,041 1,093
(391) (420)
(55) G
(707) (766)
(2) 64
(1,155} (1,130
(114) (37)




Valuation allowances are provided when it is considered more likely than not that deferred tax assets will not be
realized. The valuation allowances primarily relate to future tax benefits on certain federal and state net operating
loss carryforwards. Federal net operating loss carryforwards expire beginning in 2008 through 2027, and state net
operating loss carryforwards expire beginning in 2008 through 2027.

The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. The cumulative effect of adopting FIN 48
for the first quarter of 2007 resulted in an increase to our liability for unrecognized tax bencfits of $88 million,
which included a reduction of $61 million in retained eamings and an increase of $26 million in goodwill. The
total amount of unrecognized tax benefits as of the date of adoption was $341 million. A reconciliation of the
beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

{in mfillions) 2007
Gross Unrecognized Tax Benefits, January 1,2007 ...................... 5 341
Gross Increases:
Current Year Tax Positions . . ...... ...t 23
Prior Year Tax Positions . ........iit et iierinannennnenns 26
Gross Decreases:
Prior Year Tax Positions .......... . oo nirineennnaann.. a1
Settlements . ... ... .. i (87)
Statute of Limitations Lapses . ..........ovrrininiiieeeenneenn.. ()
Gross Unrecognized Tax Benefits, December 31,2007 ................... $ 271

We classify interest and penalties associated with uncertain income tax positions as income taxes within our
Consolidated Financial Statements. During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company recognized
approximately $28 million in interest expense. The Company had approximately $54 million of accrued interest
at December 31, 2007, which is reported in Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets. This amount is not included in the reconciliation above. No amount was accrued for penalties.
As of December 31, 2007, the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would affect the
effective tax rate was $131 million.

We currently file income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, various states, and foreign jurisdictions. The U.S.
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) has completed exams on the consolidated income tax returns for fiscal years 2006 and
prior, Qur 2007 tax return is under advance review by the IRS under its Compliance Assurance Program (CAP). With
the exception of a few states, we are no longer subject to income tax examinations prior to 2002 in major state and
foreign jurisdictions. We do not believe any adjustments that may result from these examinations will be significant.

We believe it is reasonably possible that our liability for unrecognized tax benefits will decrease in the next
twelve months by $75 million or less as a result of audit settlements and the expiration of statutes of limitations
in certain major jurisdictions,

12. AARP

We provide health insurance products and services to members of AARP. These products and services are
provided to supplement benefits covered under traditional Medicare (AARP Medicare Supplement Insurance),
hospital indemnity insurance, health insurance focused on persons between 50 to 64 years of age, and other
products (Supplemental Health Insurance Program). Under the Supplemental Health Insurance Program, we are
compensated for transaction processing and other services as well as for assuming underwriting risk. We are also
engaged in product development activities to complement the insurance offerings. Premium revenues from our
portion of the AARP Supplemental Health Insurance Program were approximately $5.3 billion in 2007, $5.0
billion in 2006 and $4.9 billion in 2005.
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On October 3, 2007, we entered into four agreements with AARP that amended our existing AARP arrangements and
incorporated many of the terms of the April 13, 2007 AARP agreement. These agreements extended our arrangements
with AARP on the Supplemental Health Insurance Program to December 31, 2017, extended our arrangement with
AARP on the Medicare Part D business to December 31, 2014, and gave us an exclusive right to use the AARP brand
on our Medicare Advantage offerings until December 31, 2014, subject to certain limited exclusions.

The underwriting gains or losses related to the AARP Medicare Supplement Insurance business are directly
recorded as an increase or decrease to a rate stabilization fund (RSF). The primary components of the
underwriting results are premium revenue, medical costs, investment income, administrative expenses, member
service expenses, marketing expenses and premium taxes. Underwriting gains and losses are recorded as an
increase or decrease to the RSF and accrue to the overall benefit of the AARP policyholders, unless cumulative
net losses were to exceed the balance in the RSF. To the extent underwriting losses exceed the balance in the
RSF, we would have to fund the deficit. Any deficit we fund could be recovered by underwriting gains in future
periods of the contract. To date, we have not been required to fund any underwriting deficits. The RSF balance is
reported in Other Policy Liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and changes in the RSF are reported in
Medical Costs in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. In January 2008, $127 million in cash was
transferred out of the RSF to an external insurance entity that was selected to offer the AARP branded age 50 to
64 comprehensive product that had been previously offered by the Company. We believe the RSF balance is
sufficient to cover potential future underwriting and other risks and liabilities associated with the contract.

The following AARP program-related assets and liabilities are included in our Consolidated Balance Sheets:

Balance as of
December 31,
(in millions) 007 2006
Accounts Receivable .. ............ .. ... ... ....... $ 459 b 417
Assets Under Management ...............cccoiivn... $ 2,176 $ 1,924
Medical Costs Payable ............................. $ 1,109 3 1,004
Other Policy Liabilities ........................c. .. 5 1,132 3 1,008
Other Current Liabilities ...............covvvreen... 3 394 3 329

The effects of changes in balance sheet amounts associated with the AARP Medicare Supplement Insurance
program accrue to the overall benefit of the AARP policyholders through the RSF balance. Accordingly, we do
not include the effect of such changes in our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.
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Pursuant to our agreement, AARP assets under management are managed separately from our general investment
portfolioc and are used to pay costs associated with the AARP program. These assets are invested at our
discretion, within investment guidelines approved by the Supplemental Health Insurance Program. We do not
guarantee any rates of investment return on these investments and, upon transfer of this AARP agreement to
another entity, we would transfer cash equal in amount to the fair value of these investments at the date of
transfer to that entity. Interest earnings and realized investment gains and losses on these assets accrue to the
overall benefit of the AARP policyholders through the RSF and, thus, are not included in our earnings. Interest
income and realized gains and losses related to assets under management are recorded as an increase to the
AARP RSF and were $108 million, $94 million and $90 million in 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively. Assets
under management are reported at their fair market value, and unrealized gains and losses are included directly in
the RSF associated with the AARP program. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the amortized cost, gross
unrealized gains and losses, and fair value of cash, cash equivalents and investments associated with the AARP
insurance program, included in Assets Under Management, were as follows:

Amortized Gross Unrealized  Gross Unrealized Fair

(in millions) Cost Gains Losses Value
2007
Cash and Cash Equivalents ................. $ a4 $ — $ — $ 441
Debt Securities — Available for Sale:

U.S. Government and Agency

obligations .. ...................... 959 25 2) 982

State and Municipal obligations ......... 25 — — 25

Corporate obligations . ............. cees 731 5 (8) 728
Total Debt Securities — Available for Sale . ... 1,715 30 (10) 1,735
Total Cash and Investments ................. $ 2,156 3 30 3 10y $ 2,176
2006
Cash and Cash Equivalents ................. $ 532 $ — $ — $ 532
Debt Securities — Available for Sale:

U.S. Government and Agency

obligations ........................ 804 2 N 797

State and Municipal obligations ......... 12 — — 12

Corporate obligations . . ................ 588 2 (7} 583
Total Debt Securities — Available for Sale . ... 1,404 4 (16) 1,392
Total Cash and Investments ................. 3 1,936 $ 4 ] (16) $ 1924

At December 31, 2007, the fair value of AARP assets under management had the following maturity dates:

{in millions) <1 Year 1to 5 Years 5to 10 Years > 10 Years Total
Debt Securities . ......ooot ... $ 144 % 519 $ 545 % 527 % 1,735

As of December 31, 2007, we had investments with an aggregate fair value of $151 million under the AARP
agreement in an unrealized [oss position of $2 million for 12 months or greater. These investments are subject to
the same processes and reviews as the rest of our investment portfolio, including impairment analyses. As a
result of these reviews, as is further discussed in Note 5, we did not identify any other-than-temporary
impairments. Interest earnings and realized investment gains and losses on these assets accrue to the overall
benefit of the AARP policyholders through the RSF and are, therefore, not included in our earnings,.

Under separate trademark license agreements with AARP, we sell AARP-branded Medicare Prescription Drug
benefit plans and Medicare Advantage plans. We pay AARP a license fee for the use of the trademark and
member data and assume all operational and underwriting risks.
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13. Commitments and Contingencies

We lease facilities, computer hardware and other equipment under long-term operating leases that are
noncancelable and expire on various dates through 2025. Rent expense under all operating leases was $223
million in 2007, $209 million in 2006 and $152 million in 2005. At December 31, 2007, future minimum annual
lease payments, net of sublease income, under all noncancelable operating leases were as follows: $173 million
in 2008, $173 miliion in 2009, $144 million in 2010, $i {1 million in 2011, $93 million in 2012 and $345 million
thereafter. In 2006, we signed a facility lease agreement, which is expected o commence in March 2009 with
total estimated lease payments of $229 million over a 20-year period. These estimated lease payments are
included in our total future minimum annual lease paymeats above.

In conjunction with the PacifiCare acquisition we committed to make $50 million in charitable contributions for
the benefit of California health care consumers, which has been accrued in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. We
have committed to specific projects totaling approximately $18 million of the $50 million charitable commitment
at December 31, 2007, of which $6 million was paid. Additionally, we agreed to invest $200 million in
California’s health care infrastructure to further health care services to the underserved populations of the
California marketplace, of which $8 million was invested at December 31, 2007. The timing and amount of
individual contributions and investments are at our discretion subject to the advice and oversight of the local
regulatory authorities; however, our goal is to have the investment commitment fully funded by the end of 2010.
The investment commitment remains in place for 20 years after funding,

We have various outstanding, undrawn letters of credit with financial institutions with an aggregate commitment
of approximately $39 million at December 31, 2007.

Legal Matters
Legal Matters Relating to Historical Stock Option Practices
Regulatory Inguiries

In March 2006, we received an informal inquiry from the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) relating to
our historical stock option practices. On December 19, 2006, we received from the SEC staff a formal order of
investigation into the Company’s historical stock option practices.

On May 17, 2006, we received a subpoena from the U.S. Attorney for the Southern District of New York
requesting documents from 1999 to the date of the subpoena relating to our historical stock option practices.

On May 17, 2006, we received a document request from the IRS seeking documents relating to our historical
stock option granis and other compensation for the persons who from 2003 to May 2006 were the named
executive officers in our annual proxy statements. As previously disclosed in our 2006 Annual Report on Form
10-K, we believed that compensation expense related to prior exercises of certain stock options by cenain of the
Company’s executive officers would no longer qualify as deductible performance-based compensation in
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 162{m) as a result of the revision of measurement dates that
occurred as part of our review of the Company’s historical stock option matters. In December 2007, the
Company reached an agreement with the IRS resolving Section 162(m) issues in connection with tax years
through 2005. Pursuant to this agreement, the Company paid $106 million in 2007 and will pay an additional $20
million in the first quarter of 2008,

On June 6, 2006, we received a Civil Investigative Demand from the Minnesota Attorney General requesting
documents from fanuary 1, 1997 to the date of the response concerning our executive compensation and
historical stock option practices. We filed an action in Ramsey County Court, State of Minnesota, captioned
UnitedHealth Group Incorporated vs. State of Minnesota, by Lori Swanson, Attorney General, seeking a
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protective order, which was denied. We appealed the denial of the protective order to the Minnesota Court of
Appeals. On December 4, 2007, the Minnesota Court of Appeals acknowledged limitations on the Minnesota
Attorney General’s authority to issue a Civil Investigative Demand, but affirmed the denial of a protective order.
On January 4, 2008, we filed a petition for review with the Minnesota Supreme Court, which remains pending,

We have also received requests for documents from U.S. Congressional committees relating to our historical
stock option practices and compensation of executives. At the conclusion of these regulatory inquiries, we could
be subject to regulatory or criminal fines or penalties as well as other sanctions or other contingent liabilities,
which could be material.

Litigation Matters

On March 29, 2006, the first of several shareholder derivative actions was filed against certain of our current and
former officers and directors in the United States District Court for the District of Minnesota. The action has
been consolidated with six other actions and is captioned fn re UnitedHealth Group Incorporated Shareholder
Derivative Litigation. The consolidated amended complaint is brought on behalf of the Company by severai
pension funds and other shareholders and names certain of our current and former officers and directors as
defendants, as well as the Company as a nominal defendant. The consolidated amended complaint generally
alleges that defendants breached their fiduciary duties to the Company, were unjustly enriched, and viclated the
securities laws in connection with our historical stock option practices. The consolidated amended complaint
seeks unspecified money damages, injunctive relief and rescission of certain options. On June 26, 2006, our
Board of Directors created a Special Litigation Committee under Minnesota Statute 302A.241, consisting of two
former Minnesota Supreme Court Justices, with the power to investigate the claims raised in the derivative
actions and shareholder demands, and determine whether the Company’s rights and remedies should be pursued.

A consolidated derivative action, reflecting a consclidation of two actions, is also pending in Heanepin County
District Court, State of Minnesota. The consolidated complaint is captioned In re UnitedHealth Group
Incorporated Derivative Litigation. The action was brought by two individual shareholders and names certain of
our current and former officers and directors as defendants, as well as the Company as a nominal defendant. On
February 6, 2007, the state court judge entered an order staying the action pending resolution of the Special
Litigation Committee process. On June 25, 2007, the state court judge entered an order modifying the stay to
allow plaintiffs counsel to access documents produced in the federal derivative action described above.

On December 6, 2007, the Special Litigation Committee concluded its review of claims relating to the
Company’s historical stock option practices and published a report. The Special Litigation Committee reached
settlement agreements on behalf of the Company with our former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer William
W. McGuire, M.D., former General Counsel David J. Lubben, and former director William G. Spears. In
addition, the Special Litigation Committee concluded that all claims against all named defendants in the
derivative actions, including current and former Company officers and directors, should be dismissed. Each
settlement agreement is conditioned upon final approval by the federat court and the state court after notice is
provided to shareholders and dismissal of claims in the derivative actions. If either condition is not satisfied, then
that individual’s settlement agreement will become null and void in its entirety and will have no force or effect.
On January 2, 2008, the U.S. District Court for the District of Minnesota presented a certified question to the
Minnesota Supreme Court concerning the scope of a court’s authority to review the settlement agreements under
Minnesota law. In an order filed February 1, 2008, the Minnesota Supreme Court agreed to consider the issue.

In connection with the departure of Dr. McGuire, the U.S. District Court for the District of Minnesota issued an
Order on November 29, 2006, preliminarily enjoining Dr. McGuire from exercising any Company stock options
and preliminarily enjoining the Company and Dr. McGuire from taking any action with respect to Dr. McGuire’s
employment agreement and related agreements. The original Order has been extended numerous times. On
December 26, 2007, the court extended the Order indefinitely pending the Minnesota Supreme Court’s response
to the certified question described above.
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On May 5, 2006, the first of seven putative class actions alleging a violation of the federal securities laws was
brought by an individual shareholder against certain of our current and former officers and directors in the United
States District Court for the District of Minnesota. On December 8, 2006, a consolidated amended complaint was
filed consolidating the actions into a single action. The action is captioned In re UnitedHealth Group
Incorporated PSLRA Litigation. The action was brought by lead plaintiff California Public Employees
Retirement System against the Company and certain of our current and former officers and directors. The
consolidated amended complaint alleges that defendants, in connection with the same alleged course of conduct
identified in the shareholder derivative actions described above, made misrepresentations and omissions during
the period between January 20, 2005 and May 17, 2006, in press releases and public filings that artificially
inflated the price of our common stock. The consolidated amended complaint also asserts that during the class
period, certain defendants sold shares of our common stock while in possession of material, non-public
information concerning the matters set forth in the complaint. The consolidated amended complaint alleges
claims under Sections 10(b), 14(a), 20(a) and 20A of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 and Sections 11
and 15 of the 1933 Act. The action seeks unspecified money damages and equitable relief. Defendants moved to
dismiss the consolidated amended complaint on February 6, 2007. The motion to dismiss was dented in an order
filed on June 4, 2007 and discovery is ongoing. On July 18, 2007, the lead plaintiff moved for partial summary
judgment on the Company’s liability on the Section 11 claim. The court denied the motion for partial summary
judgment on October 2, 2007. The parties are currently engaged in discovery and the case is currently scheduled
to be ready for trial in July 2008. We are vigorously defending against the action.

On June 6, 2006, a purported class action captioned Zilhaver v. UnitedHealth Group Incorporated was filed
against the Company and certain of our current and former officers and directors in the United States District
Court for the District of Minnesota, On May 1, 2007, plaintiffs amended the complaint. This action alleges that
the fiduciaries to the Company-sponsored 401(k) plan violated the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of
1974, as amended (ERISA) by allowing the plan to continue to hold company stock. Plaintiffs have filed a
motion to certify a class consisting of certain participants in the Company’s 401(k) plan. Defendants moved to
dismiss the action on June 22, 2007. A hearing on the motion to dismiss took place on January 8, 2008. The
motion remains under consideration by the court. We are vigorously defending against the action.

On August 28, 2006, we received a purported notice of default from persons claiming to hold our 5.8% Senior
Unsecured Notes due March 15, 2036 alleging a violation of the indenture governing those debt securities. This
followed our anncuncement that we would delay filing our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 2006. On October 25, 2006, we filed an action in the United States District Court for the District of
Minnesota, captioned UnitedHealth Group Incorporated v. Cede & Co. and the Bank of New York, seeking a
declaratory judgment that we are not in default under the terms of the indenture. On or about November 2, 2006, we
received a purported notice of acceleration from the same holders that purports to declare an acceleration of our 5.8%
Senior Unsecured Notes due March 15, 2036 as a result of our not timely filing our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended June 30, 2006. Our indenture requires vs to provide to the trustee copies of the reports we are
required to file with the SEC, such as our quarterly reports, within 15 days of filing such reports with the SEC. Should
the Company ultimately be unsuccessful in this matter, we may be required to retire all or a portien of the $850 million
of our 5.8% Senior Unsecured Notes due March 2036. The parties have filed cross-motions for summary judgment,
which remain pending before the court. We are vigorously prosecuting the declaratory judgment action.

In addition, we may be subject to additional litigation or other proceedings or actions arising out of the Company’s
historical stock option practices and the related restatement of our historical consolidated financial statements.
Litigation and any potential regulatory proceeding or action may be time consuming, expensive and distracting from
the conduct of our business. The adverse resolution of any specific lawsuit or any potential regulatory proceeding or
action could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

In addition, other adjustments for non-operating cash charges may be required in connection with the resolution
of stock option-related matters arising under litigation and regulatory reviews by the SEC, IRS, U.S. Attorney,
U.S. Congressional committees and Minnesota Attorney General, the amount and timing of which are uncertain
but which could be material.

81




Other Legal Matters

Because of the nature of our businesses, we are routinely made party to a variety of legal actions related to the
design and management of our service offerings. We record liabilities for our estimates of probable costs resulting
from these matters. These matters include, but are not limited to, claims relating to health care benefits coverage,
medical malpractice actions, contract disputes and claims related to disclosure of certain business practices.

Beginning in 1999, a series of class action lawsuits were filed against UnitedHealthcare, PacifiCare, and virtually
all major entities in the health benefits business. These lawsuits were consolidated in a multi-district litigation in
the Southern District Court of Florida. The health care provider plaintiffs alleged statutory violations, including
violations of the Racketeer Influenced Corrupt Organization Act (RICO) in connection with alleged undisclosed
reimbursement policies. Other allegations included breach of state prompt payment laws and breach of contract
claims for failure to timely reimburse health care providers for medical services rendered. The consolidated suits
seek injunctive, compensatory and equitable relief as well as restitution, costs, fees and interest payments. The
trial court granted the health care providers’ motion for class certification. The Eleventh Circuit Court of Appeals
affirmed the class action status of certain of the RICO claims, but reversed as to the breach of contract, unjust
enrichment and prompt payment claims. Most of the co-defendents have seutled. On Janvary 31, 2006, the trial
court dismissed all claims against PacifiCare, and on June 19, 2006, the trial court dismissed all claims against
UnitedHealthcare brought by the lead plaintiffs. On June 13, 2007, the Eleventh Circuit Court of Appeals
affirmed those decisions. Included in the multidistrict litigation are tag-atong lawsuits which contain claims
against the Company similar to the claims dismissed in the lead case. The tag-along cases were stayed pending
resolution of the lead case. That stay has not been lifted, but it is anticipated that the trial court will now lift the
stay and address the continuing viability of the tag-along claims. The plaintiffs in a number of the tag-along cases
have sought to remand the cases to alternate forums. We have opposed these efforts and have moved the court to
apply its June 2006 summary judgment ruling, and its other applicable pretrial rulings, to those cases. On
February 12, 2008, the court denied all pending motions without prejudice and set a briefing schedule for future
motions, including motions for summary judgment. We are vigorously defending against the remaining claims.

On March 15, 2000, the American Medical Association (AMA) filed a lawsuit against the Company and
affiliated entities, such as UnitedHealthcare, in state court in New York. We removed the case to the United
States District Court for the Southern District of New York. The suit originally alleged causes of action based on
ERISA, as well as breach of contract and the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing, deceptive acts and
practices, and trade libel in connection with the calculation of reasonable and customary reimbursement rates for
non-network health care providers by the Company’s affiliates. On May 26, 2004, we filed a motion for partial
summary judgment seeking the dismissal of certain claims and parties. On June 15, 2007, the trial court granted
part of our motion for summary judgment. The Court ruled that AMA does not have standing to pursue ERISA
claims for benefits on behalf of their physician members. The Court also ruled that the subscriber plaintiffs (and
physician plaintiffs with valid assignments from subscribers) can only seek monetary damages under ERISA for
those reimbursements that were actually appealed through the health plans’ appeal processes. The Court found
that such appeals are not “futile,” as plaintiffs alleged. Finally, the Court found that the health care providers and
plan participants have no standing to bring a claim where the provider waived its right to collect the balance from
the subscriber. While these decisions narrow the case, they do not resolve the non-ERISA claims or ERISA
breach of fiduciary duty claims. On July 10, 2007, plaintiffs filed a fourth amended complaint adding RICO and
antitrust claims and realleging several of their prior ERISA and state law claims. On September 24, 2007, we
moved to dismiss the RICO and antitrust claims in the fourth amended complaint. On Januvary 11, 2008, the
parties finalized briefing on the motion to dismiss and are awaiting the court’s ruling on the motion. We are
vigorously defending against the remaining claims.

On February 13, 2008, the New York Attorney General (“NYAG”) announced that (1} his office is conducting an
industry-wide investigation into health insurers’ provider reimbursement practices; (2) his office has issued
subpoenas to 16 health insurance companies in connection with such investigation, including one of our
subsidiaries; and (3) his office intends to file suit against UnitedHealth Group and four of our subsidiaries. On
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the same day, the NYAG served the Company with a notice of his office’s intent to initiate litigation (the
“Notice™”) based on allegedly fraudulent and deceptive practices in determining out-of-network reimbursements
for health benefits in New York State. The Notice states that the NYAG will be pursuing restitution, injunctive
relief, damages, and civil penalties. As described by the NYAG, the threatened claims appear to be similar to
those asserted by the plaintiffs in the AMA lawsuit described above. No lawsuit has been filed against the
Company as of February 21, 2008,

Government Regulation

Our business is regulated at federal, state, local and international levels. The laws and rules governing our
business and interpretations of those laws and rules are subject to frequent change. Broad latitude is given to the
agencies administering those regulations. State legislatures and Congress continue to focus on health care issues
as the subject of proposed legislation. Existing or future laws and rules could force us to change how we do
business, restrict revenue and enrollment growth, increase our health care and administrative costs and capital
requirements, and increase our liability in federal and state courts for coverage determinations, contract
interpretation and other actions. Further, we must obtain and maintain regulatory approvals to market many of
our products.

We have been and are currently involved in various governmental investigations, audits and reviews. These
include routine, regular and special investigations, audits and reviews by CMS, state insurance and health and
welfare departments, state attorneys general, the Office of the Inspector General, the Office of Personnel
Management, the Office of Civil Rights, U.S. Congressional committees, the U.S. Department of Justice, U.S.
Attorneys, the SEC and other governmental authorities. Such government actions can result in assessment of
damages, civil or criminal fines or penalties, or other sanctions, including loss of licensure or exclusion from
participation in government programs. For example, in 2007, the California Department of Managed Health Care
and the California Department of Insurance examined our PacifiCare health plans in California. The
examinations identified concerns that were largely administrative and provider related. The examination findings
related to claims processing accuracy and timeliness, accuratie and timely interest payments, timely
implementation of provider contracts, timely, accurate provider dispute resolution, and other related matters. The
California Department of Managed Health Care has assessed a penalty of $3.5 million related to its findings. The
California Department of Insurance, however, has not yet levied a financial penalty related to its findings. While
there is a theoretical maximum penalty that could be substantial, we believe the California Department of
Insurance Commissioner will take into consideration the fact that the vast majority of the violations were
administrative in nature and did not result in harm to our members. We are working closely with both
departments to resolve any outstanding issues arising from the findings of the examinations of our PacifiCare
health plans in California.

We also are subject to a formal investigation of our historical stock option practices by the SEC, U.S. Atorney
for the Southern District of New York, and Minnesota Attorney General, and we have received requests for
documents from U.S. Congressional committees, as previously described. We generally have cooperated and will
continue to cooperate with the regulatory authorities. At the conclusion of these regulatory inquiries, we could be
subject to regulatory or criminal fines or penalties as well as other sanctions or other contingent liabilities, which
could be material.

14. Segment Financial Information

During the fourth quarter of 2007, we completed the transition to our new segment reporting structure which
reflects how our chief operating decision maker now manages our business, Qur new reporting structure has four
reporting segments:

+ Health Care Services, which now includes our Commercial Markets (UnitedHealthcare and Uniprise),
Ovations and AmeriChoice businesses;

«  OptumHealth;
+ Ingenix; and
+  Prescription Solutions (formerly included in the Ovations business).
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Historical financial data as of and for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 was revised to reflect our
new segment operating and financial reporting structure.

Factors used in determining our reporting segments include the nature of operating activities, economic
characteristics, existence of separate senior management teams and the type of information presented to the
Company’s chief operating decision-maker to evaluate our results of operations.

Our accounting policies for business segment operations are the same as those described in the Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies (See Note 2). Transactions between business segments principatly consist of
customer service and transaction processing services that Health Care Services provides to OptumHealth, certain
product offerings sold to Health Care Services customers by OptumHealth, sales of pharmacy benefit products
and services to Health Care Services by Prescription Solutions and sales of medical benefits cost, quality and
utilization data and predictive modeling to Health Care Services by Ingenix. These transactions are recorded at
management’s estimate of fair value. All intersegment transactions are eliminated in consolidation. Assets and
liabilities that are jointly used are assigned to each segment using estimates of pro-rata usage. Cash and
investments are assigned such that each segment has at least minimum specified levels of regulatory capital or
working capital for non-regulated businesses.

Substantially all of our operations are conducted in the United States. In accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States, segments with similar economic characteristics may be combined. The
financial results of Commercial Markets, Ovations and AmeriChoice have been aggregated in the Health Care
Services segment column in the following tables because these businesses have similar economic characteristics
and have similar products and services, types of customers, distribution methods and operational processes, and
operate in a similar regulatory environment. These businesses also share significant common assets, including
our contracted networks of physicians, health care professionals, hospitals and other facilities, information
technology infrastructure and other resources.
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The following table presents segment financial information as of and for the years ended December 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005:

Corporate and
Health Care Prescription  Intersegment

(in millions) Services OptumHealth  Ingenix Solutions Eliminations  Consolidated
2007 .
Revenues — External Customers ... $ 70,155 $§ 2448 3% 867 $ 817 % — § 74287
Revenues — Intersegment ... .... —_ 2,385 437 12,420 (15,242) —
Investment and Other Income ... .. 1,044 88 —_ 12 — 1,144
Total Revenues ................. $ 71,199 § 4921 % 1,304 $ 13,249 $(15242) $§ 75431
Earnings From Operations (1) ..... $ 6,595 § 895 § 266 §$ 260 % (176) § 7,849
Total Assets (2) ... .............. $ 43343 § 3,714 % 1,596 § 1,860 $ 386 3% 50,899
Purchases of Property, Equipment

and Capitalized Software ....... 3 623 § 108 $ 121 % 19 % — % 871
Depreciation and Amortization .... $ 559 § 1 $ gl $ 45 3 — % 796
2006
Revenues — External Customers ... § 67011 § 2357 $ 653 § 650 % — $ 70,671
Revenues — Intersegment . ..., ... — 1,925 303 3,429 (5.657) —_—
Investment and Other Income . . ... 806 60 — 5 — 871
Totai Revenues ................. $ 67817 $ 4342 $ 956 § 4,084 $ (5657 F 71,542
Eamnings From Operations ........ $ 5860 § 809 $ 176 $ 139 % - 3 6,984
Total Assets (2) ................. $ 41,949 $ 3,187 $ 1,249 § 1,374 $ 561 $ - 48,320
Purchases of Property, Equipment

and Capitalized Software .. ..... 3 49 $ 13 3 85 § 4 3 — % 728
Depreciation and Amortization .... $ 480 § 89 3 68 § 33 0% — 670
2005
Revenues — External Customers ... § 43641 § 1,704 § 534 § 4] — % 45920
Revenues — Intersegment ......., — 1,396 262 37 (1,695) —
Investment and Other Income . ..., 478 27 — —_ — 505
TotalRevenues ................. $ 44119 $§ 3,127 § 79 §% 78 % (1,695 3 46425
Eamings From Operations . ....... $ 4376 % 574 % 130 § — 3 — % 5,080
Total Assets(2).........ovuinnn. $ 35994 § 2239 § 1,48 $ 1,357 % 650 $§ 41,288
Purchases of Property, Equipment

and Capitalized Software ....... $ 366 $ 94 § 49 § — 5 — 3 509
Depreciation and Amortization .... $ 330 % 59 § 62 % 2 3 — 3 453

(1) The corporate amount reflects the Section 409A charge recorded in the first quarter of 2007 as discussed in Note
10 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) The corporate balances consist of income tax-related assets.
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O

15. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The following tables present selected quarterly financial information for all quarters of 2007 and 2006.

For the Quarter Ended

(in miltions, except per share data) March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
2007

REVEMUES . . .ot ir it it anareeee s 3 19,047 § 19000 3% 18679 § 18,705
Operating Costs ............ .. vennsnn 3 17,465 % 16926 $ 16,524 $ 16,667
Earnings From Operations ................. $ 1,582 % 2,074 % 2,155 % 2,038
NetEarnings ........... ... .. .. oo $ 927 § 1,228  §$ 1,283 % 1,216
Basic Net Earnings per Common Share . .... .. $ 069 $ 093 % 098 § 0.95
Diluted Net Earnings per Common Share ... .. 3 066 % 080 % 095 § 092
2006

REVeIUES . o o vttt ieee e it aareeees $ 17,581 % 17,863 § 17970 % 18,128
Operating Costs . .............. . omvn. $ 16,108 §$ 16,196 §$ 16,107 3% 16,147
Earnings From Operations ................. $ 1,473 § 1,667 $ 1,863 § 1,981
NetEamings ........oviivinnrinannn.. $ B9t $ 981 % Li12 % 1,175
Basic Net Earnings per Common Share ....... $ 066 % 073 % 083 § 0.87
Diluted Net Earnings per Common Share ... .. $ 063 $ 070 3 080 % 0.84
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of UnitedHealth Group Incorporated and Subsidiaries:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of UnitedHealth Group Incorporated and
Subsidiaries (the “Company™) as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2007. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of UnitedHealth Group Incorporated and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results
of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on the
criteria established in [nternal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 21, 2008 expressed an unqualified
opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Minneapolis, MN
February 21, 2008
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None
ITEM9A, CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢) under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Exchange Act) that are designed to provide reasonable assurance that
information required to be disclosed by the Company in reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is
(i) recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms; and
(ii) accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management, including its principal executive officer and
principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

In connection with the filing of this Form 10-K, management evaluated, under the supervision and with the
participation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, the effectiveness of the
design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2007. Based upon
that evaluation, the Company’'s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the
Company's disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level as of
December 31, 2007.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended
December 31, 2007 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting.
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Report of Management on Internal Control over Financial Reporting as of December 31, 2007

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The
Company's internal control system is designed to provide reasonable assurance to our management and board of
directors regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The Company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratety and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
Company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the Company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the
consolidated financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007. In making this assessment, we used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ) in Internal Control — Integrated Framework. Based on our
assessment and those criteria, we believe that, as of December 31, 2007, the Company maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting.

The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm has audited the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, as stated in the Report of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm, appearing under Item 9A, which expresses an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal controls over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007.

{8/ STEPHEN J. HEMSLEY

Stephen J. Hemsley
President and Chief Executive Officer

{8/ GEORGE L. MIKAN III

George L. Mikan I1
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer

/S/ ERIC S. RANGEN

Eric S. Rangen
Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting
Officer

February 21, 2008

New York Stock Exchange Certification

Pursuant to Section 303A.12(a) of the NYSE listed company manual, the Company submitted an unqualified
certification of its Chief Executive Officer to the NYSE in 2007. We have also filed, as exhibits to this Form 10-K,
the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Certifications required under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors ard Stockholders of UnitedHealth Group Incorporated and Subsidiaries:

We have audited the internal conwol over financial reporting of UnitedHealth Group Incorporated and
Subsidiaries (the “Company™) as of December 31, 2007, based on criterta established in Internal Control —
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The
Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for
its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying
Report of Management on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting as of December 31, 2007, Qur
responsibility is to express an opinton on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the
company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and
effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
consolidated financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be
prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal
control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on the criteria established in /nternal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission,

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007 of the
Company and our report dated February 21, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated
financial statements.

s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Minneapolis, MN
February 21, 2008
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

Effective as of February 19, 2008, Stephen J. Hemsley voluntarily increased the exercise prices of certain of his
outstanding options, consistent with his intentions previously disclosed in the Report of the Special Litigation
Committee dated December 6, 2007.

On February 19, 2008, the Compensation and Human Resources Committee (Compensation Committee)
recommended and the Board approved the 2008 Executive Incentive Plan (EIP). The EIP, which includes annual
and long-termm cash components, is intended to reward and encourage significant contributions to the success of
our businesses. The EIP provides, subject to shareholder approval, for an annual cash bonus pool of 2% of net
income and a long-term cash bonus pool of 2% of net income. The Compensation Committee has established
multiple performance criteria for 2008 annual and 2008-2010 long-term cash bonus targets under the EIP. The
performance criteria established were as follows:

* annual cash bonuses will be based on growth and innovation; operating income and cash flow; and
stewardship (each weighted equalty); and

¢ long-term bonuses under the EIP will be based on earnings per share and return on equity {each
weighted equally).

Any participant’s annual or long-term cash bonus award under the EIP will be dependent upon the satisfaction of
the performance criteria established by the Compensation Committee, with the actual bonus awards depending on
the participant’s actual level of performance and a target percentage of base salary that varies by executive with a
maximum target percentage of 250% of base salary. The participants in the EIP are: the President and Chief
Executive Officer; the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer; the Executive Vice President and
Chief Legal Officer; the Executive Vice President, Human Capital; the Senior Vice President and Chief
Accounting Officer; the President, Enterprise Services Group; the President, Public & Senior Markets Group;
and the President, Commercial Markets Group.

PART 111

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3) to Form 10-K and Instruction 3 to Item 401(b) of Regulation S-K,
information regarding our executive officers is provided in Item 1 of Part I of this Annual Report on Form 10-K
under the caption “Executive Officers of the Registrant.”

The remaining information required by Items 401, 405, 406 and 407(c)(3), {d)(4) and (d)(5) of Regulation S-K
will be included under the headings “Corporate Governance,” “Election of Directors” and “Section 16(a)
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in our definitive proxy statement for our Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held June 5, 2008, and such required information is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Items 402, 407(e)(4) and (e)(5) of Regulation S-K will be included under the
headings “Executive Compensation” and “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation™ in our
definitive proxy statement for our Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held June 5, 2008, and such required
information is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by Items 201(d) and 403 of Regutation S-K will be included under the headings
“Equity Compensation Plan Information” and “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
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Management” in our definitive proxy statement for our Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held June 5, 2008,
and such required information is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Items 404 and 407(a) of Regulation S-K will be included under the headings
“Certain Relationships and Transactions” and *‘Corporate Governance” in our definitive proxy statement for the
Annual Meeting of Shareholders 1o be held June 5, 2008, and such required information is incorporated herein by
reference.

ITEM 14, PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 9(e) of Schedule 14A will be included under the heading “Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm” in our definitive proxy statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to
be held June 5, 2008, and such required information is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a)

1. Financial Statements

The financial statements are included under Item 8 of this report:

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity for the year ended December 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005,

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the year ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

2. Financial Statement Schedules

None

3. Exhibits**

31

32

4.1

4.2

43

44

*10.1

*10.2

Third Restated Articles of Incorporation of UnitedHealth Group Incorporated (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 29, 2007)

Third Amended and Restated Bylaws of UnitedHealth Group Incorporated (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 29, 2007)

Senior [ndenture, dated as of November 15, 1998, between United HealthCare Corporation and The
Bank of New York (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Registration Statement
on Form S-3/A, filed on January 11, 1999)

Amendment, dated as of November 6, 2000, to Senior Indenture, dated as of November 15, 1998,
between the UnitedHealth Group Incorporated and The Bank of New York (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
2001)

Instrument of Resignation, Appointment and Acceptance of Trustee, dated January 8, 2007, pursuant
to the Senior Indenture, dated November 15, 1988, amended November 6, 2000, among UnitedHealth
Group Incorporated, The Bank of New York and Wilmington Trust Company (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June
30, 2007)

Indenture, dated as of February 4, 2008, between UnitedHealth Group Incorporated and U.S. Bank
National Association (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form §-3, SEC file number 333-149031, filed on February 4, 2008)

UnitedHealth Group Incorporated 2002 Stock Incentive Plan, Amended and Restated Effective May
15, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2002)

Form of Agreement for Initial Stock Option Award to Non-Employee Directors under the Company’s
2002 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended on April 17, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007)
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*10.3

*10.4

*10.5

*10.6

*10.7

*10.8

*10.9

*10.10

*10.11

*10.12

*10.13
*10.14

*10.15

*10.16

*10.17
*10.18

Form of Agreement for Stock Option Award to Non-Employee Directors under the Company’s 2002
Stock Incentive Plan, as amended on October 31, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(d) to
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006)

Form of Agreement for Initial Restricted Stock Unit Award to Non-Employee Directors under the
Company’s 2002 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended on April 17, 2007 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31,
2007)

Form of Stock Appreciation Rights Award Agreement to Non-Employee Directors under the
Company’s 2002 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended on October 31, 2006 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10(e) to the Company’s Annuatl Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2006)

Form of Agreement for Stock Option Award to Executives under the Company’s 2002 Stock
Incentive Plan, as amended on April 17, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007)

Form of Agreement for Restricted Stock Award to Executives under the Company’s 2002 Stock
Incentive Plan, as amended on April 17, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007)

Form of Agreement for Restricted Stock Unit Award to Executives under the Company’s 2002 Stock
Incentive Plan, as amended on April 17, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007)

Form of Agreement for Stock Appreciation Rights Award to Executives under the Company’s 2002
Stock Incentive Plan, as amended on April 17, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007)

Amended and Restated UnitedHealth Group Incorporated Executive Incentive Plan, effective as of
April 17, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007)

UnitedHealth Group Executive Savings Plan (2004 Statement) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10(e) of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003)

First Amendment to UnitedHealth Group Executive Savings Plan (2004 Statement) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 31, 2006)

Second Amendment to UnitedHealth Group Executive Savings Plan (2004 Statement)

UnitedHealth Group Directors’ Compensation Deferral Plan (2002 Statement) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10(d) of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2002)

First Amendment to UnitedHeatth Group Directors’ Compensation Deferral Plan (2002 Statement)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(g) of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2003)

Second Amendment to UnitedHealth Group Directors’ Compensation Deferral Plan (2002 Statement)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
October 31, 2006)

Third Amendment to UnitedHealth Group Directors’ Compensation Deferral Plan (2002 Statement)

Employment Agreement, dated as of November 7, 2006, between UnitedHealth Group Incorporated
and Stephen J. Hemsley (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K dated November 7, 2006)

94




*10.19

*10.20

*10.21

*10.22

*10.23

*10.24

*10.25

*10.26

*10.27

*10.28

*10.29

*10.30

*10.31

*10.32

*10.33

*10.34

Agreement for Supplemental Executive Retirement Pay, effective April 1, 2004, between
UnitedHealth Group Incorporated and Stephen J. Hemsley (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10(b) to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004}

Amendment to Agreement for Supplemental Executive Retirement Pay, dated as of November 7,
2006, between UnitedHealth Group Incorporated and Stephen J. Hemsley (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit A to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 7, 2006)

Letter Agreement, dated as of November 6, 2006, by and between UnitedHealth Group Incorporated
and Stephen J. Hemsley (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(q) of the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006)

Letter Agreement, effective as of February 19, 2008, by and between UnitedHealth Group
Incorporated and Stephen J. Hemsley

Employment Agreement, effective as of November 7, 2006, by and between United HealthCare
Services, Inc. and George L. Mikan III (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 30, 2007)

Employment Agreement, dated as of April 10, 2007, between United HealthCare Services, Inc. and
William A. Munsell

Employment Agreement, dated as of December 15, 2006, by and between United HealthCare
Services, Inc, and Eric S. Rangen (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 15, 2006)

Employment Agreement, effective as of May 28, 2007, between United HealthCare Services, Inc.
and Thomas L. Strickland (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1} o the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2007)

Employment Agreement, effective as of June 29, 2007, between United HealthCare Services, Inc.
and Lori Sweere (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2007)

Employment Agreement, effective as of April 12, 2007, between United HealthCare Services, Inc.
and Anthony Welters

Employment Agreement, effective as of December 1, 2006, between United HealthCare Services,
Inc. and David S. Wichmann (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007)

Employment Agreement, effective December 1, 2006, between United HealthCare Services, Inc. and
Richard H. Anderson {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Company's Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007)

Noncompete and Transition Agreement, effective as of September 15, 2007, between United
HealthCare Services, Inc. and Richard H. Anderson

Noncompete and Transition Agreement, effective as of September 15, 2007, between United
HealthCare Services, Inc. and Lois Quam

Agreement, dated December 5, 2007, by and between David J. Lubben and UnitedHealth Group
Incorporated and the Special Litigation Committee of the Board of Directors of UnitedHealth Group
Incorporated (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form
§-K dated December 6, 2007}

Agreement, dated December 5, 2007, by and between William W. McGuire, M.D. and UnitedHealth
Group Incorporated and the Special Litigation Committee of the Board of Directors of UnitedHealth
Group Incorporated {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated December 6, 2007)
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*10.35

*10.36

12.1
211
23.1
241
i1l
321

Form of Letter Agreement, dated as of November 6, 2006, by and between UnitedHealth Group
Incorporated and each of William A. Munsell, Anthony Welters and David S. Wichmann (the
agreements executed by the above-named individuals are on terms substantially in the form of Letter
Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(jj) of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the year ended December 31, 2006)

Form of Letter Agreement, effective as of December 22, 2006, by and between UnitedHealth Group
Incorporated and each of Stephen J. Hemsley and David S. Wichmann (the agreements executed by
the above-named individuals are on terms substantially in the Form of Letter Agreement incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10(kk) of the Company’s Arnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2006)

Statement regarding computation of per share earnings (incorporated by reference to the information
contained under the heading “Net Earnings Per Common Share” in Note 2 to the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included under Item 8)

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Subsidiaries of the Company

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Power of Attorney

Certifications pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certifications pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

*  Denotes management contracts and compensation plans in which certain directors and named executive
officers participate and which are being filed pursuant to Item 601(b)(10)(iii)(A) of Regulation S-K.

*+  Pursuant to ltem 601(b)4)(iii) of Regulation S-K, copies of instruments defining the rights of certain
holders of long-term debt are not filed. The Company will furnish copies thereof to the SEC upon request.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Dated: February 21, 2008
UNITEDHEALTH GROUP INCORPORATED

By /S/ STEPHEN J. HEMSLEY

Stephen J. Hemsley
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
1S/ STEPHEN J. HEMSLEY Director, President and February 21, 2008
Chief Executive Officer

Stephen J. Hemsle
phen J y (principal executive officer)

/S/ GEORGE L. MIKAN 11 Executive Vice President and February 21, 2008
George L. Mikan 11T C"hif?f Financia'l Officer
{principal financial officer)

/S/ ERIC 5. RANGEN Senior Vice President and February 21, 2008
Chief Accounting Officer
(principal accounting officer)

Eric S. Rangen

* Director February 21, 2008
William C. Ballard, Jr.

* Director February 21, 2008
Richard T. Burke

* Director February 21, 2008
Robert J. Darretta

* Director February 21, 2008
Michele J. Hooper
* Director February 21, 2008

James A, Johnson

* Director February 21, 2008
Thomas H. Kean
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Signature

Title

Date

3

Douglas W. Leatherdale

*

Mary O. Mundinger

*

Robert L. Ryan

*

Gail R. Wilensky

/S/ CHRISTOPHER J. WALSH

As Attorney-in-Fact

Director

Director

Director

Director
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4.1

42

4.3

4.4

*10.1

*10.2

*10.3

*10.4

*10.5

*10.6

*10.7

*10.8

EXHIBIT INDEX

Third Restated Articles of Incorporation of UnitedHealth Group Incorporated (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 29, 2007)

Third Amended and Restated Bylaws of UnitedHealth Group Incorporated (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 29, 2007)

Senior Indenture, dated as of November 15, 1998, between United HealthCare Corporation and The
Bank of New York (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Registration Statement
on Form S-3/A, filed on January 11, 1999)

Amendment, dated as of November 6, 2000, to Senior Indenture, dated as of November 15, 1998,
between the UnitedHealth Group Incorporated and The Bank of New York (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
2001)

Instrument of Resignation, Appointment and Acceptance of Trustee, dated January 8, 2007, pursuant
to the Senior Indenture, dated November 15, 1988, amended November 6, 2000, among UnitedHealth
Group Incorporated, The Bank of New York and Wiimington Trust Company (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June
30, 2007)

Indenture, dated as of February 4, 2008, between UnitedHealth Group Incorporated and U.S. Bank
National Association (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form 5-3, SEC file number 333-149031, filed on February 4, 2008)

UnitedHeaith Group Incorporated 2002 Stock Incentive Plan, Amended and Restated Effective May
15, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10{a) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2002)

Form of Agreement for Initial Stock Option Award to Non-Employee Directors under the Company's
2002 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended on April 17, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10,1 10
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the guarter ended March 31, 2007)

Form of Agreement for Stock Option Award to Non-Employee Directors under the Company’s 2002
Stock Incentive Plan, as amended on October 31, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(d) to
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006)

Form of Agreement for Initial Restricted Stock Unit Award to Non-Employee Directors under the
Company’s 2002 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended on April 17, 2007 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007)

Form of Stock Appreciation Rights Award Agreement 10 Non-Employee Directors under the
Company’s 2002 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended on October 31, 2006 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(e) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006)

Form of Agreement for Stock Option Award to Executives under the Company’s 2002 Stock Incentive
Plan, as amended on April 17, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007)

Form of Agreement for Restricted Stock Award to Executives under the Company’s 2002 Stock
Incentive Plan, as amended on April 17, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007)

Form of Agreement for Restricted Stock Unit Award to Executives under the Company’s 2002 Stock
Incentive Plan, as amended on April 17, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007)
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*10.10

*10.11

*10.12

*10.13
*10.14

*10.15

*10.16

*10.17
*10.18

*10.19

*10.20

*10.21

*10.22

*10.23

*10.24

*10.25

*10.26

Form of Agreement for Stock Appreciation Rights Award to Executives under the Company’s 2002
Stock Incentive Plan, as amended on April 17, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007)

Amended and Restated UnitedHealth Group Incorporated Executive Incentive Plan, effective as of
April 17, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007)

UnitedHealth Group Executive Savings Plan (2004 Statement) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10(e) of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003)

First Amendmeat to UnitedHealth Group Executive Savings Plan (2004 Statement) {(incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 31, 2006)

Second Amendment to UnitedHealth Group Executive Savings Plan (2004 Statement)

UnitedHealth Group Directors’ Compensation Deferral Plan (2002 Statement) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10(d) of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2002)

First Amendment to UnitedHealth Group Directors’ Compensation Deferral Plan (2002 Statement)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(g) of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2003)

Second Amendment to UnitedHealth Group Directors’ Compensation Deferral Plan (2002 Statement)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
October 31, 2006}

Third Amendment to UnitedHealth Group Directors” Compensation Deferral Plan (2002 Statement)

Employment Agreement, dated as of November 7, 2006, between UnitedHealth Group Incorporated
and Stephen J. Hemsley (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report
on Form 8-K dated November 7, 2006)

Agreement for Supplemental Executive Retirement Pay, effective April 1, 2004, between
UnitedHealth Group Incorporated and Stephen J. Hemsley (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10(b) to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004)

Amendment to Agreement for Supplemental Executive Retirement Pay, dated as of November 7,
2006, between UnitedHealth Group Incorporated and Stephen J. Hemsley (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit A to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 7, 2006)

Letter Agreement, dated as of November 6, 2006, by and between UnitedHealth Group Incorporated
and Stephen J. Hemsley (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(q) of the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006)

Letter Agrecement, effective as of February 19, 2008, by and between UnitedHealth Group
Incorporated and Stephen J. Hemsley

Employment Agreement, effective as of November 7, 2006, by and between United HealthCare
Services, Inc. and George L. Mikan III (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 30, 2007)

Employment Agreement, dated as of April 10, 2007, between United HealthCare Services, Inc. and
William A. Munsell

Employment Agreement, dated as of December 15, 2006, by and between United HealthCare
Services, Inc. and Eric S. Rangen (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 15, 2006)

Employment Agreement, effective as of May 28, 2007, between United HealthCare Services, Inc.
and Thomas L. Strickland (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2007)
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*10.27

*10.28

*10.29

*10.30

*10.31

*10.32

*10.33

*10.34

*10.35

*10.36

11.1

12.1
211
23.1
24.1
311
32.1

Employment Agreement, effective as of June 29, 2007, between United HealthCare Services, Inc.
and Lori Sweere (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q} for the quarter ended June 30, 2007)

Employment Agreement, effective as of April 12, 2007, between United HealthCare Services, Inc.
and Anthony Welters

Employment Agreement, effective as of December 1, 2006, betwcen United HealthCare Services,
Inc. and David S. Wichmann (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007)

Employment Agreement, effective December 1, 2006, between United HealthCare Services, Inc. and
Richard H. Anderson (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007)

Noncompete and Transition Agreement, effective as of September 15, 2007, between United
HealthCare Services, Inc. and Richard H. Anderson

Noncompete and Transition Agreement, effective as of September 15, 2007, between United
HealthCare Services, Inc. and Lois Quam

Agreement, dated December 5, 2007, by and between David J. Lubben and UnitedHealth Group
Incorporated and the Special Litigation Committee of the Board of Directors of UnitedHealth Group

Incorporated (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form
8-K dated December 6, 2007)

Agreement, dated December 5, 2007, by and between William W. McGuire, M.D. and UnitedHealth
Group Incorporated and the Special Litigation Committee of the Board of Directors of UnitedHealth
Group Incorporated (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated December 6, 2007)

Form of Letter Agreement, dated as of November 6, 2006, by and between UnitedHealth Group
Incorporated and each of William A. Munsell, Anthony Welters and David 8. Wichmann (the
agreements executed by the above-named individuals are on terms substantially in the form of Letter
Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(j}) of the Company's Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006)

Form of Letter Agreement, effective as of December 22, 2006, by and between UnitedHealth Group
Incorporated and each of Stephen J. Hemsley and David S. Wichmann (the agreements executed by
the above-named individuals are on terms substantially in the Form of Letter Agreement incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10(kk)} of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2006)

Statement regarding computation of per share earnings (incorporated by reference to the information
contained under the heading “Net Earnings Per Common Share” in Note 2to the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included under Item 8)

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Subsidiaries of the Company

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Power of Attorney

Certifications pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certifications pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

*  Denotes management contracts and compensation plans in which certain directors and named executive
officers participate and which are being filed pursuant to Item 601{b)(10)(iii){A) of Regulation S-K.

**  Pursuant to Item 601(b}4)(iii) of Regulation S-K, copies of instruments defining the rights of certain
holders of long-term debt are not filed. The Company will furnish copies thereof to the SEC upon request.
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Certification of Principal Executive Officer

I, Stephen J. Hemsley, certify that:

1.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of UnitedHealth Group Incorporated (the “registrant™);

2.  Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other centifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s anditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board
of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

February 21, 2008 /S/ STEPHEN J. HEMSLEY

Stephen J. Hemsley
Chief Executive Officer and President




Certification of Principal Financial Officer

I, George L. Mikan IlI, certify that:

1.

1 have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of UnitedHealth Group Incorporated (the “registrant™);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internai control
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an aanual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

3. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board
of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely 1o adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting,

February 21, 2008 /8/ GEORGE L. MIKAN III

George L. Mikan III
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Certification of Principal Executive Officer

In connection with the Annual Report of UnitedHealth Group Incorporated (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for
the period ended December 31, 2007 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof
(the “Report™), I, Stephen J. Hemsley, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition
and results of operations of the Company.

February 21, 2008 {S/ STEPHEN J. HEMSLEY

Stephen J. Hemsley
President and Chief Executive Officer

Certification of Principal Financial Officer

In connection with the Annual Report of UnitedHealth Group Incorporated (the “Company™) on Form 10-K for
the period ended December 31, 2007 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof
{the “Report™), 1, George L. Mikan III, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

{1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition
and results of operations of the Company.

February 21, 2008 /S/  GEORGE L. MIKAN Il

George L. Mikan I11
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
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